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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Separate and consolidated financial statements ail ecember 2014

Dear Shareholders,

the separate and consolidated financial statesvenat and for the year ended 31
December 2014, submitted for your approval, shoegpectively, a profit of Euro 10,586
thousand and a profit attributable to the ownerhefparent of Euro 23,791 thousand.
In 2014, the Cairo Communication Group, which st@perations in the TV publishing field in
2013 following the acquisition of La7, with the tq@mm integration of its concessionaire
business for the sale of advertising space, difyengi its publishing activities previously focused
on magazines, operated as a:
= publisher of magazines and books (Cairo Editoredfidie Giorgio Mondadori and Cairo
Publishing);
= multimedia advertising broker (Cairo Pubblicitay the sale of advertising space on TV, in
print media, on the Internet and in stadiums;
= TV (La7, La7d) and Internet (La7.it, TG.La7.it) pisber.
In 2014, the general economic and financial contexrked by a high degree of uncertainty,
continued to report negative effects. To date,eglremains uncertainty over the period required
for a return to normal market conditions.
Based on AC Nielsen figures, advertising investménttaly in 2014 amounted to approximately
Euro 6.2 billion, down 2.5% versus 2013.
The analysis by media shows that in 2014
= the magazine advertising market dropped by 6.5%ugeP013, when it had slid by 23.9%
versus 2012,
= the TV advertising market basically confirmed (%)5the amounts of 2013, when it had,
instead, shed 10% versus 2012.

The uncertainty factors in the short-medium ecomaderm also hit magazine sales figures.
Despite this backdrop, in 2014 the Cairo CommuiooaBroup:

- strengthened the results of the cost rationalinatieeasures in the TV publishing segment
(La7) implemented during the eight months of attivm 2013, succeeding in achieving also
in 2014 a positive gross operating profit (EBITD&f)Euro 9 million, while in the January

December twelve-month period of 2013 (when La7hia first four months had not been



included yet in the scope of consolidation of their€@ Communication Group), gross
operating loss of La7 had amounted to Euro 25.4amil

- strengthened the results of “F”, “Settimanale NUoand “Settimanale Giallo”, confirmed
the high circulation levels of the other publicasp and worked on improving the levels of
efficiency reached in containing costs in the magazublishing segment (production,
publishing and distribution);

- kept advertising revenue levels high, despite teegal market trend,;

- achieved highly positive results in its traditionségments (magazine publishing and
advertising), despite the general economic anadhiiah context and relevant market trend;
took part with the subsidiary Cairo Network in teader procedure opened by the Ministry
of Economic Development for the assignment of sgtt use TV frequencies for digital
terrestrial broadcasting systems, submitting itslinig bid and winning the rights to use a lot

of frequencies ("Mux") for a period of 20 years.

To provide a better understanding of the figuresctomparative purposes, it should be noted that
the 2013 income statement included the resultsadf &.r.l., which was consolidated on 1 May

2013, with regard only to the May-December eightathgeriod of 2013.

In 2014, consolidated gross operating profit (EBNjand operating profit (EBIT) came to Euro

28.2 million and Euro 23 million, growing by 5.6%c8.9% versus the same results of current

operations in 2013 (Euro 26.7 million and Euro 2dillion). Profit attributable to the owners of
the parent came to approximately Euro 23.8 millimereasing sharply by about 24.9% versus
the result from current operations in 2013 (Eurariifion). Mention should be made that profit
in 2013 (Euro 74.2 million) had benefited from tieeognition in the income statement of “non-

recurring income from the acquisition of La7”, amting to Euro 57.1 million.

Specifically, in 2014:
- in the TV publishing segment (La7) the Group worked on strengthening the results ef th

rationalization and cost-curbing measures impleeeenin 2013 Gross operating profit

(EBITDA) and operating profit (EBIT) came to appimately Euro 9 million and Euro 6.2
million. Operating profit (EBIT) benefited in theonsolidated financial statements from
lower amortization and depreciation of Euro 18.3iom, due to the write-down of tangible
and intangible assets made in 2013 in the purcpase allocation of the investment. In the

January-December twelve-month period of 2013 - wh&h had not been included yet for



the entire period in the scope of consolidatiorthef Cairo Communication Group_- gross
operating loss had amounted to approximately EGré @illion.

In 2014, La7’s average all-day share was 3.25%3a84d% in prime timgfrom 8:30 PM to
11:30 PM), with a high-quality target audience. d'a7share maintained its level at 0.5%.
The audience figures of the channel's news andugison programmes - such as the 8 PM
newscast (5.7%), “Otto e mezzo” (5.4%), “PiazzaitRul(4.8%), “Crozza nel Paese delle
Meraviglie” (8%) “Servizio Pubblico” (7.3%), “AnnoUno” (5.5%) “Le invasioni
Barbariche” (4.1%), “Coffee Break” (4.9%), “Omniy8.7%), “La Gabbia” (3.4%), “L’aria
che tira” (6%), “Bersaglio Mobile” (5%), and “Di madi” (4.4%) - were positive.

- in themagazine publishing segmentgross operating profit (EBITDA) and operating fiiro
(EBIT) came to Euro 13.8 million and Euro 12.5 ioifl, up 11.2% and 13.1% versus 2013

(Euro 12.4 million and Euro 11.1 million). The patiunder review confirmed the excellent

circulation results, with revenue at Euro 73.4 imill(Euro 74.8 million in 2013). Regarding
weeklies, with over 1.8 million average copies soldhe January-December twelve-month
period of 2014, the Group retains its positiontss leading publisher in copies of weeklies

sold at newsstands, with an over 25% market share;

- in the advertising segment gross operating profit (EBITDA) and operating fitr¢EBIT)

came to Euro 5.2 million and Euro 4 million (Eur@.@ million and Euro 8 million in 2013).

In 2014, gross advertising sales on La7 and Lazméls amounted to Euro 152.9 million
(Euro 157.5 million in 2013).

On 12 April 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network IS.(former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) applied for
admission to bid in the auction opened by the Mipiof Economic Development for the
awarding of the so-called L3 Lot, put up for tendeéth a starting price of Euro 31.6 million.
This lot includes the granting of rights to user & period of 20 years - the 2-SFN multiplex on
channels 25 and 59 ("Mux"). The L3 Lot frequendiesre an estimated nominal coverage of
96.6% of the population. On 15 May 2014, the Miniof Economic Development announced
the admission of Cairo Network to the tender. OnJlBe 2014, the Company submitted its
binding bid and won the rights. The award was anned on 26 June 2014. On 25 July 2014,
Cairo Network paid the amount offered in its bidi(& 31.6 million), using own funds of Euro
6.6 million (arising from a capital increase of 8.5 million and a shareholder loan of Euro 1.1
million) and by means of a bank loan of Euro 25iomil granted by Unicredit S.p.A.. The loan is

secured by a guarantee issued by the parent Cammor@nication, and calls for the payment of



an interest rate equal to the 3-month Euribor [#@8 basis points and certain constraints

(negative pledges) and commitments (covenantshepart of the company, which are typical of

these transactions.

On 31 July 2014, the Ministry of Economic Develomtissued the rights of use.

In January 2015, Cairo Network and El Towers S.§'EIT") entered into the agreements for

the realization and subsequent long-term techm@adagement in full service mode (hospitality,

service and maintenance, use of broadcasting inisre, etc.) of the Mux. The agreements
provide, among other things, for:

- a transitional phase, which will see the realizatimd start-up of the MUX and the initial
operations, which will run from the date the agreata were signed to 31 December 2017,
and an operational phase of the Mux lasting 17syffieom 2018 to 2034);

- the right to free withdrawal of Cairo Network stag from 1 January 2025;

- guaranteed coverage at full performance of at 18486 of the population, in line with
national Muxs with greater coverage;

- consideration to EIT:

0 during the transitional phase (2015-2017), amogntm a total of Euro 11.5
million for the full three-year period,
o at full performance (starting from 2018), amountitogEuro 16.3 million per
year.
These amounts include compensation for the avhilabf the transmitters;

- an annual consideration from EIT to Cairo Netwastarting from 2018, ranging between
Euro 0 up to Euro 4 million, in the event that thailable bandwidth on the Mux is not fully
used by Cairo Network.

With the acquisition and realization of the MuxgtiCairo Communication Group will start

activities as a network operator and have at iteranmous disposal a broadcasting capacity of

about 22.4 Mbps versus the current 7.2 Mbps leaskidh can be used to broadcast the La7 and

La7d channels from 2017, to broadcast new chaiifndle Company were to launch any, or even

lease them to third parties as early as 2016.

PERFORMANCE

Cairo Communication Group — Consolidated figures

The mainconsolidated income statementfigures in 2014 can be compared with the figures in
2013:



(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
operations recurring operation recurring
items s items
Gross operating revenue 266,014 - 266,014 276,704 - 276,704
Advertising agency discounts (25,748) - (25,748) 27,190) - (27,190)
Net operating revenue 240,266 - 240,266 249,514 - 249,514
Change in inventories (28) - (28) (61) - (61)
Other revenue and income 11,627 - 11,627 7,985 - ,9857
Total revenue 251,865 - 251,865 257,438 - 257,438
Production cost (163,048) - (163,048) (181,963) (1,917) (183,880)
Personnel expense (60,634) - (60,634) (48,789) - 8,789)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 28,183 - 28,183 26,68 (2,917) 24,768
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and (5,221) - (5,221) (5,606) - (5,606)
impairment losses
EBIT 22,962 - 22,962 21,079 (2,917) 19,162
Net financial income 1,829 - 1,829 2,901 - 2,901
Income / (loss) on investments 2) - ) 699 - 699
Non-recurring income from the acquisition - - -
of La7 S.r.l. - 57,066 57,066
Pre-tax profit 24,789 - 24,789 24,679 55,149 79,828
Income tax (973) - (973) (5,620) - (5,620)
Non-controlling interests (24) - (24) (8) - (8)
Profit from continuing operations 23,792 - 23,792 19,051 55,149 74,200
attributable to the owners of the parent
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (2) - (2) (6) - (6)
Profit attributable to the owners of the 23,791 23,791 19,045 55,149 74,194
parent -

To provide a better understanding of the figurasclamparative purposes, it should be noted

that:

- the 2013 income statement included the figuresait B.r.l., which was consolidated on 1
May 2013, with regard only to the May-December eiglonth period of 2013;

- the 2013 profit had benefited from “non-recurringome from the acquisition of La7”.

In 2014, consolidated gross revenue came to appedgly Euro 277.6 million (Euro 284.7

million in 2013). The consolidation of La7 S.rdrfthe entire twelve months (as compared to the
May-December eight-month period of 2013 includedhea same period last year) brought no
significant change to revenue, since over 90% af §a.l. revenue comes from advertising sales
generated by Cairo Communication under the adimgtisoncession contract in effect before the

acquisition.

In 2014, consolidated gross operating profit (EBN)Dand operating profit (EBIT) came to

approximately Euro 28.2 million and Euro 23 milljogrowing by 5.6% and 8.9% versus the



same results of current operations in 2013 (Euro/ 2@illion and Euro 21.1 million).
Consolidated profit, amounting to approximately &@8.8 million, rose sharply by about 24.9%
versus the current operations in 2013 (Euro 19ianill In 2013, profit (Euro 74.2 million)
included Euro 55.1 million, that is, non-recurrimgcome and charges from the acquisition of
La7. Specifically, “non-recurring income from tlaequisition of La7 S.r.l.” referred to the
difference betweerthe fair value of assets acquired and liabilitiesuaned at the date of
acquisition and the purchase price paid, given fthencial situation of La7 at the date of
acquisition.

As mentioned, in 2014, gross operating profit (EBN) and operating profit (EBIT) from the

TV publishing segment (La7) came to approximatelyde9 million and Euro 6.2 million.

Operating profit (EBIT) benefited in the consoligat financial statements from lower

amortization and depreciation of Euro 18.2 milliatye to the write-down of tangible and
intangible assets made in 2013 in the purchase @tlocation of the investment. In 2013, the
income statement included the results of La7, §ipally the May-December eight-month period
of 2013, when_gross operating profit (EBITDA) angdemating profit (EBIT) from the TV

publishing segment (La7) had come to approximatlyo 3.6 million and Euro 2 million.

Operating profit (EBIT) from the TV publishing segnt (La7) had benefited in the consolidated
financial statements from lower amortization angrdeiation of Euro 16.5 million, due to the
write-down of tangible and intangible assets madethie purchase price allocation of the

investment.

The Groupstatement of comprehensive incomean be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 23,791 74,194

Other non-reclassifiable items
of the comprehensive income statement

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans (1,367) (510)
Tax effect 376 140
Total comprehensive income 22,800 73,824

The Group’s performance can be read better by aimgythe 2014 results byain business
segment (magazine publishing, advertising, TV publishingaT), network operator (Cairo

Network) and Il Trovatore) versus those of 2013:



2014 Magazine Advertising TV publishing Trovato-  Network Intra- Total
Publishing La7 re operator group

(€ thousands) Current Non- Cairo and

operations re_curring Network  unallocated

items
Gross operating reveni 96,70¢ 181,33: 110,91¢ - 834 - (123,773 266,01«
Advertising agency discounts - (25,748) - - - 25,748)
Net operating revenue 96,70¢ 155,58¢ 110,91¢ - 834 - (123,773 240,26t
Change in inventories (28) - - - - (28)
Other income 1,321 919 9,323 - 62 2 - 11,627
Total revenue 98,001 156,503 120,236 - 896 2 (123)7 251,865
Production co (65,098 (144,026 (77,016 - (673) 8) 123,77. 163,048
Personnel expen (19,120 (7,251 (34,221 - (42) - - (60,634
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 13,78: 5,22¢ 8,99¢ - 181 (6) - 28,18:
Amortization, depreciation, (1,261) (1,181) (2,778) - - (5,221)
provisions and impairment losses (1) -
Operating profit (EBIT) 12,522 4,045 6,221 - 181 17 - 22,962
Income / (loss) on investments - ) - )
Net financial income 17 390 1,423 - (1) - - 1,829
Non-recurring income from -
acquisition of La7 S.r.l. - - - - - - -
Pre-tax profit 12,53¢ 4,432 7,64¢ - 18C (@) - 24,78¢
Income tax (4,502) (1,795) 5,385 (61) - (973)
Non-controlling interests - - - - (24) - - (24)
Profit from continuing operations 8,037 2,638 13,029 - 95 (@] - 23,792
attributable to the owners of the
parent
Profit / (loss) from discontinued - - - - - - Q) 1)
operations
Profit 8,037 2,63¢ 13,02¢ - 95 (7) (1) 23,79!
2013 Magazine  Advertising TV publishing Trovato- Network Intra- Total
Publishing La7 (*) re operator group

(€ thousands Current Non- Cairo and

operations !'ecurring Network unallocated

items

Gross operating revenue 99,063 191,681 77,019 - 5 48 - (91,544) 276,704
Advertising agency discounts - (27,190) - - - - (27,190)
Net operating revenue 99,063 164,491 77,019 - 485 - (91,544) 249,514
Change in inventories (61) - - - - - - (61)
Other income 2,381 5,539 2,391 - 1 (2,327) 7,985
Total revenue 101,383 170,030 79,410 - 486 (9387 257,438
Production cost (69,867)  (152,936) (52,644) (1,917) (387) - 93,871  (183,880)
Personnel expense (19,117) (6,531) (23,107) - (34) - - (48,789)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 12,399 10,563 3,659 (1,917) 65 - - 24,768
Amortization, depreciation, provisions (1,323) (2,585) (1,698) - - (5,606)
and impairment losses - -
Operating profit (EBIT) 11,076 7,978 1,961 (1,917) 65 - - 19,162
Income / (loss) on investments - 699 - - - 699
Net financial income 40 1,165 1,697 1) - - 2,901
Non-recurring income from acquisition
of La7 S.r.l. - - - 57,066 - - - 57,066
Pre-tax profit 11,116 9,842 3,658 55,149 64 - - 3928
Income tax (4,118) (3,610) 2,131 - (23) - (5,620
Non-controlling interests - - - - 8) - - (8)
Profit from continuing operations 6,998 6,232 5,789 55,149 33 - 74,200
attributable to the owners of the
parent
Profit / (loss) from discontinued - - - - - - (6) (6)
operations
Profit 6,998 6,232 5,789 55,149 33 (6) 74,194
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The breakdown ofyross operating revenuein 2014, split up by main business segment (magazin

publishing, advertising, TV publishing (La7), netkaperator (Cairo Network) and Il Trovatore) cam b

analyzed as follows by comparing the amounts ir3201

Gross revenue 31/12/2014
Magazine Advertising TV Trovatore  Network Intra-group Total
publishing publishing operator eliminations
(La7) Cairo and
Network  unallocated
Magazine over-the-counter 73,400 - - - - - 73,400
sales
Print media advertising 20,931 27,687 - - - (20,641) 27,977
TV advertising - 149,636 106,991 - - (101,412) 155,215
Stadium signage - 2,537 - - - - 2,537
Internet advertising - 870 759 494 - (878) 1,245
Revenue from concession of - - 982 - - - 982
programming schedule spaces
Other TV revenue - - 2,181 - - - 2,181
Subscriptions 2,883 - - - - - 2,883
Books and catalogues 980 - - - - - 980
Other revenue - 602 - 340 - (842) 100
VAT relating to publications (1,486) (1,486)
Total gross operating 96,708 181,332 110,913 834 - (123,773) 266,014
revenue
Other revenue 1,321 919 9,323 62 2 - 11,627
Total revenue 98,029 182,251 120,236 896 2 (123,773) 277,641
Gross revenue 31/12/2013
Magazine Advertising TV Trovatore  Network Intra- group Total
publishing publishing operator  eliminations
(La7)* Cairo
Network and
unallocated
Magazine over-the-counter 74,791 - - - - - 74,791
sales
Print media advertising 21,768 28,975 - - - (21,514) 29,229
TV advertising - 159,194 73,227 - - (69,208) 163,213
Stadium signage - 2,536 - - - - 2,536
Internet advertising - 396 427 143 - 966
Revenue from programming - - 1,295 - - - 1,295
schedule spaces
Other TV revenue - - 2,070 - - - 2,070
Subscriptions 2,992 - - - - - 2,992
Books and catalogues 910 - - - - - 910
Other revenue - 580 342 - (822) 100
VAT relating to publications (1,398) - - - - - (1,398)
Total gross operating 99,063 191,681 77,019 485 - (91,544) 276,704
revenue
Other revenue 2,381 5,539 2,391 1 - (2,327) 7,985
Total revenue 101,444 197,220 79,410 486 - (93,871) 284,689

(*) Figures shown for the “TV publishing” segnteafer to the eight-month period from 1 May 20&31 December 2013.
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The main figures of the consolidate@dtement of financial position at 31 December 2014 can
be analyzed versus the situation at 31 Decembed: 201

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3,069 2,829
Intangible assets 56,871 12,986
Financial assets 1,175 555
Deferred tax assets 3,983 4,589
Net current assets (19,071) (22,390)
Total assets 46,027 (1,431)
Non-current borrowings and provisions 43,741 46,814
(Net financial assets)/Net debt (124,061) (172,915)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 126,311 124,658
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 36 12
Total equity and liabilities 46,027 (1,431)

It should be noted that in the consolidated finahsiatements for the year ended 31 December
2013, the acquisition of La7 S.r.l. had been actairfor under IFRS 3, applying the
"acquisition method", by measuring the fair valdedentifiable assets and liabilities acquired,
considering the future profit-generating capacityLa7 S.r.l. at the date of acquisition. This
approach determined:

« the recognition of “provisions for future risks amtharges” of Euro 21.4 million,
regarding certain contracts whose non-discretionasys to fulfill obligations exceeded
the assumed economic benefits, and specific riskatgdns related to existing and/or
performed contracts and pending and potentiabiliian,

» the full write-down of non-current assets at théedaf acquisition of La7 (30 April
2013), consisting primarily of TV broadcasting tighand specific technical equipment,
whose value was deemed unrecoverable in view ahtteme prospects of La7 S.r.l. at
the acquisition date.

The change in intangible assets versus 31 Decepiié is due primarily to the acquisition, in
the tender procedure opened by the Ministry of Botin Development, of the rights to use TV
frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastingteyns (Euro 31.6 million plus accessory costs),
which also explains the change in the net finanmigition as described below.

In 2014, as part of the share buy-back plans, eastiry shares were sold or purchased. At 31
December 2014, Cairo Communication held a totat.of 79 treasury shares, or 0.001% of the

share capital, subject to art. 2357-ter of thaedtaCivil Code.
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The consolidatechet financial position at 31 December 2014, versus the situation at 31
December 2013, can be summarized as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013 Change

Cash and cash equivalents 149,061 172,915 (23,854)
Current financial assets - - -
Bank loans (25,000) - (25,000)
Total 124,061 172,915 (48,854)

The change in the net financial position versuatember 2013 is mainly due to the investment
made by Cairo Network in the acquisition of the Miiguro 31.6 million plus accessory costs),
and to the distribution of dividends approved bg ®Bhareholders’ Meeting on 29 April 2014
(0.27 Euro per share, for a total of Euro 21.2ioml).

The bank loan of Euro 25 million, granted by UnititeS.p.A. and used by Cairo Network to pay
the rights of use of the TV frequencies, is seclrgda guarantee issued by the parent Cairo
Communication, and calls for the payment of anra@gerate equal to the 3-month Euribor plus
225 basis points and certain constraints (neggliedges) and commitments (covenants) on the
part of the company, which are typical of thesageations.

At 31 December 2014, the net financial positiorLa? came to Euro 106.5 million (Euro 115.8
million at 31 December 2013), a change attributablnly to the dynamics of net working
capital and to investments in the purchase of T¥its.

Under the contract to acquire the entire sharetalapf La7, entered into in April 2013, for a
period of 24 months following acquisition, Cairor@munication undertakes to use the financial
resources resulting from the contribution receifiein Telecom Italia Media in the exclusive
interest of La7 and to restructure the company,tamebt distribute dividends or reserves of La7.
To analyze the major financial indicators, the ofidated asset structure at 31 December 2014

can be examined using a reclassified statementisgamcreasing liquidity/settlement:

13



31/12/2014 31/12/2013
(€ thousands)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 59,940 15,815
Financial assets 1,175 555
Deferred tax assets 3,983 4,589
Total non-current assets 65,098 20,959
Current assets
Inventories 3,296 4,104
Trade receivables (unavailable liquid funds) B9,9 90,065
Other unavailable liquid funds 14,969 13,952
Total current operations assets 98,222 108,121
Available liquid funds 149,061 172,915
Total current assets 247,283 281,036
Invested capital 312,381 301,995
Equity 126,347 124,670
Consolidated liabilities
Post-employment benefits and provisions for reskd
charges 43,741 46,814
Non-current financing liabilities 20,000
Total consolidated liabilities 63,741 46,814
Current liabilities
Current operating liabilities 117,293 130,511
Non-current financing liabilities 5,000
Total current liabilities 122,293 130,511
Financing capital 312,381 301,995
Profit 23,791 74,194
Operating profit (EBIT) 22,962 19,162
Sales revenue 240,266 249,514

An analysis of the financial position of the Grouging the main financial indicators indicates
that the Cairo Communication Group is suitably tajzed to maintain financial equilibrium in
the medium/long term and has a very sound equisjtipa as it has significant cash resources,
and generates positive results in its traditiomgnsents, and can finance its current operations
even within the dynamics of its current assets.kirup at the TV publishing segment, in 2015,
the Group will continue to work on strengthening tfesults of the rationalization and cost-

curbing measures achieved in 2013 and 2014.
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(€ thousands) Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Solvency indicators

Current assets less current Current assets-current liabilities
liabilities margin 124,990 150,525
Current assets less current Current assets /current liabilities
liabilities ratio 2.02 2.15

(Unavailable liquid funds + available
Treasury margin liquid funds)-current liabilities 121,694 146,421
(Unavailable liquid funds + available

Treasury ratio liquid funds)/current liabilities 2.00 2.12
Non-current asset financing

indicators

Own funds less fixed assets Own funds — non-current assets

margin 61,249 103,711
Own funds less fixed assets ratio Equity /non-current assets 1.9 5.9
Own funds plus non-current (Own funds+ non-current liabilities) —

liabilities less non-current assets non-current assets

margin 104,990 150,525
Own funds plus non-current

liabilities less non-current assets  (Own funds+ non-current liabilities)/

ratio 2.6 8.2
Financing structure indicators

(non-current + current liab.)/Own funds
Total debt ratio 15 1.4
Third-party funds/Own funds

Financing debt ratio 0.2 -
Current operating assets - current

operating liabilities

(19,071) (22,390)

Profitability indicators

ROE Profit /Own funds 18.8% 59.5%
ROE current operations * Profit curr. op./Own funds 18.8% 15.3%

Operating profit /
ROI (Inv. op. capital — op. liabilities) 11.8% 11.2%
Operating profit current operations/

ROI current operations (Inv. op. capital — op. liabilities) 11.8% 11.2%
Other indicators

Receivables turnover 101 110

*For 2013, net of non-recurring income and chafgas the acquisition of La7

Solvency indicators (liquidity) represent the apiliof the company to maintain short-term

financial equilibrium, to meet short-term outflow(surrent liabilities) with existing cash

(available liquid funds) and short-term inflows éwailable liquid funds). Specifically, available

and unavailable liquid funds fully cover currerdHilities.

overall dynamics and origins of cash movements.
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The financing structure and non-current assetsifimg indicators express the strength of equity,

and the ability of the company to maintain finaheiquilibrium in the medium/long term, which
depends on:

- the methods of funding medium/long term commitments

- the composition of funding sources.

Specifically, these indicators, overall, disclobattthere are no risks related to stability in the
composition of the assets and liabilities/equity.

Regarding profitability indicators, the ROI (Retuam Invested capital) is an indicator that
expresses the level of efficiency/effectivenessaporate management. Invested capital as the
denominator is restated for an equivalent amoufitibflities without explicit maturity since their
cost is substantially included in operating profit.

As further non-financial key performance indicatoifse Group mainly uses data relating to
circulation and audience ratings that indicate*uecess” of each title and programme.

The trend of weeklies and monthlies can be analgzadollows:

_ Dipiu’
Weeklies Dipiu' Diva & Dipiu' TV v Nuovo F TV Mia
donna .
Cucina

ADS average 2014 536,601 202,572 335,709 164,151 213,816 136,755 154,109

ADS average 2013 564,034 205,236 360,563 172,333 231,613 140,250 154,633

Monthlies ForM(_en Natural Bell'ltalia Bell'Euro- .In. Airone  Gardenia
—_ Magazine  Style pa Viaggio

ADS average 2014 54,894 50,866 51,808 26,727 26,126 61,544 56,298

ADS average 2013 62,962 60,443 52,303 25,860 27,312 63,067 59,275

These figures show how circulation managed to gobdind, despite the tough market in 2014.

In 2014, La7’s average all-day share was 3.25%3z284¢P6 in prime timgfrom 8:30 PM to 11:30
PM), with a high-quality target audience. La7d'sighmaintained its level at 0.5%. The audience
figures of the channel’'s news and discussion progres - such as the 8 PM newscast (5.7%),
“Otto e mezzo” (5.4%), “Piazza Pulita” (4.8%), “CQ@a nel Paese delle Meraviglie” (8%)
“Servizio Pubblico” (7.3%), “Anno Uno” (5.5%) “Lenvasioni Barbariche” (4.1%), “Coffee
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Break” (4.9%), “Omnibus” (3.7%), “La Gabbia” (3.4%)L’aria che tira” (6%), “Bersaglio
Mobile” (5%), and “Di martedi” (4.4%) - were posi.

Cairo Communication S.p.A. — Parent performance

The mainincome statement figuresof Cairo Communication S.p.A.in 2014 can be compared

as follows versus those in 2013:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Gross operating revenue 116,595 121,047
Advertising agency discounts - -
Net operating revenue 116,595 121,047
Other revenue and income 350 1,217
Total revenue 116,945 122,264
Production cost (108,636) (112,475)
Personnel expense (2,990) (2,844)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 5,319 6,945
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainne

losses (290) (272)
EBIT 5,029 6,673
Net financial income 365 1,016
Income / (loss) on investments 7,084 13,174
Pre-tax profit 12,478 20,863
Income tax (1,891) (2,797)
Profit from continuing operations 10,587 18,066
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (1) ) (5
Profit 10,586 18,061

In 2014, Cairo Communication continued to operatelV advertising sales (La7, La7d and
theme channels Cartoon Network, Boomerang and CHhiN) on the Internet through its
subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita on a sub-concessiotispas/oicing advertising spaces directly to its
customers and returning to the sub-grantor Cainmi@onication a share of revenue generated by
resources managed on a sub-concession basis.fiGpci

- gross operating revenue was approximately Eurcglrbélion (Euro 121 million in 2013);

- parent gross operating profit (EBITDA) was approxiaty 5.3 million (Euro 6.9 million in
2013);
- operating profit (EBIT) was approximately Euro Slian (Euro 6.7 million in 2013);

profit was approximately Euro 10.6 million (Euro.18nillion in 2013).
“Income (loss) on investments” includes the dividerapproved by the subsidiaries Cairo

Pubblicita, amounting to Euro 1 million, and Cakditore, amounting to Euro 6.2 million, as
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well as the value adjustment of the investment hel€airo Publishing S.r.l., amounting to a
negative Euro 0.2 million.

In 2013, the item included the dividends approvgdClairo Pubblicita, amounting to Euro 3.4
million, and by Cairo Editore, amounting to Eur@ 9nillion, the gain from the sale of Dmail
Group shares, amounting to Euro 327 thousand, hasvthe value adjustment of the investment
held in Cairo Publishing S.r.I., amounting to aatég Euro 0.3 million.

The Parent'statement of comprehensive incomean be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Statement of comprehensive income of the Parent

Profit 10,586 18,061
Other non-reclassifiable items of the comprehenisivgeme

statement

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans (135) (97)
Tax effect 37 27
Total comprehensive income 10,488 17,991

The main figures of thetatement of financial positionat 31 December 2014 can be analyzed
versus the situation at 31 December 2013:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 457 549
Intangible assets 320 356
Financial assets 23,124 17,614
Other non-current assets 1,663 13
Net current assets 7,325 14,961
Total assets 32,889 33,493
Non-current borrowings and provisions 1,485 1,346
(Net financial position)/Net debt (25,768) (35,590
Equity 57,172 67,837
Total equity and liabilities 32,889 33,493

The increase in financial assets amounts to Eufo rbillion and is attributable to the

capitalization of the subsidiary Cairo Network ilew of the investment it made to acquire TV
frequencies.

As mentioned in the notes to the consolidated st of financial position, at their Meeting on
29 April 2014, the shareholders approved the thstion of a dividend of 0.27 Euro per share,
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inclusive of tax, with coupon detachment date orMBE¥ 2014 (made payable on 15 May 2014),

for a total of Euro 21.2 million.

The net financial position of the Parent at 31 December 2014, versus thatigituat 31

December 2013, is summarized as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014  31/12/2013 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 25,768 35,690 (9,922)

Current financial assets - - N
Total 25,768 35,690 (9,922)

Statement of reconciliation of the Parent’s equityand profit and
Group equity and profit
Thestatement of reconciliationof equity and profit of Cairo Communication S.pafd Group

equity and profit can be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) Equity Net profit
Financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. 57,172 10,586
Elimination of the carrying amount of consolidatsglity investments:
Difference between carrying amount of investments their equity value 120,057
Share in subsidiaries’ profit net of investment @nment losses

1,725
Effects of the purchase price allocation of La7lS.r (39,414) 18,562
Allocation of excess consideration paid:
Goodwill 7,198
Elimination of intra-group profits net of incomexta (19,096) 179
Elimination of intra-group dividends (7,287)
Consolidated financial statements of Cairo Communiation 126,311 23,791

Main business segment operating results and relatedsk factors and

strategic opportunities

PRINT MEDIA PUBLISHING
CAIRO EDITORE - CAIRO PUBLISHING

The results achieved Bublishing in 2014 can be analyzed as follows:
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Publishing 31 December 31 December
(€ thousands) 2014 2013
Operating revenue 96,708 99,063
Other income 1,321 2,381
Change in inventories (28) (61)
Total revenue 98,001 101,383
Production cost (65,098) (69,867)
Personnel expense (19,120) (19,117)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 13,783 12,399
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainniesses (1,261) (1,323)
EBIT 12,522 11,076
Income / (loss) on investments - -
Net financial income 17 40
Pre-tax profit 12,539 11,116
Income tax (4,502) (4,118)
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the 8,037 6,998
owners of the parent

Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations - -
Profit 8,037 6,998

In 2014, Cairo Editore strengthened the resultésogpublications and worked on improving the

levels of efficiency reached in containing prodowti publishing and distribution costs.

Specifically, in 2014:

- the operating results of the Group’s publishinghsewgt increased versus the prior year;

- it confirmed the excellent circulation results, lwievenue at Euro 73.4 million versus
Euro 74.8 million in 2013,

- Group gross advertising revenue, which reached Rir@ million, dropped by 3.9%
versus 2013ACNielsen-6.5% the magazine advertising market in 2014).

In the twelve months, gross operating profit (EBR)and operating profit (EBIT) came to Euro

13.8 million and Euro 12.5 million, up by 11.2% ah®l1% versus 2013 (Euro 12.4 million and

Euro 11.1 million).

The Group weeklies confirmed the excellent cirdatatresults achieved, with an average ADS

circulation in the January-December twelve-monthigoe of 2014 of 536,601 copies for
“Settimanale DIPIU", 335,709 copies for “DIPIU’ TY'164,151 copies for “Settimanale DIPIU’
e DIPIUTV Cucina”, 202,572 copies for “Diva e Daailh 213,816 copies for “Settimanale
Nuovo”, 136,755 copies for “F’, 154,109 copies foFVMia” and 118,495 copies for

“Settimanale Giallo”, with over 1.8 million averagmpies sold, and making the Group the

leading publisher in copies of weeklies sold at ss&ands, with an over 25% market share.
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As far as circulation is concerned, the featurethefGroup’s publications and the Group strategy

help maintain a strong lead over competitors incireent publishing market. Specifically:

- cover prices of the weeklies are lower, some hadf price of those of the main
competitors; this gap increases appeal and allpasesfor potential price increases,

hence for increased profitability;

- sales are mostly over-the-counter (95%), with airmiim impact of revenue generated
by gifts and sundry editorial material (approxinkat2% on total publishing revenue,
including advertising), whose sales figures havilapsed in the publishing segment;
the Group has opted to focus on the quality of ptiblications; in 2014, gross
advertising revenue generated by the Group’s patitics accounted for 26% (27% in
2013) - an extremely low figure if compared witle tievenue breakdown of other major
publishing groups, therefore based to a lessenexgie the economic cycle - while the
remaining 74% (73% in 2013) came from direct saled subscriptions, proof of the

high editorial quality of publications;

- weekly magazines, which account for approximated$o9of total publishing sales
revenue, are sold as single copies and not buwdibdother weeklies and/or dailies to

bolster sales;

- the remarkable sales volumes achieved, both inlaleséerms and versus Cairo
Editore’s competitors, make the advertising pageghih appealing in terms of
advertising cost per copy sold (equal to the diifee between the price of the
advertising page and copies sold), currently lowlean the publications of its

competitors.

In 2015, Cairo Editore will continue to pursue ofpaities to optimize production, publishing
and distribution costs, which mainly regarded niegions for the reduction of paper costs, the

optimization of bordereau costs, and the revisiocettain corporate processes.

ADVERTISING

Looking at the advertising segment, in 2014 thercc&ommunication Group continued to
operate as advertising broker - with its subsidi@airo Pubblicitd - selling space in the print
media for Cairo Editore (“For Men Magazine”, “NaaliiStyle”, “Settimanale DIPIU, “DIPIU’
TV” and weekly supplements “Settimanale DIPIU’ ePIW'TV Cucina” and “Settimanale
DIPIU e DIPIUTV Stellare”, “Diva e Donna”, “TV Ma”, “Settimanale Nuovo”, “F’ and

“Settimanale Giallo”), the Editoriale Giorgio Morttari division (“Bell'ltalia”, “Bell’Europa”,
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“In Viaggio”, “Airone”, “Gardenia”, “Arte” and “Aniquariato”) and for Editoriale Genesis
(*Prima Comunicazione” and “Uomini e Comunicaziopebr the sale of advertising space on
TV for La7 and La7d, and for Turner BroadcastingrfGon Network, Boomerang, CNN), on the
Internet (La7.it, TG.La7.it, Cartoon Network.it, &nom) and for the sale of stadium signage and
space at the Olimpico in Turin for Torino FC.

The results achieved ®dvertising in 2014 can be analyzed as follows:

Advertising 31 December 31 December
(€ thousands) 2014 2013
Gross operating revenue 181,332 191,681
Advertising agency discounts (25,748) (27,190)
Net operating revenue 155,584 164,491
Other income 919 5,539
Change in inventories - -
Total revenue 156,503 170,030
Production cost (144,026) (152,936)
Personnel expense (7,251) (6,531)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 5,226 10,563
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses (1,181) (2,585)
EBIT 4,045 7,978
Income / (loss) on investments (2) 699
Net financial income 390 1,165
Pre-tax profit 4,433 9,842
Income tax (1,795) (3,610)
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the owners 2,638 6,232

of the parent
Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations - -

Profit 2,638 6,232

In 2014, total gross advertising revenue, whiclides TV advertising revenue invoiced directly
by La7 (Euro 6.2 million), came to approximatelyr&ul87.5 million. Specifically, in 2014,
advertising sales on La7 and La7d channels amouatBdro 152.9 million (Euro 157.5 million

in 2013).

For a comparative assessment of the advertisingntey trend, it should also be noted that in
2013 the advertising sales concession contract paortilia channels was consensually
terminated, effective 30 April 2013. The contraetdhgenerated gross advertising revenue of

approximately Euro 2.4 million.
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TV PUBLISHING (La7)

As previously mentioned, to provide a better un@eiding of the figures for comparative

purposes, it should be noted that:

- the 2013 income statement included the resultsadf &.r.l., which was consolidated on 1
May 2013, with regard only to the May-December eiglonth period of 2013,

- the 2013 result had benefited from the “non-reagrincome from the acquisition of La7”.

In 2013, the Group started operations in the TVliphimg field with the acquisition from

Telecom lItalia Media S.p.A. of the entire shareitehjof La7 S.r.l. as from 30 April 2013. At the

acquisition date, the financial situation of Ladealled for the implementation of a restructuring

plan aimed at reorganizing and streamlining thea@te structure and at curbing costs, while

retaining the high quality levels of the programain

Starting from May 2013, the Group began to impleniisnown plan to restructure the company,

achieving, as early as the May-December eight-mpatiod of 2013, a positive gross operating

profit (EBITDA) of Euro 3.7 million.

(€ thousands) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
*
Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
operations recurring operations recurring
items items
Operating revenue 110,913 110,913 77,019 - B7,01

Change in inventories - - - R
Other revenue and income 9,323 - 9,323 2,391 - 912,3

Total revenue 120,236 120,236 79,410 - 79,410
Production cost (77,016) (77,016) (52,644) (1)917 (54,561)
Personnel expense (34,221) (34,221) (23,107) - 3,1@)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 8,999 - 8,999 3,659 (2,917) 1,742
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and (2,778) - (2,778) (1,698) (1,698)
impairment losses

EBIT 6,221 - 6,221 1,961 (1,917) 44
Net financial income - - - - - -
Income / (loss) on investments 1,423 - 1,423 1,697 - 1,697
Non-recurring income from acquisition of

La7 S.r.l. - - - 57,066 57,066
Pre-tax profit 7,644 7,644 3,658 55,149 58,807
Income tax 5,385 - 5,385 2,131 2,131
Non-controlling interests - - - - - -
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 13,029 13,029 5,789 55,149 60,938

(*) Figures shown for 2013 refer to the MayeBmber eight-month period.

In 2014, the Group managed to strengthen the eegiiltthe cost rationalization measures

implemented in the first eight months of activity 2013, achieving a positive gross operating
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profit (EBITDA) of Euro 9 million, versus the grosperating loss of Euro 25.4 million of La7 in
the January-December twelve-month period of 2013.

Operating profit (EBIT) came to Euro 6.2 milliondatenefited in the consolidated financial

statements from lower amortization and depreciatioBuro 18.2 million, due to the write-down

of tangible and intangible assets made in 201Barpurchase price allocation of the investment.

Gross operating profit (EBITDA) in the TV publisigirsegment in 2014 can be analyzed as

follows with the same result of current operatiam®2013 (as compared to the May-December
eight-month period of 2013 included in the consatkd income statement at 31 December 2013,

shown in the interim management report at that)date

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Operating revenue 110,913 114,429
Change in inventories

Other revenue and income 9,323 2,879
Total revenue 120,236 117,308
Production cost (77,016) (103,635)
Personnel expense (34,221) (39,081)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 8,999 (25,408)

In 2014, La7’s average all-day share was 3.25%3a84P0 in prime timéfrom 8:30 PM to 11:30
PM), with a high-quality target audience. La7d'sighmaintained its level at 0.5%. The audience
figures of the channel’'s news and discussion progres - such as the 8 PM newscast (5.7%),
“Otto e mezzo” (5.4%), “Piazza Pulita” (4.8%), “CQ@a nel Paese delle Meraviglie” (8%)
“Servizio Pubblico” (7.3%), “Anno Uno” (5.5%) “Lenvasioni Barbariche” (4.1%), “Coffee
Break” (4.9%), “Omnibus” (3.7%), “La Gabbia” (3.4%)L’aria che tira” (6%), “Bersaglio
Mobile” (5%), and “Di martedi” (4.4%) - were posidi.

IL TROVATORE

In 2014, Il Trovatore continued operations, maiptgviding technological services to develop

and maintain the online platforms of the Group’mpanies.

NETWORK OPERATOR (CAIRO NETWORK)

As mentioned earlier, the subsidiary Cairo Netwimdk part in the tender procedure opened by

the Ministry of Economic Development for the assigmt of rights to use TV frequencies for
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digital terrestrial broadcasting systems, subngtits binding bid and winning the rights to use a
lot of frequencies ("Mux") for a period of 20 years

In January 2015, Cairo Network and El Towers S.§'EIT") entered into the agreements for

the realization and then long-term technical manseg# in full service mode (hospitality, service
and maintenance, use of broadcasting infrastruottice of the Mux.

With the acquisition and realization of the MuxgtiCairo Communication Group will start

operations at the end of 2015 as a network operator

Alternative performance indicators

In this Report, in order to provide a clearer pietof the financial performance of the Cairo
Communication Group, besides of the conventionarfcial indicators required by IFRS, a
number of alternative performance indicators ammshthat should, however, not be considered
substitutes of those adopted by IFRS.

The alternative indicators are:

-EBITDA: used by Cairo Communication as a target to momi@rnal management, and in
public presentations (to financial analysts ande@tors). It serves as a unit of measurement to
evaluate Group and Parent operational performanith, the EBIT, and is calculated as
follows:

Profit from continuing operations, pre tax

+/- Net finance income

+/- Share in associates

EBIT- Operating profit

+ Amortization & depreciation
+ Bad debt impairment losses
+ Provisions for risks

EBITDA — Operating profit, before amortization, depreciation, write-downs and

impairment losses

The Cairo Communication Group also considess financial position as a valid indicator of
the Group’s ability to meet financial obligatiommth current and future. As can be seen in the
table used above, which details the equity figuisesd for the calculation of Group net financial
position, this figure includes cash and other aaghivalents, bank deposits, securities and other

current financial assets, reduced by current amdooorent bank borrowings.
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Transactions with parents, subsidiaries and assodies

In 2014, transactions with related parties, inaligdwith Group companies, were not considered
to be atypical or unusual, and were part of thenarg activities of Group companies. These
transactions were carried out on market terms,ntplaccount of the goods and services
provided.

Information on transactions with related partiesdisclosed in_Note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements and in Note 28 of the sepdisaacial statements.

Main risks and uncertainties to which Cairo Communcation S.p.A.

and its Group are exposed

Risks associated with the general economic climate

The financial position, results and cash flows loé tCairo Communication Group may be
influenced by various factors within the macro-emoit environment, such as the increase or
decrease of GNP, the level of consumer and compomnfidence, the advertising
expenditure/GDP ratio, interest rate trends antl@osw materials.

In 2014, the general economic and financial climatarked by a high degree of uncertainty,
continued to show its negative effects, creatinghareasingly complex competitive scenario. To
date, there remains uncertainty over the periodired for a return to normal market conditions.
Should this situation of uncertainty continue fone time, the operations, strategy and outlook
for the Group may be impacted.

To challenge the tough market scenario, the Groygeemented, starting in previous periods, and
also in 2014, a series of measures to increaseiegfty and effectiveness of the production,
publishing and distribution processes, and willtsare in 2015 to benefit from the high levels of
efficiency achieved. Looking at the TV publishinggment, in 2015, the Group will continue to
work on strengthening the results of the ratiomdilim and cost-curbing measures achieved in
2013 and 2014.

Risks associated with advertising and publishingketarends

In 2014, the persisting short and medium-term egooancertainty impacted negatively on the

advertising market.

Based on AC Nielsen figures, in 2014 advertisingegsiments in Italy amounted to
approximately Euro 6.2 billion, down 2.5% versusl2((specifically, -6.5% the magazine

advertising market and -0.5% the TV advertising kegr The Cairo Communication Group
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holds approximately 4.4% of the TV advertising nerk4.6% in 2013) and approximately
5.7% of the magazine advertising market (5.5% ih3}0This market share leaves the Group
room enough for growth, given the high quality aighificant distribution of its own titles, in
particular weeklies, and of the TV resources (owd ander concession), quality, circulation
and audience ratings that provide significant cditipe edge.

The economic climate has slowed the pace of the afatlailies and magazines. Despite the
challenging market, in 2014, it confirmed the ebardl circulation results, with revenue at Euro

73.4 million versus Euro 74.8 million in 2013.

Advertising

The Cairo Communication Group is significantly esed to advertising sales performance,
which has progressively decreased over time assatref significant developments in the
publishing business. The consolidation of La7 Starbught no significant change to revenue,
since over 90% of La7 S.r.l. revenue is generatgdativertising sales made by Cairo
Communication under the existing advertising cosioes contract. Advertising sales are
currently the main source of revenue for the TVIighing segment.

Advertising sales today represent approximately @a@proximately 69% in 2013) of total
Group revenue. Considering also advertising revalimaetly generated by La7 (approximately
Euro 6.2 million), the impact of advertising revenucreases to 68% (approximately 71% in
2013).

Considering the Group’s publishing business alag@grtising revenue in 2014 accounted for
26% - much lower than the revenue breakdown ofratiegor publishing groups - while the
remaining 74% was generated by distribution andatfition revenue, demonstrating the great
publishing strength of advertising products.

The sale of advertising space is monitored dailydfgrence to the percentage saturation of the
catchment time, average sales price and the \aridtom forecasts. Daily monitoring also
enables a review of the sales forecasts by montinder to act — with reference to print media —

on advertising pages and thus on the structureoafyst costs.

Management’s attention is focused on the definitibstrategy and commercial policy to ensure
an effective presentation of the high value ofgheduct offering. The features of the resources

offered represent strength for the Group in thessurcompetitive climate.

La7 boasts an exceptional audience profile, pdaituappealing in terms of advertising.

27



Regarding Group titles, the remarkable distributtoiumes, in absolute terms and considering
competition, which enabled the Group to becomelehding publisher of weeklies by copies
sold on newsstands make the advertising pages lapgpé@aterms of advertising cost per copy
sold (equal to the ratio between the price of tiheedising page and the copies sold), which is

currently lower than competition.
Distribution

Regarding distribution, the features of the progystiblished by the Group as well as its
strategy, are such as to build a significant coitipetedge in the current climate of the

publishing segment. This is largely explained by fdict that:

- cover prices of the weeklies are lower, some dicanitly lower than those of the main

competitors;

- sales are mostly over-the-counter (95%), with aimmum impact (approximately 2% on
total publishing revenue, including advertising) r@venue generated by gifts and

sundry editorial materials;

- weekly magazines, which account for approximatedfo9of the total publishing
segment revenue, are sold as single copies andunoied with other weeklies and/or

dailies to bolster sales.

Risks associated with extraordinary transactions

As mentioned earlier, in 2013 Cairo Communicatign/s acquired from Telecom Italia Media,

through Cairo Due S.r.l., the entire share capitdla7 S.r.I.

The financial situation of La7 called for the implentation of a restructuring plan aimed at

reorganizing and streamlining the corporate stmgcand at curbing costs, while retaining the

high quality levels of the programming schedule.

Starting from May 2013, the Group began to impleimi&n own plan to restructure La7, by

adopting the following main guidelines:

- confirming the editorial line and those programatthepresent the main strengths of the
channel,

- curbing costs, focusing in particular on “unprodet cost items and items that exceed the
cost/benefit ratioand on recovering efficiency,

- enhancing the high quality of the La7 target auckeno maintain and develop the high level

of advertising revenue against the general markekdrop.
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In the May-December eight-month period of 2013, lcaifrent operations, which generated a
positive gross operating profit (EBITDA) of Eurd/3nillion, saw no cash absorption.

In 2014, the Group managed to strengthen the eegiltthe cost rationalization measures
implemented in the first eight months of activity 2013, achieving a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of Euro 9 million, versus the grosgerating loss of Euro 25.4 million of La7 in
the January-December twelve-month period of 2013.

Operating profit (EBIT) came to Euro 6.2 milliondatenefited in the consolidated financial

statements from lower amortization and depreciatioBuro 18.2 million, due to the write-down
of tangible and intangible assets made in 201Barpurchase price allocation of the investment.
In 2015, the Group will continue to work on strdmgting the results of the rationalization and

cost-curbing measures achieved in 2013 and 2014.

Risks associated with developments in the mediment

The media segment has seen an increase in thedéysnetration of new communication
resources, in particular the Internet, and the n@encrypted theme channels on the digital
terrestrial platform, together with technology inations that may lead to changes in demand
by consumers, who in future will probably requestgonalized content by even directly
selecting the source. As a result, this may chadhgeelative importance of the various media

and audience distribution, with consequent greataket fragmentation.

Whereas the development of the Internet may impacthe share of print media, mainly on
dailies and to a much lesser extent on the weekgliddished by the Group, the growth of the
Internet and of digital theme television may impact the generalist TV audience. Any

development of new TV channels by the Group maymait to take advantage of this situation.

The Group constantly monitors the level of penginabf new resources as well as changes in
the business model related to the distributionasftent available to assess the opportunity to

develop the various distribution platforms, withitpaular attention to the Internet.

Developments in the regulatory framework are alsatioually monitored for the media

segment and their disclosure within the Group suesd.

Risks associated with Management and “key staff”

The Group’s success depends on the talents ofkésuéive Directors and other members of

Management to efficiently manage the Group andrttizidual business segments.
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Editors and TV personalities, too, have a signifta@le in the titles published and programmes
hosted.

The loss of the services of an executive Direatdiitor, TV personality or other key resource
without an appropriate substitute, as well as tificalty in attracting and retaining new and
qualified resources, may impact negatively on thasjpects, operations and financial results of

the Group.

Risks associated with retaining the value of trents of the Group titles and TV programmes

The Cairo Communication Group publishes a numbehighly successful Italian weeklies,
“Settimanale Dipiu” (536,601 copies), “DipiuTV” 88,709 copies), “Settimanale Dipiu e
DipiuTV Cucina” (164,151 copies), “TVMia” (154,1080pies) “Diva & Donna” (202,572
copies), “Settimanale Nuovo” (213,816 copies), (E36,755 copies) and “Settimanale Giallo”
(118,495 copies). Among the monthlies, “GardenidBell’ltalia”, “For Men Magazine”,
“Natural Style” and “Arte” are leaders in their owwagment.

The audience figures of the channel's news andudgon programmes - such as the 8 PM
newscast (5.7%), “Otto e mezzo” (5.4%), “PiazzaitRul(4.8%), “Crozza nel Paese delle
Meraviglie” (8%), “Servizio Pubblico” (7.3%), “Annd&no” (5.5%) “Le invasioni Barbariche”
(4.1%), “Coffee Break” (4.9%), “Omnibus” (3.7%), &LGabbia” (3.4%), “L’aria che tira” (6%),
“Bersaglio Mobile” (5%), and “Di martedi” (4.4%)were positive.

The value of Group brands and TV programmes mustobénuously protected by maintaining
the current level of quality and innovation.

The Group publishing strategy has always been &mtas the quality of its products, driven by
the efforts of Management and the editors. Undertireements with the directors , a significant
part of their remuneration is linked to the reswoitslistribution, audience ratings and/or sale of

advertising space of the titles and TV programmes.

Risks associated with business with suppliers

A number of the Group’s production processes, @aldrly magazine printing and use of
broadcasting capacity in the TV publishing segmeare outsourced. The outsourcing of
production processes requires close cooperatidnthé suppliers which, on one hand, can result
in economic benefits in terms of flexibility, effemcy and cost reduction, but on the other hand,

results in the Group’s reliance on these suppliers.

30



Risks associated with legal and requlatory devetygm

La7’s activity is mainly governed by Legislative @ee no. 177 of 31 July 2005 as amended by
Legislative Decree no. 44 of 15 March 2010 (herféémalegislative Decree no. 177/05 as
amended, also called "Consolidated Act"), whicls ¢ské general principles for the provision of
audiovisual and radio media services.

With regard to the Automatic Numbering Plan, thenbers currently in use (7 for La7 and 29 for
La7d) are those assigned by the Ministry of EcomoBévelopment in 2010, under AGCOM
resolution 366/2010/CONS. The Resolution had bevilenged by Telenorba and other local
broadcasters, with partial annulment specificadlgarding the assignment of numbers 7-8 and 9
by the Council of State through Ruling 4660/12.

On 21 March 2013, the Communications Authority (AX®@) unanimously approved the New
Automatic Numbering Plan for digital terrestrialei@sion (LCN) by Decision 237/13/CONS.
The decision confirmed, for national traditionab&dcasters, the assignment of numbers 0-9 of
the first block of LCN numbering (see p. 39-40 d@ddof AGCOM Decision no. 237/13/CONS).
Deeming that the New Plan evaded the Council oteStaruling (given that it confirmed
assignment to the national traditional broadcastéraumbers 0-9 in the first block of LCN
numbering), Telenorba filed an appeal for compleamath ruling n. 4660/12. The appeal was
upheld by the Council of State (ruling no. 602116fDecember 2013), which declared the New
Numbering Plan void (pursuant to Resolution 2378G&r numbers from 8 to 9, and appointed a
special commissioner tasked with verifying the eotrrassignment of numbers from 8 to 9 within
90 days from the beginning of the proceedings, Wistarted on 24 February 2014. However,
since the partial annulment of the previous Platiaity included number 7, on initiation of the
procedure, the special commissioner - inappropyidatethe opinion of La7 - also referred to
number 7, which instead, under the Ruling, is niject to verification by the Commissioner.
AGCOM has in the meantime re-extended the previtlaa (based on current assignments), as
also suggested in the State Council’s ruling, tteoto avoid a regulatory void.

In execution of ruling no. 6021, the Special Consigiser launched a public consultation on an
outline provision named "Automatic numbering pldrdiital terrestrial free-to-air and pay TV
channels, procedures for allocating numbers teigess of audiovisual services authorized to
broadcast audiovisual content using digital ter@sechnology and relating conditions of use."
Telenorba, All Music and AGCOM have challenged #Huts adopted by the Commissioner,
lodging enforcement reviews and claims before tteeSCouncil (the court of compliance),
arguing that the Commissioner had exceeded theresgents of sentence no. 6021 of 2013.
Following orders n. 5041, 5127 and 5859 of 2014leunwhich the Council of State has given the
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Commissioner certain regulations to discharge dkk, tthe Commissioner adopted a new outline
provision (no. 7 of 2014), accompanied by an exgtiary report.

The parties to the proceedings and the Commissioaes heard in personal hearings before the
President of the Panel and the Judge-Rapportetlieoassessments made by the Commissioner
in the acts recently adopted.

The Commissioner has yet to complete his task fgxpicurrently set on 20 May 2015), while
the Council of State has yet to rule on the enfoera reviews and claims lodged by Telenorba,
All Music and AGCOM.

In the opinion of La7 and its legal advisers, ghti of the task discharged by the Commissioner
and the orders of the State Council, further assests by the State Council on number 7 are

unlikely to be made, nor will the allocation ofgsmumber to La7 be challenged.

Liquidity risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed toidiify risk, in that on one hand, significant
financial resources are held, with a net availgasitive financial position of Euro 124 million
whilst on the other hand, it generates positiveltesn its traditional segments, and can finance
its current operations within the dynamics of itsrent assets, even in the current market. An
analysis of the company’'s equity structure showth dmuidity, or the ability to maintain
financial stability in the short term, and solidity the ability to maintain financial stability the
medium/long term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amwhand or short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in bankimgdycts, with the prime objective of
maintaining a ready liquidity of the said investrt®emhe investment products are selected on the

basis of their credit rating, their reliability atite quality of services rendered.

Interest rate and currency risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed ter@dt rate and currency risk, in that on one
hand, there is no loan finance, while on the ott@nd, Group operations are carried out
exclusively in ltaly, so all revenue is generatedtaly and main costs are incurred in Euro.
Interest rate risk only affects the yield on avalgacash.

Movements in the cash flows and the liquidity ob@y companies are centrally monitored and
managed by Group Treasury in order to guaranteectefé and efficient management of

financial resources.
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Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd &OREX risk, the Group limited use of
financial hedging instruments, to hedge currensl an the acquisition of TV rights from film

studios.

Credit risks

The Group is exposed to credit risk, primarily atation to its advertising sales activities. This
risk is however mitigated by the fact that exposigdistributed across a large number of
customers and that credit monitoring and contradcpdures are in place. In terms of
concentration, the top 10 customers represent appately 12% (15% in 2013) of total sales,
whilst the top 100 customers represent 54% (5820i8B).

The persisting uncertainty factors in the short arlium term, along with the resulting credit
squeeze, may of course impact negatively the guaflitredit and general payment terms.

The publishing segment, on the other hand, presiemited exposure to credit risk as publishing
revenue is basically generated by one single pdhg Group - while for distribution revenue, the
distribution contract provides for an advance paynagual to a highly significant percentage of
the estimated sales of each magazine.

The Group’s maximum theoretical exposure to craditis at 31 December 2014 is given by the
carrying amount of trade receivables and other geieged current assets totaling Euro 88.3
million (98.4 million at 31 December 2013), andthg nominal amount of guarantees given on

third-party debts or commitments as indicated ite\8b to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit risks associated with cash and castvalguits, with a maximum theoretical exposure
of Euro 149.1 million (Euro 172.9 million at 31 Bmuber 2013), are considered irrelevant as

they are deposits spread across various banks.

Risks associated with litigation

The notes on dther informatiori (Note 35 to the consolidated financial statempgictantain
information on a number of cases of litigation. Thaluation of the potential legal and tax
liabilities requires the Company to use estimates assumptions in relation to forecasts made
by the Directors, based upon the opinions exprelsgéde Company'’s legal and tax advisers, in
relation to the probable cost that can be reasgranisidered to be incurred. The actual results

may vary from these estimates

Report on corporate governance and ownership struare

1 Issuer profile

Cairo Communication has adopted a traditional sysiBadministration and control.
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The Shareholders are the corporate body that esggdabe will of the shareholders through its
resolutions at its meeting. It typically appoirtte IChairman.

The Board of Directors has the broadest managepmwrs to achieve corporate objects, within

the rules, including self-regulatory rules, thatplsp Elected every three years at the
Shareholders’ Meeting, it appoints one or more Chieecutive Officers and determines their
powers, and those of the Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee and the Control and Rmittee, set up within the Board of

Directors, comprise members of the Board of Dinectand provide consultative and proposal-
making functions to the Board of Directors. The ibednow also include the Related Party
Committee, provided for by the procedures for exlgparty transactions adopted in 2010. For
the following reasons, it was deemed not to esthladin Appointment Committee.

The Board of Statutory Auditors is the body witle flunctions of overseeing observance of the

law and the company bylaws and management control.

The audit process is entrusted to an Audit Firnisteged in the relevant professional roll and is
the Company’s external control body. The Firm clset¢kroughout the year, that the company’s
accounts are kept properly and that accountingesrdccurately reflect its operation. It is also it
responsibility to ensure that the separate and odiolated financial statements match the
accounting entries and verifications performed, tinad these accounting documents conform to
the governing rules.

The duties and methods of operating of these catpdiodies are governed by the law and
regulations, by the company bylaws and by the dmwsadopted by relevant bodies, in
conformity with the regulations set forth in the r@arate Governance Code drawn up by the
Corporate Governance Committee of Borsa ItaliapadSin July 2014.

The company bylaws are available at the registefide and in the corporate governance

section on the Company’s website www.cairocommuitinat.

2 Information on ownership structure (pursuant to at. 123 bis, paragraph 1 of the
Consolidated Finance Act — TUF) at 13 March 2015

a) Share capital structure (pursuant to art. 123daisagraph 1, letter a), T.U.F.)

At 13 March 2015, the share capital of Cairo Comication S.p.A. was Euro 4,073,856.80,

fully paid and subscribed, and it comprised 78,8@3,shares, with no indication of the nominal

amount.
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N° shares % of share capital Listed Rights and
obligations

Star segment of BorsaIn accordance with
Ordinary shares 78,343,400 100% ltaliana the law and
company by-laws

No financial instruments have been issued attmiguthe right to subscribe to newly-issued

shares.
No share incentive plans are foreseen involvingesbapital increases, even on a freely allocated

basis.

b) Restrictions on transfer (pursuant to art. 123 dmsagraph 1, letter b), T.U.F.)

There are no restrictions on the transfer of sdeariexcept as required by the provisions of
representation, legitimization, circulation of teempany investment required for securities

traded on regulated markets.

c) Significant shareholdings (pursuant to art. 123 jesagraph 1, letter c), T.U.F.)
At 13 March 2015, based on the information receipedsuant to art. 120 of the T.U.F. and the

update of the shareholders’ register, the princgbereholders in Cairo Communication S.p.A.

were as follows:

Declarer Direct shareholder % %
of ordinary of voting
capital capital
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO  U.T. COMMUNICATIONS SpA 44.812% 44.812%
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO U.T. BELGIUM HOLDING S.A. 15.710% 15.710%
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO 12.387% 12.387%

d) Securities carrying special rights (pursuant to 28 bis, paragraph 1, letter d), T.U.F.)

No securities carrying special controlling rights/a been issued.

e) Employee shareholdings: voting right proceduressfpant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 1,
letter e), T.U.F.)

There are no employee shareholdings and/or voiggsr procedures.

f) Restrictions on voting rights (pursuant to art. b3 paragraph 1, letter f), T.U.F.)
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There are no restrictions on voting rights othantthose provided by law.

Q) Shareholders’ agreements (pursuant to art. 12®aiagraph 1, letter g), T.U.F.)

No shareholders’ agreements are in place pursaant.t122 of the T.U.F.

h) Change of control clauses (pursuant to art. 123daisagraph 1, letter h), T.U.F.) and

by-law provisions on takeover bids (pursuant tackes$ 104, paragraph 1 ter, and 104
bis).

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have signedigoificant agreements that come into

effect, are altered or terminate in the event dfi@ange in the control of the contracting entity.

As explained in the notes to the statements inctmsolidated financial statements (Note 28),

the bank loan of Euro 25 million, granted by UnaiteS.p.A. in July 2014 to Cairo Network

S.r.l. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) for the purchasfethe rights to use television frequencies,

provides for early repayment in the event of a geanf control of Cairo Network.

Moreover, the bylaws:

- do not depart from the provisions on the passiuitg provided by art. 104, paragraphs 1
and 2, of the TUF;

- do not provide for the enforcement of the neutation rule set out in art. 104 bis,

paragraphs 2 and 3, of the TUF.

i) Delegations to increase share capital and authimizao acquire and dispose of

treasury shares (pursuant to art. 123 bis, parhdrajetter m), T.U.F.)

There are no delegations to increase the sharéataprsuant to art. 2443 of the ltalian Civil
Code or to issue equity financial instruments.

At their meeting on 29 April 2014, after revokingianilar resolution adopted on 29 April 2013,
the Shareholders approved the proposal to acqndedspose of treasury shares in accordance
with art. 2357 and subsequent articles of thedtaivil Code, for the purpose of stabilizing the
Company share price and sustaining liquidity, ammddeemed necessary by the Board of
Directors, through an independent intermediaryesifiblishing a “shares stock” as provided in
Consob regulation 16839/2009. The Board was awhdrio acquire treasury shares up to the
maximum number permitted by law, for a period ofi@nths from the date of authorization, by
use of available reserves, including the share jpmanmreserve, as resulting from the last
approved annual financial statements. Specificétlg Board of Directors will be authorized to

acquire treasury shares on one or more occasioggjrimg shares directly on the market and
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through authorized intermediary — in accordancé whie procedures provided by art. 144 bis,
paragraph 1, letter b of the Issuer Regulation \slevant Instructions — and, in case such
operations are carried out, according to acceptarkeh practices, pursuant to the regulations
introduced by Consob Resolution No. 16839/2009.itim price and maximum acquisition
price per share are set at an amount equal tovidrage official purchase price of the share on
Borsa ltaliana S.p.A. for the 15 working days pdicg the purchase, respectively reduced or
increased by 20%. In case such operations areedantit according to accepted market practices
under Consob Resolution 16839/2009, the purchaseadury shares shall be subject to further
limits, including price limits, provided thereinh& Board was authorized to sell, on one or more
occasions, any acquired treasury shares, settengithimum sale price per share no lower than
the minimum price calculated following the critedaopted for their purchase. Should the
treasury shares be sold according to accepted marieetices under Consob Resolution
16839/2009, the sale of treasury shares shall beatuo further limits, including price limits,
provided therein. A similar authorization for ather period of 18 months will be proposed at
the Shareholders’ Meeting, whose calling was apmtdwy the meeting of the Board of Directors

approving this Report.

In 2014, as part of the share buy-back plans, emstiry shares were sold or purchased. At 31
December 2014, Cairo Communication held a total.of79 treasury shares, or 0.001% of the
share capital, subject to art. 2357-ter of thaedtaCivil Code.

)] Management and coordination

Cairo Communication, though subject to rightful woh by U.T. Communication S.p.A. —

which is directly controlled by Urbano R. Cairo s mot subject to the management and
coordination of such company, nor of any othertgnfrhe Board of Directors of Cairo

Communication has come to such conclusion takimg@t of the absence of further elements
(with respect to mere control) that may lean towahe existence of a unitary direction and the
circumstance that UT Communication S.p.A. is, dadaa holding company and has never
actually exercised any policy-making functions andhterference in the management of the

Issuer, restricting its activities to the managenuéiits own controlling investment.

*%k%k

It should be noted that information prescribed hy. 423-bis, paragraph letter (i)
(*agreements between the Company and the direct@sibers of the management board or

supervisory board providing for indemnity in theeevof resignation or unjust dismissal ..is”

37



found in the section on the Directors’ Fees ref®ect. 9), and that there is no information to

disclose under art. 123-bis, paragragbtter (I).

3 Compliance (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragrapl2, letter a), T.U.F.)

The Cairo Communication Group has adopted a Compo@overnance Code for listed
companies, amended in July 2014 by the Corporate@ance Committee and promoted by
Borsa Italiana, published on the website of Borsataliaha at
http://www.borsaitaliana.it/comitato-corporate-govence/codice/2014clean.pdf

No Group company is subject to non-Italian law tatild influence the structure of Corporate

Governance.

4 Board of Directors

4.1 Appointment and replacement of directors and céinges to the bylaws (pursuant to
art. 123 bis, paragraph 1, letter h), T.U.F.)

The Board of Directors is appointed by the Shamdrsl on the basis of lists presented by

shareholders pursuant to articles 14 and 15 dfylevs.

Under the bylaws:

- lists must be filed with the registered office viithhe 25th day before the date on which the
Shareholders’ Meeting is called to decide on theoagment of the members of the Board
of Directors, and made available to the publiche tegistered office, on the Company
website and in accordance with the procedures geovfor by the law and regulations, at
least 21 days before the date of the Meeting;

- lists admitted to the voting are those submittedslgreholders who, either individually or
jointly with other shareholders, represent at 1€a8% of the shares entitled to vote in the
ordinary meeting, or other minimum amount set byigad, which was set at an amount
equal to 2.5% by resolution 19109 of 28 Januaryb20@wnership of the minimum stake
required for submission of the lists is determioedhe basis of the shares recorded in the
name of the shareholder on the date the lists ikr@ With the Company. The relevant
prescribed certification may also be submitted sgbent to the filing, provided submission
iIs made within the time limit prescribed for publiion of the lists;

- candidates shall appear in the lists in sequeat@ddr and shall be in a number no higher
than the maximum amount of directors provided unidehbylaws (eleven);

- each list must contain candidates possessing tlugreenents of independence referred to in
art. 147-ter, paragraph 4, of the TUF, and furtleguirements set forth in the Corporate

Governance Code of Borsa ltaliana S.p.A., in thaimmim amount established by the
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provisions of law and regulations, taking also iattrount the share listing segment, and
where the number of candidates is equal to or higten three, the minimum number of
candidates of the less represented gender undepfiieable law and regulations in force;

in order to be admitted to the voting, each lisstrhe accompanied by detailed information
on the professional and personal qualificationthefcandidates (including gender), by the
statement on possession of the requirements opéamtkence prescribed by law and by
further requirements set forth in the Corporate &oance Code of Borsa Italiana S.p.A.,
and by indication of the identity of the sharehaodderho have submitted the lists and total
percentage of shares held;

for the purposes of the appointment of the diregtaccount is taken exclusively of lists that
have received at least half the votes establishigbebbylaws for the submission of lists;
Should more than one list receive at least halfubies as required by the bylaws for
submission of the lists, candidates appointed & ghsition of director shall be those
appearing in the list that has received the higineshber of votes, except for the last
candidate appearing in the list and the candidpfmeaing on top of the list that has
received the second-highest number of votes thiat m® way, even indirectly, connected
with the shareholders that have submitted or vaétedlist that has received the highest
number of votes, subject to the possession ofdhairements of independence set forth in
art. 148, paragraphs 3 and 4 of the TUF and ohéurtrequirements set forth in the
Corporate Governance Code of Borsa Italiana S.fafing which the appointed candidate,
in his/her place, shall be the first candidate appg in sequential order on the list
possessing the foregoing requirements of indepedeBhould two or more lists reach a
tie, the prevailing list shall be the list possegdgihe largest shareholding or, in the event of
a tie, the highest number of shareholders. Shonlg one list be submitted or should one
list obtain a number of votes equal to at least thed votes set out in the bylaws for the
submission of a list, all the directors shall bavan from that list. Should no list obtain the
percentage of votes set out in the above paragfipiis article, all directors shall be drawn
from the list that has obtained the highest nunalbentes;

according to the above procedure, should the nurmbeéirectors of the less represented
gender be less than the requirements of the laicr@e, as many candidates as necessary,
elected among those who have come last in the ofdeneference in the majority list shall
be excluded, replacing them with the candidatessggsing the necessary gender
characteristics drawn from the same list, basethersequential order of listing. Should this

procedure fail to complete the number of directorglect, the missing directors shall be
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immediately elected, in compliance with gender nemments — by the Shareholders’
Meeting through a resolution passed by simple ntgjon the proposal of the attending
shareholders;

- should no list be submitted or admitted, the doecshall be elected by the Shareholders’
Meeting by relative majority vote, in compliancethvihe regulations in force on the less
represented gender, in the context of the nominatgubmitted by the shareholders and
filed with the registered office at least sevensdagfore the date set for the Shareholders’
Meeting on first call, together with the full infotion referred to in paragraph seven of
this article.

Mention must be made, for the purposes set forthri. 123 bis, paragraph 1, letter (I) of the
T.U.F. that, pursuant to art. 21, paragraph 2 efltjlaws, without prejudice to the competence
of the Shareholders at their Extraordinary Meetiwgp have the authority to decide on the
matter, pursuant to art. 2365 of the Italian C@4lde, the Board of Directors is authorizeder
alia, to adopt resolutions concerning merger, in theesaet forth in articles 2505 and 2506

of the lItalian Civil Code, capital reduction in thevent of shareholder withdrawal,
harmonization of the bylaws to mandatory provisiohfaw, relocation of the registered office

to other premises in Italy.

Succession planning

To date, the Board has not adopted any succeskioa pegarding the executive directors. The
Board of Directors is, in any event, the body emped to prepare and manage early
replacement.

4.2 Composition (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragnah 2, letter d), T.U.F.)
At their meeting on 29 April 2014:
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Board of Directors Control and Remuneration Related Party
Risk Committee | Committee Committee
Role Members Year of Date of first From Until List Exec. | Non exec. Indep. ag Indep. as N. other % (**) *) (**) I*) **) *)
birth appointment bl per Code | per TUF posts
Chairman® | Urbano Cairo 1957 09/07/1997 01/01 31/12 M X - - - 6/6 - - - |- -
CEO Uberto Fornara 1959 22/04/199¢ 01/01  31/12 M X - - - - 6/6 - - - - |- -
Director’ | Marco Pompignoli 1967 23/05/2003 01/01 31/12 M X - - - - 6/6 - - - - |- -
Director Laura Maria Cairo 1973 29/04/2014 29/04 1/12 M - X - - 4/4
Director Roberto Cairo 1965 22/04/1999 01/01 31/12 M - X - - - 6/6 - - - - |- -
Director | Antonio Magnocavallo 1937 31/05/200¢ aifo 31/12 M - X - - - 6/6 M 4/4 P 213 - -
Director | Stefania Petruccioli 1967 29/04/2014 29/0 31/12 M - X X X 1 4/4 M (from | N/A | M (from | N/A
14/05/14) 14/05/14)
Director | Roberto Rezzonico 1941 20/11/2000 01/01 /131 M - X X X - 6/6 P 4/4 M 2/2| M (until | 1/2
14/05/14)
Director | Mauro Sala 1944 28/04/2011 01/p1 31/12 M - X X X - 6/6 M 4/4 - - | M 1/1
Director ° | Marco Janni 1937 31/05/2000 01/p1 31/12 M - X X X 3 6/6 - - M (until | 2/2 | P 1/1
14/05/14)
N. of meetings held in 2014: BoD: 6 CRC: 4 RC: 2 RPC: 1

Quorum required for the submission of lists by noneontrolling interests for the appointment of one ormore members: 2.5%

Notes:

Regarding the symbols appearing in the “Positiaitimn:
" This symbol indicates the director in chargehef internal control and risk management system.
¢ This symbol indicates the key person in chargieimanagement of the Issuer (Chief Executive &ffix CEO).
° This symbol indicates the Lead Independent Dare(itiD).

* Date of first appointment of each director me#iresdate on which each director was appointedhfefitst time (ever) in the Board of Directors loétlssuer.
** This column indicates M/m depending on whethe director was elected by the majority (M), mityo(m) list or BoD (BoD) list.
*** This column indicates number of directorships statutory auditor positions held in other compariisted on either national or foreign stock exdfes, including finance companies, banks and

insurance companies, or of major companies. IiRég@ort on Corporate Governance, positions are slirofurl.

(*)This column indicates the participation per@age of directors to the BoD and committee meet{ngsf times present/n. of meetings held durirgrtterm, for instance 6/8; 8/8, etc.).
(**).This column indicates the position of the bdamember in the Committee : “C": Chairman; “M”": Mésr.
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Specifically, at their meeting on 29 April 2014:
- the Shareholders appointed for a three-year peuiaiil, approval of the financial statements

at 31 December 2016, on the basis of the sindieissented by the majority shareholder,

UT Communications S.p.A., approved with a favousalite by 75.97% of the share capital,

the Board of Directors of the company composed of:

o three Executive Directors: the Chairman Urbano &;alberto Fornara and Marco

Pompignoli,

o three Non-Executive Directors: Laura Maria Cairotémo Magnocavallo and Roberto

Cairo and

o four independent directors: Marco Janni, StefarggUcioli, Mauro Sala and Roberto

Rezzonico.
Urbano Cairo is the founder of the Group and hddtkegrowth and development. A graduate
in business administration from the Bocconi Uniitgrshe has significant experience in the
publishing and advertising segments. He starteckimgrwith Fininvest in 1982. He went to
work for Publitalia '80 in 1985, where he was apped Deputy-General Manager in 1990. In
1991 he was appointed as managing director of Mawril@ubblicitd. In December 1995 he
founded Cairo Pubblicita, which initiated its distrtorship activity for a number of RCS Group
magazines. He has therefore been the main leadéndo&€airo Communication Group’s
growth, whose main phases are associated with 988 acquisition of the company Telepiu
Pubblicita, followed by Cairo TV, dedicated PAY TN&tributor, the February 1999 acquisition
of Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori, Cairo Communicatig listing in 2000, the contract for the
exclusive rights for the sale of advertising spand_a7 at the end of 2002, the birth of Cairo
Editore in 2003 and his subsequent activity in tliag successful new publishing initiatives
(launch of “For Men Magazine” and “Natural Stylei R003, “Settimanale Dipiu” in 2004,
“Dipiu TV” and “Diva e Donna” in 2005, “TV Mia” in2008, “Settimanale Nuovo” and weekly
magazine “F” in 2012, “Settimanale Giallo” in 2013nd the acquisition of La7 in 2013,
which marks the entry in the TV publishing field.
Uberto Fornara is a graduate in business admitiegirédrom the Bocconi University, and has
worked within the Group since its inception, havprgviously gained significant experience in
the publishing segment with Publitalia ‘80 from 898nd then in Mondadori Pubblicita, of
which he was appointed Director of Customer Serwicel994. He is also CEO of Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A.
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Marco Pompignoli was appointed as Chief Financi#ficér in June 2000 and is Financial

Reporting Manager of Cairo Communication S.p.A.i¢la graduate in business administration
and has previously worked in leading audit firmesyihg gained experience in Italy and abroad.

- Laura Maria Cairo, sister of Urbano Cairo. A graté in law, she has worked with several law

firms in Milan and Alessandria, gaining experieit®ankruptcy, civil and corporate law; since
2006, she has practised as a lawyer in Alessandria.
Roberto Cairo, Urbano Cairo’s brother, is an gmeeeur in real-estate brokerage through Il
Metro Immobiliare, with offices in Milan and in Ligia.

Antonio Magnocavallo has been a civil and corpotaigyer in Milan since 1961 and is

currently in a partnership (Magnocavallo e Assagiatle is presently board member of
Fondazione Gruppo Credito Valtellinese and chairwiega number of well-known foundations
and associations. He has provided legal assistamteonsultancy to the Cairo Communication

Group since 1998.

Stefania Petruccioli, a graduate in business adtration from the Bocconi University - where

she worked until 2004 as an adjunct and assistafégsor - chartered accountant, has gained
significant experience as a manager and partnananagement companies specializing in
private equity and venture capital. She is curyeftlund manager in Principia SGR and

independent director in the listed company De Loi&p.A.

Marco Janni, graduated in civil procedural law B6Q and was assistant to the chair of civil
procedural law at the University of Milan. He isadunsel at the NCTM law firm, which deals

with civil, commercial and corporate law. He wadit@ctor in large banking groups.

Roberto Rezzonico, chartered accountant, is cuyréthairman of the Board of Statutory

Auditors or statutory auditor in a number of impartindustrial groups.

Mauro Sala, chartered accountant and auditor, judgthe Regional Tax Commission of
Lombardy from 1996 to 2007, is currently Chairménhe board of statutory auditors, statutory

auditor and/or director of a number of companies.

At its meeting approving this Report, the Boardabkshed the following general criteria on the

maximum number of administrative and control posisi in other companies considered

compatible with the effective performance of thie maf director of the Issuer:

. executive directors may not hold any other exeeutbffice, or, in any case, be
appointed as statutory auditors in other compdist=i on regulated markets, financial

companies, banks, insurance companies or major awieg and may hold up to five
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non-executive positions in such companies;

. non-executive directors may hold up to five exaur statutory auditor positions in
other companies listed on regulated markets, fiehrcompanies, banks, insurance
companies or major companies, up to eight non-aék&cpositions in such companies
and, in any case, up to a total of fifteen pos#ijon

. independent directors, without prejudice to theitBnset for non-executive directors,
which also apply to independent directors, may haja to eight positions as
independent director in other companies listed egulated markets, financial
companies, banks, insurance companies or major e

major companies meaning those where at least twiheffollowing parameters have been

exceeded: turnover above Euro 500 million, emplsya&igove 500 units, balance sheet assets

above Euro 50 million, excluding from the calcwaticompanies in which the Company (or its
parent) holds a controlling and/or relevant intergs set out in art. 177 of the Issuers’

Regulations).

The directors of Cairo Communication hold no otpesition in companies listed on regulated

markets, financial companies, banks, insurance aaiep or major companies, except for

Stefania Petruccioli, who is director in De Lon@p.a., and Marco Janni, who is chairman of

CO.MO.I. SIM S.p.A. and of Intesa Lease SEC Sgdmpanies that are not part of the Group to

which the Issuer belongs.

Given the directors' vast knowledge of the Compamy their wealth of experience in the specific
areas of operation of the Cairo Communication Gragpwell as the personal and professional
background of each member of the Board of Directitre Board of Directors did not deem it
necessary to have them attend (induction progriotpwing appointment and during their term
of office, initiatives to provide them with adegedtnowledge of the area of operation of the

Issuer, of company dynamics and evolution, as agthe relevant regulatory framework.

4.3 Role of the Board of Directors (art. 123 bigparagraph 2, letter d), T.U.F.)
In 2014, the Board of Directors met 6 times. Thaf8lomeetings lasted an average of 2 hours.

Six meetings are planned for the current year, hawe already been held at 13 March 2015.

To ensure that the Directors be prepared, all teeighents and information on the facts taken
into consideration by the Board are sent to thesmevimail in reasonable advance (at least two
days in advance, a term which, save for urgendgesisually met) before the date of the

meeting. The term was generally met in 2014. Ireottases, the Chairman ensured necessary
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and appropriate analysis at Board meetings. At @oagetings, the items on the agenda were
given the necessary time to allow an effective uson, while the directors were encouraged

to give their own contribution.

The Board of Directors holds the power to (i) pa®d, sell or exchange company branches, and
companies for amounts in excess of Euro 10 millind (ii) the power to furnish guarantees and
endorsements for amounts in excess of Euro 5 millldhese powers, or the following powers,
cannot be delegated to individual directors:
a) review and approval of company strategic, busimedmancial plans or those relating
to the Cairo Communication Group, and regular nuoiniyy of their implementation;
b) Group’s system of corporate governance and streicdnd, specifically, definition of
the nature and level of risk consistent with thiatsgic objectives of the Issuer;
€) granting or revocation of powers to managing doest
d) review and approval of (i) extraordinary transaasioand (ii) transactions involving a
potential conflict of interest.
The Board of Directors has also identified the Bigant transactions which may only be

reviewed and approved by the Board.

Such transactions have been identified and defistadting with the term “transaction” which

has been taken to mean:

i) disposals of intangible assets or property, plaat @quipment, even those with no

related cost or payment;

ii) granting of either temporary or permanent rightkatieg to intangible assets

(trademarks, brands, copyrights, databases, etc.);

iii) provision of work or services;
iv) granting or obtaining of loans and guarantees\{itioly letters of patronage);
V) any other action pertaining to property rights.

Significant transactions are those that must belatied to the market in accordance with art.
114 of the Consolidated Finance Act, by their rgtuprocedure or the nature of the
counterparty, or those with a value of over Eurondilion. The signing of advertising sales
contracts, the Company’s typical activity, is neethed a significant transaction if it does not
involve cost commitments or other financial comnatits beyond the granting of a percentage

of the revenue generated by the contract to theanwaher.
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With regard to regulations, these transactionseatuded from the powers conferred on the
Directors and as such are subject to prior apprbyahe Board of Directors. If the Board of
Directors cannot meet, for reasons of time pressur®ther particular circumstances, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Compaag carry out the transaction pending the

approval of the Board of Directors which would threeet at the earliest possible opportunity.

Significant related party transactions - as desdribelow in paragraph 1ZRélated party
transactions - are also reserved to the exclusive competefichkeoBoard of Directors of the

Company and cannot be delegated.
During the year, the Board:

- evaluated the appropriateness of the organizatiaamhinistrative and general accounting
structure of the company and of its strategicathpadrtant subsidiaries (based on their
contribution to Group profits and revenue, Cairdt@e S.p.A., La7 S.r.l., Cairo Pubblicita
S.p.A. and Cairo Publishing S.r.l.), with partiautaference to the internal control and risk
management system and the management of confliciaterest; such valuation was
undertaken on the basis of information and evidegathered through investigation
performed by the Control and Risk Committee anaubh contribution by Company

Management and the internal audit manager,

- evaluated the general management trend, takingcplart account of information received

from the bodies responsible, in addition to commaresults achieved with forecasts.

At its meeting on 14 May 2014, the Board of Direstoarried out an evaluation on the size,

composition and role of the Board of Directorslftaad of its committees, noting that:

- the size of the Board of Directors (ten memberghasbylaws require from five to eleven
members) appears adequate, taking into consider#ti® size and nature of corporate
activities;

- the composition of the Board of Directors, conditgrthat the three executive directors,
with specific experience in company management,anghom in finance, are supported
by seven non-executive directors, of whom three lawwyers, three are chartered

accountants, four of whom independent, is appragria

- the role of the Board of Directors and its Comnaisteas shown in the above table, appears
consistent with the size and nature of corporatevines with sufficient delegation of

powers granted to the Chairman and to one otheugixe director.
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The Board did not resort to external consultanizetdorm self-evaluation.

At their Meeting on 29 April 2014, the shareholdezsolved to exempt candidates elected to
the position of board member from competition iestms under art. 2390 of the Italian Civil

Code for the duration of their term.

4.4 Executive directors

Given the size of the Group and Parent Companypitfi@ executive and managerial powers,
except those to (i) purchase or relocate compaagdhres or companies for amounts in excess
of Euro 10 million and (ii) to provide guarantedsewery kind to third parties and for amounts
in excess of Euro 5 million, without prejudice, any case, to the competences of the Board
regarding significant transactions and decisiormd tannot be delegated, as identified by the
Board and mentioned above, and regarding signifit@msactions with related parties, are
entrusted to the Chairman Urbano Cairo, who igithen person in charge of defining corporate

strategies and management (chief executive officer)

Director Uberto Fornara is entrusted with the redeand development of activities regarding
the sale of advertising space and/or advertisirakdyage (except for initiatives requesting
commitments and obligations by the Issuer), manageérof the development of advertising
sales, in accordance with the guidelines approwedhe Board or by the Chairman, and

management of staff and the sales network involvedivertising sales.

Director Marco Pompignoli is responsible for ovelisg and supervising the Group’s
administration, finance and management controltfans, which include the power to manage
and coordinate the activities of staff workingliwese areas and to coordinate the activities of the

Issuer’s legal and tax consultants.

The Chairman is also the controlling shareholdeCa@fo Communication. He does not hold the

position of director in any other issuer, therefexeluding cases of interlocking directorate.

The executive directors have provided appropriaté regular information every three months

to the Board and to the Statutory Auditors. Thered executive committee.
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45 Other executive directors

There are no other executive directors. None efrnbn-executive directors i) are CEO or
executive chairman in a subsidiary of strategievahce of the Issuer or ii) hold executive

positions in the Issuer or in a subsidiary of sigat relevance or in the Parent.

4.6 Independent directors

Marco Janni, Stefania Petruccioli, Roberto Rezzmnemd Mauro Sala are independent

directors.

As disclosed to the market on 14 May 2014, sooer dffteir appointment, during the meeting of
14 May 2014, the Board of Directors and Board @ft@bry Auditors verified that they met the
requirements to be deemed independent directorspgnt to art.148, paragraph 3, Legislative
Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998, and to the sules# requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code issued by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.

Specifically, with regard to the verification ofetlindependence requirements of Directors Marco
Janni, Roberto Rezzonico (directors of the comgangver nine years out of the last twelve) and
of Mauro Sala (statutory auditor of the companydwer nine years out of the last twelve), the
Board, given the recurrence of the requirementsadpendence under art. 148, paragraph 3, of
the TUF, and non-recurrence of the most typicabsasgarding absence of independence listed
in application criterion 3.C.1 of the Corporate 8mance Code (letters from a) to h), except for
sub e) (under which, as a rule, a director of ands who has held this position for over nine
years out of the last twelve years is deemed ndietdndependefj; given the non-binding
naturé - for the purposes of attributing the requirerseott independence — of the application
criteria, considering in general terms the absefabjective and unambiguous elements proving
the existence of particular relations with the é&sor with subjects linked with the Issuer (such as

the majority shareholder, etc.) and, in particular:

! It should be noted, however, that the criteriorardgng duration in office for over nine years hagtv regularly disregarded by
other listed companies that have adopted the Catp@overnance Code for Listed Companies. See 0t8al Report 2013 - 1st
report on application of the Corporate Governanede; prepared by the Corporate Governance ComnoittBersa Italiana S.p.A.

2 |n 2011, the company had decided to request aroopon the matter from Prof. Matteo Rescigno, futifessor of commercial law

at the University of Milan
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(i) the absence of commercial, professional or persoslations between Marco Janni,
Roberto Rezzonico and Mauro Sala, on the one sidd, the Issuer, and companies
belonging to the same group and the controllingneay on the other, and

(i) the acknowledged professional and moral qualitfeshe directors in question, renowned
professionals with their own businesses;

(i) the minor impact of remuneration decided by ther&8ialders to the Board of Directors,
which includes remuneration for the participatidrcertain directors in the committees as
per law and the bylaws, on the overall amount effédes of these directors; in the amounts
that Director Marco Pompignoli reports to the Bqaad resulting from the information
provided by the persons involved,

(iv) given also the interest of the Company to still ilaviself of the directors’ specific
experience and in-depth knowledge of the Compaimyier workings gained during their
term in its various bodies,

confirmed the recurrence of the independence reaugnt of the foregoing directors.

With regard to the independence of Stefania Pawlicfollowing evaluation of the recurrence of
the independence requirements under art. 148, rzgrfa@, of the TUF, and non-recurrence of the
most typical cases regarding absence of indeperdested in application criterion 3.C.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code (letters from a) to dnsidering in general terms the absence of
objective and unambiguous elements proving theenge of particular relations with the Issuer
or with subjects linked with the Issuer (such ae thajority shareholder, etc.), the Board

confirmed the existence of the independence reapaing of this director.

The Board of Statutory Auditors formally acknowledgand verified the correct application of

the criteria adopted by the Board of Directorswvaleate the independence of its members.

The number of independent directors and their fancire deemed appropriate in relation to the
size of the Board of Directors and the Company'sivdies, and such as to allow the
establishment of the Remuneration, Control and Rigk Related Party Committees (for further

information, see § 8 and § 10 and § 12 below).

During the year, the independent directors, in timldito meeting regularly as members of the
Related Party Committee, held informal discussimmsarious occasions without reporting any

situation requiring clarification or further disaisn.

The Directors who, in the lists for the appointmehthe Board, have indicated their eligibility
to qualify as independent, have committed to resgym the event of a subsequent loss of these

requirements.
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4.7 Lead Independent Director

Given that the Chairman of the Board of Directardn actual fact, the main person responsible
for the management of the company (chief executffecer) and is also the controlling

shareholder of the company, the Board of Directested an independent director, Marco
Janni, as Lead Independent Director, to whom natetkve directors report, for an increased
contribution to the activities and role of the Biafhe Lead Independent Director works
together with the Chairman to guarantee that trecttirs receive a complete and timely flow of
information. In addition, he has the power to calhether autonomously or on the request of
other directors, appropriate meetings of independimectors for the discussion of issues
deemed of being in the interest of the role ofBbard of Directors or of the management of the

company.

5 Treatment of privileged information

Under the provisions regarding treatment of priyélé information, the Company established a
register of persons (physical persons, legal estitir associations) who, through their work or
professional dealings or the function they carry on behalf of the Issuer, have regular or
occasional access to privileged information (&R-bis), which is constantly updated (art. 152-

ter). All relevant persons have been fully infornadmbut the establishment of this register.

The Company also enacted the regulations whiclgptacement of the self-regulation included
in the Code of Conduct on Insider Dealing, pladestsdisclosure obligations on “relevant
persons” of listed companies in relation to shaadihg carried out by them or persons closely
linked to them.

In addition, the Company banned “relevant persomsth binding effect, from trading in
Company shares or related financial instrumentdngogurchase, sale, subscription or
exchange, either directly or through a third padyring the 15 days ahead of any meeting
called to approve the financial statements for plesiod. The exercise of stock options or option
rights relating to financial instruments (in anyseacurrently not in progress) is not included in
the ban. The sale of shares derived from stocloogians, including sales carried out as part of
the exercise of options, is also exempt. The k&ins, however, do not apply to exceptional
situations which are subjectively necessary andagpately motivated in the interest of the

Company.

50



The Company also has a procedure in place fornatananagement and the publication of

documents and confidential information, particylgetice sensitive information governed by

the following directives:

a)

b)

C)

d)

f)

Confidential information (Information) is taken neean every piece of information and
news which relates to Cairo Communication S.p.Be €Eompany) and its subsidiaries,
both direct and indirect (the Cairo Group) whichn@t in the public domain or is by its
nature confidential or of exclusive pertinencehe €Cairo Group. Even if expressed as a
personal opinion, a piece of information which cbaffect the price of Group company

financial instruments if made public (i.e. pricesiéive) is deemed Information.

The management of Information is the sole respditgibf the Company Chairman. In
particular, the communication of Information to Gob, the Communications
Regulatory Authority (Agcom), Borsa Italiana S.p.fhe media, press agencies, public
relations consultants, financial analysts, joustaliand any other administrative or
regulatory authorities overseeing the activitiegdhef Cairo Group must be carried out
exclusively by the Company Chairman directly orastonally through representatives
chosen by him. All Directors and members of the rBoaf Statutory Auditors must
show the utmost discretion in relation to Informatiacquired while carrying out their

duties and must respect Company procedures relatithge publication of Information.

Directors are responsible for the secrecy of docuat®n given to them in advance of
meetings of the Company Board of Directors. In aage, Directors must exercise

discretion in relation to Information acquired vehperforming their duties.

The Chairman takes all measures necessary to etmar®lanagement and other Cairo
Group employees do not transmit Information to dhparties if not by law or
regulation, and in respect of market best practitesrder to ensure that discretion is

exercised in relation to Information acquired wigkrforming their duties.

Should a Director be bound to disclose a piecenfidrination by the civil or legal
authorities, he must communicate this to the Chairimmediately unless otherwise

bound by law or the relevant authority.

Further to the provisions relating to the publicatbdf Information, in order to transmit
any other information to third parties, or to pshlian interview to the media that relates
partially or completely to the Cairo Group, Compddiyectors and Statutory Auditors

must obtain specific prior approval of the Chairman
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6 Board of Directors’ Committees

The Board of Directors has set up three committgdsn the Board itself — the Remuneration
Committee, the Control and Risk Committee and thiafed Party Committee (see section 12
below). The Board decided not to form an AppoimitnEommittee, as it was confirmed that
the powers reserved by the Code to said Commitieald continue to be carried out by the

Board in its entirety (see sectié’ below).

7 Appointment Committee

At its meeting of 14 May 2014, the Board of Dirgst@valuated the block holdings of the
company and the absence of issues reported inassterglating to the sphere of competence of
the Appointment Committee, managed efficiently amdompliance with the principles of the
Corporate Governance Code directly by the Boardiogctors, and decided not to form an
Appointment Committee, as it was confirmed that posvers reserved by the Code to said

Committee should continue to be carried out byBbard in its entirety.

8 Remuneration Committee

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors appointed af three-year period, until approval of the
financial statements at 31 December 2016, the membfethe “Remuneration Committee”,

composed of non-executive directors Antonio Magmalla, Chairman, Roberto Rezzonico
(independent) and Stefania Petruccioli (independeRioberto Rezzonico and Stefania
Petruccioli have adequate experience in the actguand financial area.

The Remuneration Committee has advisory and préasking functions for the Board of

Directors, specifically:

- formulation of proposals to the Board of Directoggarding remuneration to executive
directors, of other directors with particular respibilities and of key management

personnel;

- to periodically evaluate the adequacy, overall mtescy and application of the general
policy adopted for remuneration to executive dmestof other directors with particular
responsibilities and of key management personmghgufor the latter information
furnished by the managing directors, and formugptproposals to the Board of

Directors on the matter;
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- to formulate proposals to the Board of Directors femuneration to the managing
directors and to other directors with particulaspensibilities, and to set performance
targets related to the variable component of rematiog, by overseeing the application
of the decisions adopted by the Board, verifyingparticular, actual achievement of the

performance targets;

- to periodically evaluate the criteria adopted femuneration to key management
personnel, in addition to overseeing the applicatibany stock option plans (there are
no plans underway to date), on the basis of inftiomarovided by managing directors,

and to provide the Board of Directors with relevgaheral recommendations.

To ensure correct performance of its duties, the@ittee has the power to access all necessary
corporate information, in addition to make use xteemal consultants, in accordance with the
terms established by the Board of Directors. Them@ittee is assisted by a secretary

appointed for such purpose (Marco Bisceglia), wéaords the minutes of the meetings

The functioning of the Remuneration Committee igegoned by a policy approved by the Board
of Directors. The meetings of the Remuneration Cdtamwere generally not attended by the
Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors or otaaditor delegated by the Chairman; these
bodies formulated their opinion on proposals puthf®oy the Remuneration Committee within

the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors has made financial resouss@dlable to the Remuneration Committee

for the execution of its functions.
In 2014, the Remuneration Committee met 2 times,afiout 1 hour and with all members

attending. At least 2 meetings are scheduled &as.y

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors allocatedoE20 thousand as annual remuneration to
the Remuneration Committee and Euro 2 thousarfietsdcretary.

9. Directors’ Fees

The general policy for directors’ fees is illusgdtin the Remuneration Report, prepared
pursuant to art. 123-ter of the TUF, and will bérsitted to the Shareholders at their meeting

held to approve the 2014 financial statements,Hiclhwreference is made for all the details.

At its meeting on 13 March 2015, the Board of Dioes established the general remuneration

policy for 2015 (illustrated in Section | of the Reneration Report) regarding executive
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directors, other directors with particular respbiities and key management personnel, which

sets out, among other things, the guidelines fer th

a) balancing of the fixed and variable components,ctviénvisage ceilings, with regard to
strategic objectives and company risk managemetitypoand ceilings for variable

components,

b) appropriateness of the fixed component for a direstduties, should the performance
targets indicated by the Board of Directors notrie and the resulting variable component

not be paid,

c) measurability of performance targets and conneaifdhese targets to the creation of value

for shareholders in the medium to long term,

Incentivized remuneration criteria have gradualbetb introduced for some years now for
executive directors and key management persommelder to base a sizeable portion of their
fees on the achievement of specific performancegetar previously set and determined,
consistent with the guidelines held in the gensraiuneration policy adopted by the Board of

Directors, as described in the Remuneration Report.

A medium to long-term incentive system (LTI Plag)currently being assessed with the aim to
define it in 2015, in accordance with the princgpénd limits set out in the policy explained in

the Remuneration Report.

The Group has started to study and develop long-tecentivized remuneration criteria (long-
term incentive); however, given the crisis affegtithe advertising segment and, generally,
speaking, the publishing sector for a few years,rwegment that is the core business of the
Group, and the resulting instability - based onlddie figures in 2012, 2013 and 2014,
magazine advertising decreased by 18.4%, 23.99%6 &8, respectively, while TV advertising
fell by 15.3%, 10.0% and 0.5% - the Group has aered, to date, to defer application of these

criteria, owing to the difficulty to set attainalgeals to attach to them.

The 2015 remuneration policy envisages the inctusibclaw-back clauses, which allow the
company to request the return, in whole or in pgErtariable components of remuneration paid
(or to withhold sums subject to deferral), detemuinon the basis of data which has

subsequently proven to be manifestly misstated.
Directors’ fees for the year 2014 are illustratedection II, Part Il of the Remuneration Report.

Marco Pompignoli is also the Financial Reportingnigger.
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No incentive mechanisms have been introduced ®irtternal audit manager.

There are no share-based incentive plans in ptadavour of executive directors and/or key

management personnel.

Remuneration to non-executive directors is not thase company performance. They do not

receive any share-based incentive plans.

There are no agreements in place between the Conguaththe directors for any indemnity in
the event of resignation or unjust dismissal, ahimevent their employment relationship ceases

following a takeover bid.

10 Control and Risk Committee

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors appointadafthree-year period (until approval of the
financial statements at 31 December 2016) the mesmtfethe Control and Risk Committee
(former Internal Control Committee), composed ofi4executive directors Roberto Rezzonico
(independent), Chairman, Mauro Sala (independard)/ntonio Magnocavallo. The Control
and Risk Committee, in accordance with the Corgotadvernance Code, is currently formed
of non-executive directors, the majority of whone andependent. Roberto Rezzonico and

Mauro Sala have adequate experience in the acoguantid financial area.

The role of the Control and Risk Committee is tovide an early opinion to the Board of
Directors in order to discharge the internal cdraad risk management duties assigned by the

Code, in order to:

i) define the guidelines of the internal control aigk management system, so that the
main risks affecting the Company and its subsidgrare correctly identified and
appropriately measured, managed and monitored;ndieiag the level of compatibility
of such risks with management of the company thatansistent with the strategic

objectives;

i) assess, at least annually, the adequacy of thenahteontrol and risk management

system with respect to the nature of the Compasyisk profile and its effectiveness;
i) appoint an executive director to supervise theatper of the internal audit system;

the Committee also
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iv) evaluates, together with the Financial Reportingnddger, after hearing the Audit Firm
and the statutory auditors, the proper applicatibaccounting policies, and in the case

of groups, overall consistency of the consoliddieancial statements;

V) expresses an opinion on specific aspects relatinghe identification of the main

corporate risks;

vi) reviews the periodical reports on the evaluationtted internal control and risk
management system, and those of particular relevanepared by the internal audit

manager;

vii) monitors the independence, adequacy, effectivesmag®fficiency of the internal audit

function;

viii) may request the internal audit function to perfassessments on specific operating

areas, providing immediate notice to the Chairmath@ Board of Statutory Auditors;

iX) reports to the Board of Directors, at least evexrymonths, on the date of the approval
of the financial statements and of half-year repayh their activities carried out and on

the appropriateness of the internal control arldmanagement system.

To ensure correct performance of its duties, then@itee has the power to access all necessary
corporate information, in addition to make use xtemal consultants, in accordance with the
terms established by the Board of Directors. Dutimg year, the Committee decided not to
resort to external consultants, on the one handause it already has the tax, legal and
accounting skills needed for the due evaluatiorts an the other, because it did not report the
existence of specific, significant facts that regditheir services. The Committee is assisted by
a secretary appointed for such purpose (Marco Bigde who records the minutes of the

meetings.

In 2014, the Control and Risk Committee met 4 timdsutes of the meetings, lasting for
about 2 hours, were recorded. Four meetings aedsitdd this year, one has already been held
at 13 March 2015.

The meetings were generally attended, upon ingitatby the Chairman of the Board of
Statutory Auditors, by representatives from the ib&itrm, by the Executive Director in charge

of the internal control system and by the intemadit manager.
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The operation of the Control and Risk Committeggaserned by an appropriate regulation
approved by the Board of Directors. The Board ofeBtors has made financial resources

available to the Remuneration Committee for thecetien of its functions.

During the above activities, and based on the tepeceived from the internal audit manager,
no facts of particular relevance emerged that reeénlde reported and the Committee deemed

the internal control system as being adequate.

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors allocatedoE20 thousand as annual remuneration to
the Control and Risk Committee and Euro 2 thousaride secretary.

11. Internal control and risk management system

Purposes and objectives

The internal control and risk management systetih@fCairo Communication Group consists
of a set of rules, procedures and organizationat&tres, which, through an appropriate process
of identification, measurement, management and tmong of major risks, ensures that

financial information is fair, accurate, reliabledstimely.

The Board of Directors, assisted by the Control Ristk Committee:
- has defined, in the frame of the definition of Htmtegic, business and financial plans,

the nature and level of risk consistent with theués’s strategic objectives;

- has defined the guidelines of the internal cordrad risk management system, so that
the main risks affecting the Company and its sus&bs are correctly identified and
appropriately measured, managed and monitored;ndigieg the level of compatibility
of such risks with management of the company thatansistent with the strategic

objectives;

- has assessed, at least on an annual basis, theaagenf the internal control and risk
management system with respect to the nature o€tmpany, its risk profile and its

effectiveness.

The Control and Risk Committee analyzed, at leasam annual basis, the plan drafted by the
person in charge of internal audit, with the opinaf the Board of Statutory Auditors and the

director in charge of the control and risk managarsgstem;

The Board of Directors, on proposal of the diredtocharge of the internal control and risk
management system and the favorable opinion oftwrol and Risk Committee, after hearing

the Board of Statutory Auditors, appoints and resothe internal audit manager, and sees that
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the manager is adequately resourced to performegjuind defines the manager's fees

consistent with corporate policies.

Over the past financial years, the Group has sepdtiicy lines of the internal control system in
order to rationalize the overall system by mappnd classifying subjects involved, organize
the main reporting flows within the Group and egate the responsibilities and areas of

activities taking place.

The evaluation of the internal control and risk agement system is regularly conducted to

verify its ability:

- to react to significant situations of risk in a éily manner, ensuring appropriate control

mechanisms;

- in terms of corporate processes, to guarantee propyate degree of segregation of
duties between operating functions and controltions to avoid conflicts of interest in

the responsibilities assigned,;

- in terms of the operating activities and accountangl administrative activities, to
guarantee systems and procedures that assure dheatecrecording of company and
management events, in addition to the provisiorelidble and timely information, both

internal and external to the Group;

- to provide for methods to ensure the timely commation of any significant emerging
risks and anomalies in control to the appropriateu Management, and to enable the

identification and timely execution of remedies.

The reference model adopted by the Group for th@dmentation of its internal control system
complies with domestic and international best pcastand with the indications set by the laws
and regulations Cairo Communication is requireccamply with as a company listed on a
regulated market, such as in particular law 262280d consequent articles 154-bis and 123-
bis of the Consolidated Finance Act and Legislabaeree 195/07 (“Transparency Decree”) as
well as the Corporate Governance Code of Borsaati@al to which Cairo Communication

conforms.

The system has been designed and implemented fodiave guidelines issued by a number of

sector bodies regarding the activities performethieyinancial Reporting Manager.
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Main characteristics of existing risk management and internal control system in relation to

thefinancial reporting process (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 2, letter b), T.U.F.)

Stages of the existing system of risk managemehingernal control system in relation to the

financial reporting process

The risk management and internal control systemrelation to the Group's financial
information rests basically on the application amohitoring of relevant corporate procedures

for the purposes of the preparation and disclostifimancial information.

Specifically, the internal control system is spiitinto the following stages:

a) Identification and evaluation of risks relatedihancial information;
b) Identification of controls upon identificatiofi iisks;
c) Evaluation of controls upon identification oks.

The evaluation procedures and instruments usetebgtoup are periodically subject to review
processes aimed at the verification of their silitgland function as compared to the corporate
reality, which is by its very nature mutable. THere, where possible, an information flow has

been put in place in order to maintain, updateianptove system quality.

a) Risk identification and evaluation for financiapmting: the identification of both the

scope of the entries and their “significant” pra=ssin terms of potential impact on
financial reporting, and of the risks consequerdrig missed control objectives, comes
about by way of a quantitative analysis of theriicial statement items and a qualitative

evaluation of the processes.

The quantitative analysis, aimed at the identificatof the relevant entries, is
performed through the application of the concepnwiteriality” to the combined items
in the trial balance of the Cairo Communication @roThe materiality threshold was
determined as a fixed percentage in compliance thighindications in article 2621 of
the Italian Civil Code (replaced by Law no. 2628fDecember 2005).

Once the significant accounts have been identifiledugh the account-processes

combination, the significant processes are thetindisished.

The qualitative analysis, through the evaluationttad significance of the business

processes and of their level of complexity, intéggathe quantitative analysis,
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b)

c)

determining the inclusion or the exclusion of thegesses in regard to the scope of

reference.

For each process identified as significant, theeetlaen also identified specific process
risks, which in the event of their occurrence, vdocbmpromise the achievement of the
objectives connected to the system: that is to $lagse of accuracy, reliability,

credibility and timeliness of financial reporting.

The financial reporting manager reviews the daénitof the scope of reference at least
annually and also, each and every time that eleggneritich might change the analysis

performed in a significant manner, are manifested.

Identification of the controls corresponding to ibentified risks: the identification of

the controls necessary for the mitigation of theeamined risks is performed
associating the risks identified to the relativateol objectives, meaning the group of
objectives that the financial reporting control teys intends on achieving in order to

ensure a true and correct representation.

The controls established have been formalized engidpecific matrix (“Matrix of risks

and controls”).

Evaluation of the controls corresponding to thentdied risks: the evaluation of the

administrative and accounting control system isd@erformed at least annually.

The valuation of the suitability of the actual dpgtion of the controls is performed
through specific verification activities, aimed garanteeing the programming and
implementation of the identified controls, uponigalion and coordination on the part

of the financial reporting manager.

Based on the results of the verification work, financial reporting manager, with the
aid of the support staff, defines a remedy plaasto correct any deficiencies that may
impact negatively on the effectiveness of the msknagement and internal control

system in relation to financial reporting.

At least annually, the financial reporting manageports to the Control and Risk
Committee and the Board of Statutory Auditors anthmunicates with the company
supervisory boards, regarding the methods with wttie suitability evaluation and the
application of the controls and administrative camting procedures have been
conducted, then expressing his own evaluation erstlitability of the administrative -

accounting control system.
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Roles and functions

The subjects involved in the internal control aisk management system, each with their own

specific role, are:

1. the Board of Directors, which guides and asse$sesidequacy of the system, identifying

within the system:

() the director in charge of the formation and maiatexe of an effective internal control
and risk management system (the “director in chafgthe internal control and risk

management system”), and

(i) the Control and Risk Committee, in charge of &sgjs through appropriate
preparatory work, the assessments and decisiaihe &oard of Directors regarding the
internal control and risk management system, akasahose regarding the approval of

periodical financial reports;

2. The internal audit manager, in charge of verifyithgt the internal control and risk

management system is working properly and adegyatel

3. other roles and functions with specific tasks rdgay internal control and risk

management,

4. the Board of Auditors, which monitors the effectiess of the internal control and risk

management system.

Art. 154-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act preddfor the presence, in the corporate
organization of listed companies, of the “Finan&abporting Manager”, appointed by the Board
of Directors in concert with the Managing Directdhe Manager is responsible for planning,
implementing and approving the accounting and aihtnative control model, and for assessing

its application, issuing a certificate on half-yemmual and consolidated financial statements.

The Manager is also responsible for preparing aalequadministrative and accounting
procedures for the formation of the separate anmsaaated financial statements, and for
providing subsidiaries, considered as significantities for the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated financial reporting, with instructioms how to perform an appropriate evaluation
of their accounting control system.

Overall evaluation of the appropriateness of theinternal control and risk management system
Based on the information and evidence gatheredvimllg preliminary analysis conducted by
the Control and Risk Committee, supported by Mameage and by the internal audit manager,
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Board of Directors deems the internal control ais management system to be, as a whole,
appropriate for allowing, with reasonable assuraackievement of the Company's objectives.
The evaluation, as it refers to the overall inteantrol system, is by nature limited. While
well-structured and in operation, the internal coinsystem is designed only to guarantee
accomplishment of corporate objectives with “readde assurance”.

11.1  Executive director in charge of the internatontrol and risk management system

Marco Pompignoli, executive director, is resporesifolr overseeing the operation of the internal

control and risk management system. During the, yeawas responsible for:

- identifying main corporate risks (strategic, opienadl, financial and compliance), taking
account of the nature of the operations carriedbguthe company and its subsidiaries, to

submit them for the review of the Board of Direstor

- executing the policies as identified by the Boafdwoectors, providing for the planning,
realization and management of the internal consydtem, constantly monitoring the

overall appropriateness, effectiveness and effogien

- adapting the system to the dynamics of the Groap&rating conditions and to the legal

and regulatory framework.

The director in charge of the internal control argk management system has requested the
internal audit manager to perform assessments ennthin areas of operations and on
compliance with company rules and procedures in dkecution of business operations,
informing the Chairman of the Control and Risk Caitee and the Chairman of the Board of

Auditors and reporting to the Control and Risk Cattae on the findings.

11.2 Internal audit manager

The role of internal audit manager is carried oytanm external professional, Ezio Micheli,
appointed at the end of 2007 on the proposal mgdhebexecutive director responsible for the
internal control system and taking account of thaion of the Control and Risk Committee,

who reports to the Control and Risk Committee anith¢ Board of Statutory Auditors.

The Board of Directors has assigned the interndit amanager the responsibilities foreseen by
the Corporate Governance Code and has define@imsneration, in line with corporate policy,

providing him with the appropriate means to fulfils duties.
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The Board of Directors has verified that this perpossesses the necessary professional and
independence requirements to perform such functioparticular, he is not in charge of any
operating area and is not subordinate to any peirsaharge of operating areas, including

administration and finance.

The internal audit manager has been allowed dimecess to all useful information for the
performance of his duties and has reported ondtigitées to the Control and Risk Committee
and to the Board of Statutory Auditors and to thecative director responsible for overseeing

the operation of the internal control system.

During the year, the activities of the internal itudanager mainly focused on verifying the
updating and implementation process of corporatecqmures. He is a member of the

Supervisory Board pursuant to Legislative DecreB2Z01, as indicated in section 11.3 below.

The internal audit manager, also assisted by ueklaxternal consultants, experts in these

areas, made available to the Company:

» verified on a continuous basis (not having repodpdcific needs) the operation and
adequacy of the internal control and risk managémgstem through an audit plan,

based on the structured analysis and ranking of tkelys and the reliability of

information systems, including the accounting sysie

* regularly referred to the Control and Risk Comnatteluring the meetings of the
Committee, also attended by the Chairman of thedBo# Statutory Auditors and the
director in charge of the internal control and rislanagement system, providing
appropriate information on the tasks performedyrisk management procedures, and

compliance with defined plans for risk mitigatioas well as an opinion on the

adequacy of the internal control and risk managesygsten)

» assessed, as part of the audit plan, the relihifitinformation systems, including

accounting systems.

11.3 Organizational Model pursuant to Legislativeckze 231/2001

On 31 March 2008, the Board of Directors adoptédioael for organization, management and
control pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001géDizational Model), thereby providing
itself with a set of principles of conduct and mdares to comply with the requirements of

Legislative Decree 231/2001, both in terms of thevention of crime and illicit acts, and in
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terms of control measures to ensure implementatiohe Model itself. The Model was updated
by the Board of Directors, on proposal of the Suigery Board, in 2009 and 2012, following
regulatory changes; the latest cases introducdtieircategory of offenses (mainly including
“bribery among private individuals”, environmentarimes and crimes of association,
incitement to make false statements, crimes agaidsistry and self-laundering) are currently
being discussed with a view to their introductionthe Model. A similar model was also
adopted on 13 November 2008 by the subsidiariesoQibblicita S.p.A. and Cairo Editore
S.p.A. (later updated, consistent with the Orgditral Model of Cairo Communication

S.p.A.) and on 18 December 2013 by the subsidiai/&.r.1.

The Organizational Model adopted is made up oftaoberinciples, rules and organizational
hierarchies relating to the management and coafrobrporate activities and is presented in an

explanatory document which:
- identifies the activities in which crimes could @@mmmitted;

- provides for specific rules directed at planning tarmation and performance of corporate

decisions relating to crimes to be prevented,;
- identifies methods for the management of finan@aburces directed at crime prevention;

- provides for the provision of information to thedyodeputized with oversight of the

operation and observation of the models (SuperyiBoard);

- introduces a disciplinary system directed at punglfailure to respect measures identified

by the Organization Model.

The Organizational Model adopted provides for tresence of a corporate body responsible for
assuming the functions of a control body (Superyi®oard) with autonomous responsibilities
for the supervision, control and initiative relatedhe Model, composed of three members who
must be selected from persons having proven asilitin inspection, management,
administration and legal matters, and who must glegsess minimum requirements of

professionalism and integrity.

Specifically, the Supervisory Board verifies tha tompany has an appropriate Organizational
Model in place and ensures it is effectively catroat, certifying its own effectiveness whilst
carrying out its functions, ensuring the progresaipdate, thus guaranteeing constant process

of adjustment to the above-mentioned operatingauradganizational principles.
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In 2014, the members of the Supervisory Board afcC&ommunication S.p.A. were Ezio

Micheli, internal audit manager, Giacomo Leone Efaico Bisceglia, Chairman.

11.4  Audit Firm

At their meeting on 28 April 2011, on proposal thetBoard of Statutory Auditors, the
Shareholders conferred the audit assignment for20L-2019 nine-year period to KPMG

S.p.A., approving the relevant fee.

11.5 Financial Reporting Manager

The Board of Directors appointed Marco Pompign@lhief Financial Officer of the Cairo
Communication Group, as the Financial Reporting &gm. He has the appropriate
professional requirements (graduate in businessrastration, previously working for a major
audit firm, gaining significant experience in Itand abroad, and a certified accountant
registered in Forli).

Marco Pompignoli, as board member of the compasypiiovided with executive and
management powers to oversee the administratioande and management control functions

of the Group to which the Issuer belongs.

11.6 Coordination among parties in the internal cotrol and risk management system

Regarding coordination among the various partie®lired in the internal control and risk

management system (Board of Directors, directochiarge of the internal control and risk

management system, Control and Risk Committeernataudit manager, Financial Reporting

Manager, Supervisory Body and Board of Statutordifaus), the meetings of the Control and

Risk Committee are generally attended also by the:

- Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors,

- partner or senior partner of the Audit Firm,

- director in charge of the internal control and rigkanagement system, Marco
Pompignoli, who is also the Financial Reporting lsiger,

- the internal audit managdgzio Micheli, who is also member of the SupervisBogdy.

Furthermore, the Board of Statutory Auditors and Supervisory Board schedule a specific

joint annual meeting also attended by the direatocharge of the internal control and risk

management system and the partner or senior paofnére Audit Firm to take stock of
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activities performed during the year, to plan thtmethe following year and to jointly discuss
any issues of common interest from their respecireas of competence.
In any event, during the year, information is conélly exchanged between the Board of

Statutory Auditors and the Supervisory Board.

12 Related party transactions

Consob, through Resolution no. 17221 of 12 Marchi020amended through subsequent
Resolution no. 17389 of 23 June 2010, adopted,uputsto art. 2391-bis of the Italian Civil

Code, and to articles 113-ter, 114, 115 and 15%fethe TUF, the regulations regarding
provisions pertaining to related party transactidnswhich management bodies of issuers of

widely distributed securities must comply (tHeegulation”).

At its meeting on 11 November 2010, the Board akBtors of Cairo Communication S.p.A.,
on the favourable opinion of the independent dinetadopted the procedures for related party
transactions (the “Procedures”), for the purposeudranteeing substantial and procedural
transparency and fairness of related party trangaed’ carried out by the Company directly or

through its subsidiaries, establishing a RelatetyRzommittee.

Pursuant to the Regulation, Cairo Communicatioooissidered a “small company”, since its
assets and its revenue shown, shown in the lasowg financial statements (31 December
2013), are lower than Euro 500 million, amountimgpectively to approximately Euro 301
million and to approximately Euro 249 million. Feuch companies, the Regulation provides
for the possibility to “apply to transactions ofegter importance, as a waiver to art. 8, a

procedure identified pursuant to art. 7 of the Ratipn” (transactions of lesser importance).

The procedures adopted by the Company, availablevew.cairocommunication.it in the
Corporate Governancaection, to which reference is made for complettits, have also
identified:

a) the definition of related parties and transactions;

b) roles and responsibilities;

c) transactions of greater importance, being thosevhilch at least one of the ratios of
significance (equivalent value relevance ratiogtssand liabilities relevance ratio) set out
in the Regulation are higher than the threshol&%f or of 2.5% for transactions whose

purpose is the disposal of intangible assets ategjic importance;

d) the exemptions provided in the Regulation and optethe Company, mainly transactions

of smaller amounts (Euro 150,000), remunerationgfaursuant to art. 114-bis of the TUF
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(which comply with the obligations regarding traasgncy and substantial and procedural
correctness provided by the temporary provision®iioe), regular transactions concluded

under market-equivalent or standard conditions #ed transactions with and between

subsidiaries and/or associates;

e) the procedures regarding the preliminary proceedingd approval of related party
transactions and the regulations in cases wherectimepany examines or approves

transactions with subsidiaries;

f) the procedures and timing adopted to provide in&timm on the transactions, and the
related documentation, to the directors or indepandirectors who express opinions on
related party transactions, as well as to the mamagt and independent advisors, before

their approval, during and after their execution.

Related party transactions of greater importaneeaeserved to the exclusive competence of the
Board of Directors and may not be delegated. Tezwion of such transactions, as well as
those of lesser importance, is subject to a nodibinopinion of the Related Party Committee,

or of other bodies indicated in the procedures.

In the event one or more transactions are apprometlyithstanding a negative opinion
expressed by the Committee and/or other bodieCtimepany draws up and makes available to
the public at its main registered office within di&ys from the close of each quarter of the
financial year, a document containing indicatiortte# counterparty, of the object and counter
value of such transactions approved in the quafteeference, as well as the reasons why that
opinion has not been shared. Within the same tihig opinion is made available to the public

in attachment to the above document or on its welaivw.cairocommunication.it.

Regarding transactions of greater importance fallinder the competence of the Shareholders,
in the event the resolution proposal is approvetiyithstanding contrary advice by the Related
Party Committee (or by other bodies), the transacts not carried out if the majority of
unrelated shareholders votes against the tranesacpimvided the unrelated shareholders
attending the Meeting represent at least 10% ofk@ee capital with voting right (whitewash
mechanism). For such purpose, in the resolutiopgsal, the Board adds a provision that

specifies that the effectiveness of the transadsi@ubject to the foregoing majority.

Related party transactions must comply with trarespay and substantial and procedural

correctness criteria and are executed in the exelusterest of the Company:

- substantial correctness means correctness of dheatction from an economic point of

view when, for instance, the transfer price of godglin line with market prices and,
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more in general, when the transaction has not be#menced by the related party
relationship, or at least said relationship hasdetérmined the acceptance of conditions

that are unjustifiably penalizing for the Company;

- procedural correctness means compliance with puwesdaimed at ensuring the
substantial correctness of the transaction andefihre, observance of the rules through
which it is at least potentially ensured that mdparty transactions do not determine any

unjustified prejudice to the reasons of the Compamy its investors.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting called to resobn such related party transactions, directors
who have even a potential or indirect interestha transaction must provide prompt and
exhaustive information in person to the Board om é&xistence of such interest and on the
circumstances thereof, leaving the meeting at tlmmemt of the resolution. Should the

directors’ presence be needed to maintain the sapegjuorum, the Board may decide, upon

the unanimous decision of the attendants, for tleetrs not to leave the meeting.

The Regulation also provides for a series of oliliga to inform the public on transactions of
greater importance, as well as for those of leissportance, at least every quarter in the latter

case.

The Committee for the approval of related partydextions (hereinafter, th&elated Party
Committee”), regardless of the importance, is appointedhey Board of Directors and can be

composed of three members:

() in the event at least three independent directave lbeen elected to the Board of

Directors, the members of the Committee are akshdent directors;

(i)  otherwise than under the case indicated in theepownt (i), its members are non-
executive directors, the majority of whom are inglegient. In such case, the

Committee may coincide with the Control and RiskrDattee.

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors appointed thembers of the Related Party
Committee, composed of the three independent directMarco Janni, Chairman, Stefania
Petruccioli, and Mauro Sala, and allocated Eurattiisand as annual remuneration to the
Related Party Committee. The Committee is asslsyesl secretary appointed for such purpose
(Marco Bisceglia), to whom the Board of Directoffoeated Euro 2 thousand as annual
remuneration.

The Committee is required to perform all the tasidicated in the Regulation and in the

procedures. Specifically, its task is to releasenativated opinion on the interest of the
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Company (or, if the case, of its subsidiaries) fwa éxecution of related party transactions and
on the convenience and substantial correctneserafitoons thereto. If required by the nature,

extent and characteristics of the transactionRékted Party Committee may also be assisted
by one or more independent experts of its choitmse fees are paid by the Company, through

the acquisition of specific reports and/or fairnasd/or legal opinions.

The Board of Directors may decide on remuneratwrspecial responsibilities pursuant to art.
2389, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, te @ommittee members for each transaction it

is required to express an opinion on.

13 Appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors

Under art. 26 of the company bylaws, the Boardtafusory Auditors is appointed on the basis

of lists submitted by the shareholders containingeaimum of five candidates.
Under the bylaws:

- members of the Board of Statutory Auditors are ayppd on the basis of lists that must
be filed with the registered office of the Compawjthin the 2%' day before the
Shareholders’ Meeting called to decide on the appwnt of the members of the Board
of Statutory Auditors, made available to the pubdt the registered office, on
www.cairocommunication.it and in accordance witle tther procedures provided by
law and regulations, at least 21 days before tie ofathe Meeting. Upon expiry of the
time limit of 25 days prior to the Meeting, in theent only one list has been filed, or lists
submitted by shareholders who are connected, putrsmapplicable provisions, lists may
be submitted until the fourth day (as set forthihe bylaws) subsequent to such date. In
this event, the foregoing 2.5% threshold (or otftménimum amount set by prevailing

laws) is reduced by half;

- the lists consist of two sections: one for candigdb the position of standing auditor, and
the other for candidates to the position of alte¥reuditor, and where the number of
candidates is equal to or higher than three, theystnensure minimum gender

representation required by the laws and regulaiiof@rce at the time;

- lists admitted to the voting are those submittedsbgreholders who, either individually
or jointly with other shareholders, represent aste2.5% of the shares entitled to vote in
the ordinary meeting, or other minimum amount setGmnsob, which was set at an
amount equal to 2.5% by resolution 19109 of 28 dani2015). Ownership of the
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minimum stake is determined on the basis of theesheecorded in the name of the
shareholder on the date the lists are filed with @ompany; candidates may appear in
one list only, under penalty of ineligibility; cdidlates holding the position of statutory
auditor in 5 (five) other listed companies (exchgltheir subsidiaries, although listed) or
holding a number of positions exceeding the curiuddimit prescribed by law and by
Consob, or failing to possess the requirements niégiity and professionalism
established by prevailing laws, shall not appearthe lists. Each list shall be
accompanied by a) information regarding the idgntit the shareholders who have
submitted the list, indicating total percentage sbfares held, and by prescribed
certification on ownership of the stake, which nb&ysubmitted also subsequent to filing,
provided within the time limit set for publicatioof the lists; b) a statement of the
shareholders other than those who hold, also jgiaticontrolling or relative majority
interest, declaring they have no relationship ohn&xtion, pursuant to applicable
provisions; c¢) detailed information regarding trexgonal and professional qualifications
of the candidates (including gender), and a staténvéh which each candidate accepts
nomination and attests, under own responsibilitsf there are no reasons for ineligibility
or incompatibility with the position, and confirmgossession of the requirements

prescribed by law and the bylaws for the respeginstions;

the chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditorslisha the candidate indicated on top of
the list that has received the second-highest nuwfbeotes. The bylaws do not provide
for the appointment of more than one minority dtatyauditor, nor do they provide for
the possibility of drawing a number of alternatelitars from the minority list to replace

the minority member greater than the minimum resguivy Consob;

should two or more lists reach a tie, the prevgiliist shall be the list possessing the

largest shareholding or, in the event of a tie Highest number of shareholders;

should only one list be submitted, the three stapdiuditors and two alternate auditors
shall be drawn from this list, in the sequentiadesrin which they appear, in which case
the Chairman of the board of statutory auditordl $leathe candidate appearing on top of
the list;

according to the above procedure, should the comnposof the board of statutory
auditors fail to comply with gender balance requilyy law or regulations currently in
force, the necessary replacements shall be maed basthe sequential order of listing of

candidates;
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- should no list be submitted or admitted, the badrdtatutory auditors and its Chairman
shall be appointed by the Shareholders’ Meetingetstive majority vote, in compliance

with the laws and regulations in force on gendéarze.

14 Composition and operation of the Board of Statutry Auditors (pursuant to art. 123
bis, paragraph 2, letter d), T.U.F.)

At their meeting on 29 April 2014 the Shareholdgppointed the Board of Statutory Auditors
for a three-year period, until the approval of timancial statements at 31 December 2016, on
the basis of a single list submitted by the majbareholder, UT Communication S.p.A.
approved with the favourable vote of 76.34% of #iere capital. The Board of Statutory
Auditors comprises three standing auditors, Marawrdvii, Chairman, Maria Pia Maspes and
Marco Giuliani, and two alternate auditors, Emikano and Enrico Tamborini, who have
certified that they know of no relative cause ofligibility or incompatibility, and that they
meet the requirements for the position under ctitegislation and the bylaws, specifically, the
requirements of independence provided by art. Jg&agraph 3 of the TUF, and the
requirements of independence provided by industguliations if applicable on account of
business activities performed. During the yearriMBanti terminated his position as alternate
auditor, his term having expired with the approwhthe financial statements at 31 December
2014.
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Board of Statutory Auditors
Members | Year of Date of first | From Until List Independence | *** Number of
birth  jappointment* (M/m)** as per Code | (%) | other posts
*kkk
Chairman Marco Moroni| 1963 | 05/05/2008  01/0] 31/12 M X 190 15
Standing auditor Marco 1959 | 28/04/2011 01/01 31/12 M X 1Q0 14
Giuliani
Standing auditor Maria Pia 1970 | 30/01/2006 01/01 31/12 M X 1Q0 13
Maspes
Alternate auditor [ Emilio Fano 1954 | 29/04/2014  29/04 31/1 M X rf/a n/a
Alternate auditor Enrico 1967 | 28/04/2011 01/01 31/12 M X nja n/a
Tamborini
Quorum required for the submission of lists at mes appointment: 2.5%
No. of meetings held during 20144

NOTES:

* Date of first appointment of each statutory andineans the date on which each statutory auditss appointed for the first time
(ever) in the Board of Statutory Auditors of theuler.

** This column indicates M/m depending on whetlner statutory auditor was elected by the majority @viminority (m) list

*** This column indicates the participation percege of statutory auditors to the BoA meetings {rinees present/n. of meetings
held during their term, for instance 6/8; 8/8, &tc.

**** This column indicates number of directorships statutory auditor positions held, pursuant td.&r48-bis TUF and related
implementation provisions contained in Consob’sidss’ Regulations. The complete list of appointménpublished by Consob on
its website pursuant to Art. 144-quinquiesdeciethefissuer Regulations of Consob.

In 2014, 4 meetings were held each lasting apprataty 2 hours. Five meetings are scheduled

for the current year, one has already been held.

The Board of Statutory Auditors assessed the inudgece of its members following their
appointment. For its assessments, it based it®ibng other criteria, also on those prescribed
by the Corporate Governance Code regarding indegpeadof directors. In any event, auditors
who, either or on their own behalf or of third pest may have an interest in a specific
transaction involving the Issuer, shall promptlydailly inform the other auditors and the

Chairman of the Board of Directors as to the natienens, origin and extent of their interest.

The Board of Statutory Auditors also oversaw thdependence of the Audit Firm, verifying the

respect of relevant regulatory requirements in seohthe nature and overall service provided
other than the audit services provided to the Cawpand its subsidiaries by the same Audit Firm
and the entities forming part of its network.

In the performance of its duties, the Board of Btalyy Auditors coordinated its activities with the

internal audit manager and with the Control andk Rlsmmittee, also with the attendance of its
Chairman or other statutory auditor delegated ¢onleetings of the Control and Risk Committee.
Auditors who, either or on their own behalf or birtl parties, has an interest in a specific
transaction involving the Issuer, shall promptlydafully inform the other auditors and the

Chairman of the Board of Directors as to the natierens, origin and extent of their interest.
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Given the vast knowledge of the Company accumulagetthe statutory auditors and their wealth
of experience in the specific areas of operatiothefCairo Communication Group, as well as the
specific personal and professional background athemember of the Board of Statutory
Auditors, it was not deemed necessary to have th#end (induction program), following
appointment and during their term of office, irtitia@s to provide them with adequate knowledge
of the area of operation of the Issuer, of compdynamics and evolution, as well as the relevant

regulatory framework.

15 Investor Relations

Cairo Communication has set up an appropriateseati its website, which is easy to find and
easily accessible, in which all important companfpiimation of interest to shareholders is made
available.

To put a communication flow in place with the getebody of shareholders, also taking
account of the size of the Company and Group, anogpiate “investor relations” function has
been set up, managed by Mario Cargnelutti, whaiperted by top management, particularly

in relation to dealings with institutional invesgor

16 Shareholders’ Meetings

The functioning of the Shareholders’ Meeting, itgsimpowers, shareholders’ rights and terms of
their exercise are those prescribed by the appégatovisions of law and regulations.
Multiple-voting shares or increased voting rights aot envisaged.

The By-laws contain no provisions that reserve elfalders the authorization of specific actions
taken by the directors. As already mentioned, @nstio art. 21, paragraph 2 of the bylaws,
without prejudice to the competence of the Shadsdrsl at their Extraordinary Meeting, who
have the authority to decide on the matter, putst@mmart. 2365 of the Italian Civil Code, the
Board of Directors is authorized, inter alia, tmpdresolutions concerning merger, in the cases
set forth in articles 2505 and 2505 bis of theidtalCivil Code, capital reduction in the event of
shareholder withdrawal, harmonization of the bylda@snandatory provisions of law, relocation
of the registered office to other premises in ltaly

Shareholders’ voting rights and representation edtings is governed by the provisions of law
and regulations. Art. 12 of the bylaws states dmve: “Shareholders entitled to vote at
meetings and their representation is governed Iy glovisions of law and regulations. In
particular, shareholders authorized to cast a votay send notice by electronic means of the

proxies issued pursuant to the prevailing laws, dxcessing a specific section on the
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Company’s website according to the procedures toirukcated in the notice of call of

shareholders’ meeting's

Voting by correspondence, e-voting and/or votingngisaudiovisual links has not been

established.

Given the number of attendants at Company ordiaadyextraordinary shareholders’ meetings,
which has never posed any risk to the rights ofesgion of any member in relation to matters
discussed, no regulations relating to the ordemly finctional operation of the Meetings have

been proposed for the approval of the Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Meetings are an opportunity for imfation regarding the lIssuer to be
communicated to shareholders, as part of the cbdeactice relating to privileged information.
In particular, at Shareholders’ Meetings, the Baafrirectors reports on activities completed
and planned, and ensures that shareholders havepaigpe information on all topics required
in order to make decisions at the meeting with kalbwledge of the facts. All members of the
Board of Directors attended the Meeting held o\gél 2014.

In order to meet this objective, the Board of Dioes makes available to shareholders all
company information they deem relevant, in a tinralgnner, in accordance with the code of
practice relating to privileged information. Forchupurpose, a dedicated section of the
Company website has been set up where this typefaination is displayed, with particular

detail on attendance at Shareholders’ Meetingsexkecise of voting rights and documentation

relating to items on the agenda.

No proposals were made at the Shareholders’ Metdingte on items on which a proposal had

not been made in advance by the Board of Directors.

At the last Shareholders’ Meeting, the Presidemt diher member) of the Remuneration
Committee was not required to report to the shddes on the manner of exercising the
functions of the Committee, which are appropriatetplained in the Remuneration Report and

Corporate Governance Report.

In 2014, no significant changes were reported érttarket capitalization of the Issuer's shares

or in the composition of its corporate structure.
17 Further corporate governance practices

There are no corporate governance practices futbhise ones mentioned above applied by the

Company, aside from the legal or regulatory recueets.

74



18 Changes after year end

There were no changes in the Corporate Governanaise after year end.

Treasury shares

Movements in treasury shares are disclosed in lBt®o the separate financial statements of

the Parent Company.

Stock Options

Cairo Communication has no current stock optiomglk this time.

Shares held by directors, statutory auditors and geeral managers

Shares held directly by Directors, Statutory Auditand General Managers are illustrated in the

Remuneration Report prepared pursuant to art. &28ftthe TUF.

Other information

Research and devel opment activities

There are no research and development activitigggort having a significant effect on the

performance of the Company or the Group.

Human resources

By the nature of the activities it carries out, lamresources form a critical factor for the

success of the Group. The evaluation of staff, degelopment of their abilities and the

recognition of their achievements and responsisliare the principles which govern personnel
management, from the selection phase, which iditided by the high degree of the Group’s

visibility and its ability to attract personnel.

Staff turnover during 2014 and its composition at Becember 2014 can be analyzed as

follows:
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Description 31/12/2013 Recruitments Terminations Advancements 31/12/2014

Open-ended contracts 698 25 (16) 4 711
Senior managers 24 1 (2) 0 23
Managers 82 2 (2) 1 83
Employees 371 21 9 1 384
Journalists and freelance 221 1 3) 2 221
Fixed-term contracts 39 81 (90) 4) 26
Senior managers 0 1 0 0

Managers 0 0 0 0 0
Employees 31 58 (75) (2) 12
Journalists and freelance 8 22 (15) (2) 13
Grand total 737 106 (106) 0 737

Personnel can also be analyzed by average agesdieeqtion and seniority:

Senior  Managers Employees Journalists

managers and freelance

Men (number) 24 50 196 102
Women (number) 0 33 199 133
Average age 50 49 44 32
Seniority 12 13 12 9

Open-ended contracts 23 83 384 221
Fixed-term contracts 1 0 11 14
Graduates 20 36 86 111
Diploma holders 4 46 285 122
Middle school graduates 0 1 24 2

Most of the employees (438) work in the TV segméoitowed (225) by the magazine and
book publishing segment. The advertising segmengl@ys 74 people and draws on a sales
force of approximately 100 agents (direct and ictly who are coordinated by senior sales
managers and staff who, together with their seffop ensure coordination with the editors and
the promotion of special initiatives.

The Group is committed to pursue health and safbjgctives at the workplace. There were no

accidents in the workplace or charges for occupatidiseases during the year.
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Environment
The Cairo Communication Group has outsourced tslyxtion processes. There are no major
environmental aspects which could affect the fiigngosition or results of operations of the

company.

Privacy
Regarding privacy regulations, Cairo Communicatiod Group companies update the Personal

Data Policy Document, which establishes treatmetibwed, resources subject to security
measures, risks, rules (physical and logical mess@and security organizational measures) and
the relating training plan.

In previous years, technical and organizationalsuess and methods had been put in place -
integrating those already operational where necgssaegarding storage of the identifying
details of system administrators and verificatiérwork performed, in order to guarantee the

monitoring of their work.

EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In January 2015, Cairo Network and El Towers S.mAtered into the agreements for the

realization and subsequent long-term technical gement in full service mode (hospitality,

service and maintenance, use of broadcasting tnidsre, etc.) of the Mux, operating on TV

frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastingtsyns. The company acquired the rights of use in

2014, in the frame of the tender procedure opegeatidoMinistry of Economic Development.

The agreements with El Towers provide, among dthiags, for:

- a transitional phase, which will see the realizatamd start-up of the Mux and the initial
operations, which will run from the date the agreata were signed to 31 December 2017,
and an operational phase of the Mux lasting 17syffieom 2018 to 2034);

- the right to free withdrawal of Cairo Network stagt from 1 January 2025;

- guaranteed coverage at full performance of at 18486 of the population, in line with
national Muxs with greater coverage;

- consideration to EIT:

0 during the transitional phase (2015-2017), amogntm a total of Euro 11.5
million for the full three-year period,

o at full performance (starting from 2018), amountitogEuro 16.3 million per
year.

These amounts include compensation for the avhilabf the transmitters;
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- an annual consideration from El Towers to Cairowdek, starting from 2018, ranging
between Euro 0 up to Euro 4 million, in the evérattthe available bandwidth on the Mux is
not fully used by Cairo Network

With the acquisition and realization of the MuxgtiCairo Communication Group will start

activities as a network operator and have at iteranmous disposal a broadcasting capacity of

about 22.4 Mbps versus the current 7.2 Mbps leagkidh can be used to broadcast the La7 and

La7d channels from 2017, to broadcast new chaiifndle Company were to launch any, or even

lease them to third parties as early as 2016.

In 2014, despite facing a challenging relevant rrthe Cairo Communication Group:

- strengthened the results of the cost rationalinaticeasures in the TV publishing segment
(La7) implemented during the eight months of agfiim 2013, succeeding in achieving also
in 2014 a positive gross operating profit (EBITD&)Euro 9 million, while in the January-
December twelve-month period of 2013, gross opagdtiss of La7 had amounted to Euro
25.4 million;

- strengthened the results of “F”, “Settimanale Nuoand “Settimanale Giallo”, confirmed
the high circulation levels of the other publicagp and worked on improving the levels of
efficiency reached in containing costs in the magazpublishing segment (production,
publishing and distribution);

- kept advertising revenue levels high, despite treecpl market trend,

- achieved highly positive results in its traditions¢égments (magazine publishing and
advertising), despite the general economic anadhiiah context and relevant market trend;
took part with the subsidiary Cairo Network in teader procedure opened by the Ministry
of Economic Development for the assignment of sgtt use TV frequencies for digital
terrestrial broadcasting systems, submitting itgliig bid and winning the rights to use a lot

of frequencies ("Mux") for a period of 20 years.

In 2015, the Cairo Communication Group will congnto develop its traditional businesses
(magazine publishing and advertising). Despite dheent economic and competitive context,
and given the high quality of the publications ahe media under concession, the Group

considers it a feasible target to continue to ashf@ositive operating results.

Looking at the TV publishing segment, in 2015, tGeoup will continue to work on
strengthening the results of the rationalizatiod anst-curbing measures achieved in 2013 and
2014.
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However, the evolution of the general economicagitun could affect the full achievement of
these targets.
For the Board of Directors

Chairman Urbano Cairo
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Dear Shareholders,

at the meeting held on 13 March 2015, the Boar®ioéctors resolved to submit the financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 Dec&@bérto the approval of the Shareholders and

to propose the distribution of a dividend of 0.2#d&per share, inclusive of tax.

Shareholders are invited:

- to approve the financial statements as at anchéoyéar ended 31 December 2014;

- to resolve on the proposal to distribute to shddere a dividend of 0.27 Euro per share,
inclusive of tax, with the exception of treasuryasds held the evening prior to the record
date pursuant to art. 88rdecieof Legislative Decree 58/1998:

= distributing profit for the year of Euro 10,585,866

= drawing the difference from the share premium reser
If approved by the Shareholders, the dividend abHEu27 per share will be made payable
from 13 May 2015 (record date pursuant to artteé88ecied _egislative Decree 58/1998: 12
May 2015), prior to detachment of coupon n. 9 oMbl 2015.

For the Board of Directors

Chairman Urbano Cairo
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Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31

December 2014

€ thousands

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Notes

Revenue 1 240.266 249.514
Other revenue and income 2 11.927 7.985
Change in finished products 3 (28) (61)
Raw materials, consumables and supplies 4 (24.589) (28.287)
Services 5 (113.827) (134.121)
Non-recurring costs for services 10 0 (1.917)
Use of third-party assets 6 (22.811) (17.828)
Personnel expense 7 (60.634) (48.789)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaintiesses 8 (5.221) (5.606)
Other operating costs 9 (2.121) (1.728)
Operating profit 22.962 19.162
Income / (loss) on investments 11 ) 699
Non-recurring income from acquisition of La7 S.r.I. 10 0 57.066
Net financial income 12 1.829 2.901
Pre-tax profit 24.789 79.828
Income tax 13 (973) (5.620)
Profit from continuing operations 23.816 74.208
Loss from discontinued operations 14 1) (6)
Profit for the year 23.815 74.202
- Owners of the parent 23.791 74.194
- Non-controling interests - discontinued operatio 0 0
- Non-controling interests - continuing operations 24 8

23.815 74.202
Eamings per share (€)
- Earnings per share - continuing and discontimpetations 16 0,304 0,949
- Earnings per share - continuing operations 16 0,304 0,949

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year

ended 31 December 2014

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Profit for the year 23.815 74.202
Other non-reclassifiable items of the comprehensimeome statement
Actuarial gains (losses) from defined benefit plans 21 (1.367) (510)
Tax effect 376 140
Total comprehensive income for the year 22.824 73.832
- Owners of the parent 22.800 73.824
- Non-controling interests - discontinued operatio 0 0
- Non-controling interests - continuing operations 24 8
22.824 73.832
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Consolidated statement of financial position at 3December 2014

€ thousands

Assets Notes 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Property, plant and equipment 17 3.069 2.829
Intangible assets 18 56.871 12.986
Investments 19 62 72
Non-current financial assets 19 1.113 483
Deferred tax assets 20 3.983 4.589
Total non-current assets 65.098 20.959
Inventories 21 3.296 4104
Trade receivables 22 79.957 90.065
Receivables from parents 32 6.539 5.583
Other receivables and other current assets 23 8.430 8.369
Cash and cash equivalents 25 149.061 172.915
Total current assets 247.283 281.036
Total assets 312.381 301.995
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Share capital 4.027 4.027
Share premium reserve 42.361 45.452
Prior-year earnings (losses) and other reserves 56.132 985
Profit for the year 23.791 74.194
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 126.311 124.658 .
Non-controlling interests share capital and reserves 36 12
Total shareholders’ equity 26 126.347 124.670
Non-current financial payables and liabilities 28 20.000 0
Post-employment benefits 27 13.398 11.832
Provisions for risks and charges 29 30.343 34.982
Total non-current liabilities 63.741 46.814
Current financial payables and liabilities 30 5.000 0
Trade payables 31 87.884 105.926
Payables to parents 32 156 11
Tax liabilities 33 5.487 3.752
Other current liabilities 34 23.766 20.822
Total current liabilities 122.293 130.511
Total liabilities 186.034 177.325
Total equity and liabilities 312.381 301.995
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Consolidated statements of cash flows

€ thousands

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 172.915 61.234
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 23.815 74.202
Non-recurring income from the acquisition of Lar.IS(Note 10) 0 (57.066)
Amortization and depreciation 3.609 1.628
Income / (loss) on investments 2 (699)
Net financial income (1.829) (2.901)
Income tax 973 5.620
Change in post-employment benefits 1.439 108
Change in provisions for risks and charges (4.639) 527
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 23.370 21.419
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 10.047 9.893
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (15.098) (14.922)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 808 1.310
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 19.127 17.700
Income tax paid 557 (4.529)
Financial expense paid (512) (27)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 19.172 13.144
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Acquisition) disposal net of PPE and intangible assets (47.734) (5.394)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired net of purchase price of La7 Sr.1. (*) 0 109.199
Interest and financial income received 2.468 3.391
Net increase in other non-current assets (622) 1.235
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (45.888) 108.431
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (21.152) (10.905)
(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares 0 1.382
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect (991) (370)
Increase in financial payables 25.000 0
Other changes in equity 5 1)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 2.862 (9.894)
CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C) (23.854) 111.681
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE 149.061 172915
(*) Main items of the consolidation of La7 S.r.1. at 30 April 2013:
Other non-current assets (1.013)
Inventories (1.557)
Trade and other current receivables (59.707)
Trade and other current payables 75.053
Provisions for risks and charges 32176
Post-employment benefits 7.181
Non-recurring income from the acquisition of La7 S.r.1. 57.066
Cash and cash equivalents acquired net of purchase price of La7 S.r.L 109.199
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Statement of changes in consolidated equity

Share capital Share premium Prior-year Available-for- Interim Profit for the Equity Non- Total
reserve earnings sale financial dividend year attributable  controlling
(losses) and assets to owners of interests share
other reserves the parent capital and
reserves
€ thousands
Balance at 31 December 2011 4.074 49.586 (1.683) (11.696) 23.446 63.727 3 63.730
Effects from application of amended 1AS 19 2) 2 0 0
Balance at 1 January 2012 4.074 49.586 (1.685) 0 (11.696) 23.448 63.727 3 63.730
Allocation of profit 23.448 (23.448) 0 0
Dividend distribution (4.134) (19.257) 11.696 (11.695) (11.695)
Interim dividend (10.126) (10.126) (10.126)
Purchase of treasury shares (214) (214) (214)
Other movements ) ©®) (5)
Total comprehensive income for the year 18.663 18.663 1 18.664
Balance at 31 December 2012 4.074 45.452 2.287 0 (10.126) 18.663 60.350 4 60.354
Efiects from application of amended IAS 19 (94) 94 0 0
Balance at 1 January 2013 4.074 45.452 2.193 0 (10.126) 18.757 60.350 4 60.354
Allocation of profit 18.757 (18.757) 0 0
Dividend distribution (21.031) 10.126 (10.905) (10.905)
Disposal of treasury shares 1.382 1.382 1.382
Actuarial gains (losses) from defined benefit plans (370) 370 0 0
Other movements 7 7 7
Total comprehensive income for the year 73.824 73.824 8 73.832
Balance at 31 December 2013 4.074 45.452 938 0 0 74.194 124.658 12 124.670
Allocation of profit 74.194 (74.194) 0 0
Dividend distribution (4.390) (16.762) (21.152) (21.152)
Actuarial gains (losses) from defined benefit plans (991) 991 0 0
Other movements 5 5 5
Total comprehensive income for the year 22.800 22.800 24 22.824
Balance at 31 December 2014 4.074 41.067 57.379 0 0 23.791 126.311 36 126.347
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Consolidated income statement pur suant to Consob Resolution no

€ thousands

. 15519 of 27 July 2006

31 December 2014 related parties % of total 31 December 2013 related parties % of total
)

Revenue 240.266 165 0,1% 249.514 176 0,1%
Other revenue and income 11.927 51 0,4% 7.985 42 0,5%
Change in finished products (28) (61)

Raw materials, consumables and supplies (24.589) (28.287)

Services (113.827) (2111) 1,9% (134.121) (2.120) 1,6%
Non-recurring costs for services 0 (1.917)

Use of third-party assets (22.811) (17.828)

Personnel expense (60.634) (48.789)

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses (5.221) (5.606)

Other operating costs (2.121) (1.728)

Operating profit 22.962 19.162

Income / (loss) on investments @) 699

Non-recurring income from acquisition of La7 Sir.l. 0 57.066

Net financial income 1.829 2.901

Pre-tax profit 24.789 79.828

Income tax 973) (5.620)

Profit from continuing operations 23.816 74.208

Loss from discontinued operations @) 6)

Profit for the year 23.815 74.202

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in Note 36
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Consolidated statement of financial position pursuat to Consob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July

2006

€ thousands

Assets 31 December 2014 related parties % of total 31 December 2013 related parties % of total
) )

Property, plant and equipment 3.069 2.829

Intangible assets 56.871 12.986

Investments 62 72

Non-current financial assets 1.113 483

Deferred tax assets 3.983 4.589

Total non-current assets 65.098 20.959

Inventories 3.296 4104

Trade receivables 79.957 471 0,6% 90.065 445 0,5%

Receivables from parents 6.539 6.539 100,0% 5.583 5.583 100,0%

Other receivables and other current assets 8.430 47 0,6% 8.369 47 0,6%

Cash and cash equivalents 149.061 172.915

Total current assets 247.283 281.036

Total assets 312.381 301.995

Equity and liabilities 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Share capital 4.027 4.027

Share premium reserve 42.361 45452

Prior-year earnings (losses) 56.132 985

Profit for the year 23.791 74194

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 126.311 124.658

Non-controlling interests share capital and reserves 36 12

Total equity 126.347 124.670

Non-current financial payables and liabilities 20.000 0

Post-employment benefits 13.398 11.832

Provisions for risks and charges 30.343 34.982

Total non-current liabilities 63.741 46.814

Current financial payables and liabilities 5.000 0

Trade payables 87.884 1.428 1,6% 105.926 181 0,2%

Payables to parents 156 156 100,0% 11 11 100,0%

Tax liabilities 5.487 3.752

Other current liabilities 23.766 20.822

Total current liabilities 122.293 130.511

Total liabilities 186.034 177.325

Total equity and liabilities 312.381 301.995

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in Note 36
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Consolidated statement of cash flows pursuant to @gob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Non-recurring income from the acquisition of Lar.IS.
Amortization and depreciation

Income / (loss) on investments

Net financial income

Income tax

Change in post-employment benefits

Change in provisions for risks and charges

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables

(Increase) decrease in inventories

TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income tax paid
Financial expense paid

TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Acquisition) disposal net of PPE and intangible assets

Cash and cash equivalents acquired net of purchase price of La7 S.r.1.
Interest and financial income received

Net increase in other non-current assets

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect
Increase in financial payables

Other changes in equity

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C)

NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE
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31 December 2014 related parties 31 December 2013 related parties
172.915 61.234
23.815 (1.895) 74.202 (1.902)
0 (57.066)
3.609 1.628
2 (699)
(1.829) (2.901)
973 5.620
1.439 108
(4.639) 527
23.370 (1.895) 21.419 (1.902)
10.047 (982) 9.893 (817)
(15.098) 1392 (14.922) (1.120)
808 1.310
19.127 (1.485) 17.700 (3.839)
557 (4529)
(512) (27)
19.172 (1.485) 13.144 (3.839)
(47.734) (5.394)
0 109.199
2.468 3.391
(622) 1.235
(45.888) 0 108.431 0
(21.152) (10.905)
0 1.382
(991) (370)
25.000
5 1)
2.862 0 (9.894) 0
(23.854) (1.485) 111.681 (3.839)
149.061 172.915



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS A T AND FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Main activities

Cairo Communication S.p.A. (the Parent) is a jetoick company listed in the Milan Company Register.
The Cairo Communication Group operates as a pulishmagazines and books (Cairo Editore — and its
division Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori — and Cairaubifishing), as a television editor (La7), as a
multimedia advertising broker selling advertisingng and space on television, in print media and in
stadiums (Cairo Communication and Cairo Pubblicié&)a publisher of electronic content (Il Trovajor
and network operator (Cairo Network S.r.l.).

As explained in the Directors’ Report, in 2014 thésidiary Cairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo Sport
S.r.l) took part in the tender procedure openedth®y Ministry of Economic Development for the
assignment of rights to use TV frequencies for tdigierrestrial broadcasting systems, submittirsg it
binding bid and winning the rights to use a lofrefjuencies ("Mux") for a period of 20 years. ImJary
2015, Cairo Network and El Towers S.p.A. enterad the agreements for the realization and subséquen
long-term technical management in full service mdHespitality, service and maintenance, use of
broadcasting infrastructure, etc.) of the Mux. Witle acquisition and realization of the Mux, thar€a
Communication Group started operations as a netojoekator.

The registered offices are at 56 Via Tucidide, Klldome also to the administrative offices, the
advertising brokerage services and Il Trovatore@ailo Network. The publishing business is managed
Cairo Editore, at 55 Corso Magenta, Milan. The lirhg business of La7 is managed mainly in Rome at
the registered offices and the TV studios of La7l.&t 229 Via della Pineta Sacchetti and 32 Vavélo,
respectively.

Figures are shown in thousands of Euro.

Basis of preparation

Structure, form and content of the consolidatedroial statements

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece2@®4 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standardr8¢dASB”) and endorsed by the European Union, as
well as with the provisions arising from art. Slefgislative Decree no. 38/2005. The term IFRS &lus
mean all the international accounting standardd§") and all the interpretations of the Internatbn
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IER, formerly the Standing Interpretations
Committee (“SIC”).

Theconsolidated income statemens presented by nature, highlighting interim opiagaresults and pre-

tax results, and in order to allow a better measfr@rdinary operating management performance.
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Furthermore, cost and revenue components derivorg &vents or transactions which, by their nature o

size are considered non-recurring, are also segpardentified in the financial statements and tioges in

accordance with the definition of non-recurring mgeand transactions held in Consob Communication

No. 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

The economic effects of discontinued operations gm@wn in a single line of the income statement

entitled “profit/loss from discontinued operationghder IFRS 5.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive incomalso reflects the “changes arising from

transactions with non-owners”- separately showirggrelevant tax effects, that is:

- profit and loss that could be directly recognizedquity (for instance actuarial gains and losses
from the measurement of defined benefit plans);

- the effects of the measurements of derivativeunsents hedging future cash flows;

- the effects of the measurements of availableséde-financial assets;

- the effects arising from any change in accounsitagdards.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive incpresents the items relating to the amounts of the

components of other comprehensive income for thegdy nature and grouped into those which, in

accordance with the provisions of other IAS/IFRS:

- will not be subsequently reclassified to proliois§) for the year;

- will be subsequently reclassified to profit (Ilpgs the year, when certain conditions are met.

In 2013, the economic effects of the acquisitiontred equity interest in La7 S.r.l. were shown ie th

income statement under "non-recurring income frieenacquisition of La7 S.r.l.", following completiaf

the Purchase Price Allocation process, in accoeariih IFRS 3 and explained in Note 10.

The consolidated statement of financial positiorpresents separately assets and liabilities divided

current and non-current, indicating, on two segaliaes, “Assets held for sale” and “Liabilitiessasiated

with discontinued operations”, in accordance wiER$ 5. Specifically, an asset or a liability issslified

as current when it satisfies one of the followinitecia:

- it is expected to be realized or settled or éxpected to be sold or utilized in the normal afieg
cycle of the company;

- it is held principally to be traded;

- it is expected to be realized or settled withithnionths of the reporting date.

Otherwise, the asset or liability is classifiechas-current.

The consolidated statements of cash flomsave been prepared applying the indirect methodtiith

operating performance is adjusted to reflect tretimas of a non-monetary nature, for whatever dafear

accrual of previous or future operating receiptpayments and for revenue or cost components ctethec

to cash flows arising from investing or financingfigties. Income and expense relating to medium or

long-term financial operations and those relatmdpe¢dging instruments, and dividends paid are dedu

in financing activities.
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Thestatement of changes in consolidated equishows the variations in equity relating to:

- allocation of profit for the year;

- amounts relating to transactions with owners¢pase and sale of treasury shares);

and separately income and expense defined@l@nges arising from transactions with non-owieasso

shown in the consolidated statement of comprehenssome.

Furthermore in order to comply with Consob ResolutNo. 15519 of 27 July 2006 relating to financial
statements schedules, specific additional condelidancome statement, consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement adhclows have been added highlighting significant
related party transactions in order not to compsemthe overall readability of financial statements

schedules.

The consolidated financial statements are prepaned going concern basis. The Cairo Communication
Group believes that even in the presence of acdiffieconomic and financial situation, significant
uncertainties do not exist (as defined by paragrddih and 26 of IAS 1) on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, given both the piufitg outlook of Group companies and the Company’s

financial position.
The main accounting policies adopted are unchamgeslis those used last year, and are explained/belo

Basis and scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation, based on the full nétircludes consolidated subsidiaries (controkefnegd

as the power of the Parent to determine the figdhm@eid operational policies of the company in order
derive benefits from its operations) and, basedhensingle line method, consolidated associatest ov
which significant influence is exercised.

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece2®®4 include the financial statements of the Rare

Cairo Communication S.p.A. and the following directndirect subsidiaries and associates:
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Company Head  Share capital % Reporting Business Consolidation method
office at 31/12/14 of investment date

Cairo Communication S.p.A. Milan 4,074 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Editore S.p.A. Milan 1,043 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation Milan 10 60 31/12 In liquidation Full re assets and
liabilities (*)

La7S.r.l Rome 1,020 100 31/12 TV publishing Full from 30 April
2013

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. Milan 2,818 100 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo

Sport S.r.l.) Milan 5,500 100 31/12 Network operator  Full

Cairo Publishing S.r.l. Milan 10 100 31/12 Publishing Full

Il Trovatore S.r.l. Milan 25 80 31/12 Internet Full

Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l. Milan 10 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

(*) the income statement is consolidated on a sifige basis in profit/(loss) from discontinued @®ns

In 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network S.r.l. (forn@airo Sport S.r.l.) was consolidated. Its finahci
statements had not been previously consolidatetheasompany was not significant because it was not
operational.

There were no other changes to the scope of cdasioin from the consolidated financial statemeats f
the year ended 31 December 2013.

The financial results of subsidiaries acquired ald suring the year are included in the consolidate
income statement from the actual acquisition datél the actual date of sale. Where necessary,
adjustments to subsidiary financial statementsmaagle in order to harmonize them with the Group
accounting policies.

The full consolidation method has been used fordbesolidation of subsidiary financial statements,
assuming the total of assets, liabilities, incomd axpense of individual companies, regardlesshef t
share owned, eliminating the carrying amount ofRheent investment against the subsidiary’s equity.
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of obidated subsidiaries are disclosed separately &quity
attributable to owners of the parent. This stakeaiculated on the basis of the percentage stake fair
value of the asset or liability on the original ghise date and subsequent changes in equity after s
date.

Unrealized gains and losses, provided they aramdr, deriving from transactions between companies
included in the scope of consolidation, are elirrddaas are all significant transactions which gige to
intra-Group receivables and payables, income aperese. These adjustments, like other consolidation
adjustments, where applicable, take account ofdla¢ed deferred tax effect.

Dividends distributed by consolidated companiesedirainated from the income statement and added to

prior-year profits if and to the extent they wegsedpout of such profit.
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Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is recognized udimg acquisition method. The acquisition price is
calculated by the sum of current values, at thdnaxge date, of the assets acquired, liabilitiearasd,
financial instruments issued by the Group in exgedor the control of the acquired company.

The subsidiary’s assets, liabilities and identigatontingent liabilities that meet the conditiafdFRS 3
are recognized at their current value on the attprigdate.

Goodwill arising from the purchase is recognizedaasntangible asset and is initially measuredost,c
corresponding to that portion of the acquisitioitgpaid by the Group exceeding the carrying amofint
the recognized assets, liabilities and identifiadaatingent liabilities.

The positive difference between assets and lisdslineasured at fair value at the acquisition datkethe
price paid is recognized in the consolidated incatadgement as non-recurring income. It may be stibje
to further adjustment within twelve months from thee of acquisition.

Equity attributable to non-controlling interestsndae measured at fair value or in proportion to ribe
assets recognized for the acquired company, aadbeisition date. The measurement method is chosen
based on type of transaction.

Non-controlling interests, investments in inactsgbsidiaries and investments in subsidiaries ofllsma

value are measured using the cost at the subseriptethod, reflecting any impairment losses.

Investments

Associates

Associates are those over which the Group can iseesignificant influence through participation in
decisions regarding financial and operating paticiut holds neither control nor joint control.

The financial results, assets and liabilities afogsates are consolidated using the equity method.

Using this method, investments in associates aregrézed in the statement of financial positiorcast,
adjusted for changes subsequent to the acquisfidhe net assets of associates, net of any impairm
losses on individual investments. Any losses exogetthe Group share therein are not recognizeassnl
the Group has a commitment relating to loss coerége excess of acquisition cost over the Groapesh
of carrying amount of assets, liabilities and id@&tile contingent liabilities of the associate tae
acquisition date is recognized as goodwill. Ewergr, goodwill is tested for impairment.

With regard to transactions between Group compaaigk associates, unrealized profits and losses are
eliminated in a proportion equal to the Group intne=nt in the associate, except when unrealizec$oss

are evidence of an impairment loss on the busiaeggired.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of a subsigizorresponds to that portion of the acquisitioitg

paid by the Group that exceeds the Group sharbeofair value of the assets, liabilities and ideadtie
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contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, at the aistfion date. Goodwill is recognized as an intatgifisset
with an indefinite life and is not amortized. It isviewed annually to identify any impairment loss.
Impairment losses are recognized directly in prafil loss and are not subsequently reversed. eln th
absence of a standard or a specific interpretatiothe subject, in the case of the acquisition aba-
controlling interest in an existing subsidiary, top31 December 2009, the difference between theafos
acquisition and the carrying amount of the assaddiabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill.
Goodwill arising from acquisitions carried out befdransition to IFRS is maintained at the amounts

derived from the application of Italian GAAP at tlate and is tested for impairment from that date.

Translation of foreign currency items

Transactions in foreign currency are initially rgnzed at the exchange rate in force on the trdiosac
date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominatddrieign currency are translated at the exchaatgein
force at year end.

Non-monetary items valued at historical cost irefgn currency are converted at the exchange rétegru

on the transaction date. Non-monetary items reezegnat fair value in foreign currency are convegéd
the exchange rate ruling on the fair value measentiate.

If a designated fair value hedging relationship basn set up between a hedging instrument and an
element being hedged in foreign currency, the atog treatment applied is the same as for hediges,

explained under “Hedging instruments”.

Revenue and cost recognition

Revenue and cost and income and expense are reedgm an accruals basis, specifically:

* Revenue is recognized based on the probability witich the company will enjoy the economic
benefits and in the extent to which the amountlmreliably determined. Revenue is stated net pf an
adjustments.

e Advertising revenue is recognized at the momenathesrtisement is broadcast or published. Revenue
from publications is recognized at the date of mattlon, net of reasonably estimated returns.

« Revenue from the sale of magazine subscriptionee@®gnized on the basis of the magazines
published and distributed during the period.

* Pre-publication and launch costs are recognizuidfit and loss when incurred.

* Interest income and expense are recognized oncanad€ basis.

» Dividends are recognized when the right of the elhalders to receive the payment is established.

e Costs incurred on behalf of third parties are reghé against the cost to which they relate.
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Taxes

Taxes for the year correspond to the sum of cuardtdeferred taxes.

Current taxes are based upon taxable income foygae Taxable income differs from the resultsvaino

in the income statement as it excludes both pesitimd negative entries which would be taxable or
deductible in other tax years and excludes comgsnemich are not taxable or deductible at any time.
Current taxes are calculated using the rates gefat the reporting date.

Cairo Communication and its subsidiaries Cairo &#ditS.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei ISin
liquidation, Cairo Publishing S.r.l., La7 S.r.l. darCairo Network S.r.I. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.)
participate in the national tax consolidation scearhUT Communications S.p.A., in accordance with a
117/129 of the Consolidated Income Tax Act.

The consolidation scheme, which regulates econaspects pertaining to the sums deposited or reteive
against the advantages or disadvantages arisingtfre national tax consolidation scheme, also allfow
any increased costs or decreased benefits inchyréloe companies, by participating in this procegto

be repaid by the parent.

UT Communications S.p.A. acts as the tax parentdatedrmines a single taxable base for the group of
companies that participate in the national tax obdation scheme, which thereby benefits from thiditst

of offsetting taxable profits against taxable |@sgeone tax return.

Each company that participates in the nationaktamsolidation scheme transfers its taxable profibss

to the tax parent. For any such taxable profit reggb by a subsidiary, UT Communications S.p.A.
recognizes receivables equal to the IRES payaBlenversely, for any such taxable loss, reportec by
subsidiary, UT Communications recognize a payalgjeakto IRES due on the loss that has been
contractually transferred at Group level.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized &ll taxable temporary differences, while defdrtax
assets are recognized to the extent of the pratyathibt there will be future taxable profits whig¥ill
allow for the utilization of the deductible tempupyralifferences. Deferred taxes are calculatecherbasis

of the tax rates that are foreseen will be in fatthe moment of realization of the asset or eflidbility,
based on tax legislation in force at the reportiate. Where relevant, the effects of any changdax
rate or tax legislation are disclosed in the notBgferred tax assets and liabilities are showtheit net
value when there is a legal right to offset curtemtliabilities against tax receivable assets\ahdn taxes

relate to the same taxation authority.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefit, mandatory for all Italemmpanies under art. 2120 of the Civil Code, are
deferred remuneration and are directly relatedvéoemployee’s length of service in the company, tand

the employee’s actual remuneration received dutieg period of service.
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For Italian companies with at least 50 employeest-pmployment benefits take the form of a defined
benefit plan, solely for the amounts accrued praod January 2007 (and not yet paid at the repprtin
date), whereas subsequent to such date, they @wgnieed as a defined contribution plan. For Italia
companies with less than 50 employees, post-emm@oyroenefits are considered as a defined benefit
plan. All defined benefit plans are discounted. Thscounting process, based on demographic and
financial assumptions, is performed by independantiaries. Following the Amendment to IAS 19 -
Employee Benefitghe recognition of expenses related to work peréal and net financial charges are
recognized in the income statement, while the neitiog of actuarial gains and losses arising friwe tte-

measurement of liabilities and assets are recodiiizthe statement of comprehensive income.

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Costs, including ancillary costs incurred for thogaisition of resources with no physical substamce,
recognized under intangible assets when the capastifiable and the asset is clearly identifiatiel
controlled by the Group, and where the use of ssetawill generate probable future benefits toGheup.
These are valued at their acquisition or productiost, including related costs — to the extent kacty
they are considered to have a finite life — ang tre amortized to reflect their remaining useftdreomic
lives. The amortization periods of intangible &ssé# various types are as follows:

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and sin8lao 5 years for application software licenses

rights

Other:

Software 3to 5 years

Publication titles 20 years

Television rights Based on their availability period

Publication titles are amortized over a period @fy2ars from the date of their acquisition basedheir
remaining useful lives. This amortization periodrégularly reviewed to take account of the finahcia
performance of the subsidiaries that own the title.

Registration rights (with a duration of more thahronths) for the broadcasting of films, seriegpso
cartoons, classical concerts, short films, andlithes including ancillary charges (dubbing, editingd
materials), and contributions to productions puseltbunder license agreements, are carried undelidme
rights" and amortized on an annual straight-lingidbthroughout the contractual term of the rigassfrom
the year they are available and ready for use.

If the rights have used up their airing time, religsss of the amortization already charged, thedvedi
amount is fully expensed during in the period @ st airing.

The remaining useful life and the amortizationestd applied are reviewed on a regular basis argtevh

change is deemed necessary, the amortizationsregstated in accordance with the “prospective’hoet
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Assets under development include the costs incdioreithe acquisition or internal production of inggble
assets, to which title has not been fully acquoetbr projects to be completed. Assets under agveént
continue to be accounted for in this item up tottivee of their economic use, when they are rediassi

under the relevant items of intangible assets amltized.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are recognidesh their cost can be reliably determined and when
related future economic benefits can be enjoyethéyGroup.

They are recognized at acquisition price or prddactost, including directly associated expenses an
costs, plus the share of indirect costs which @arehsonably attributed to the asset.

These assets are systematically depreciated amighstliine basis each year at rates consistelft thi¢

remaining useful life of the asset. Depreciatiates applied are as follows

Property 3%
General equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Plant and machinery 10%
Office equipment and furniture 10%-12%
Electronic equipment 20%

Land is not depreciated.

The above PPE depreciation rates are reduced by &g their first year of use, this percentage
representing the weighted average of the entrystoaf new assets, on an annual basis. Depreciation
begins when the asset is ready for use.

The remaining useful life and the amortizationesid applied are reviewed on a regular basis argtevh
change is deemed necessary, the amortizationsregstated in accordance with the “prospective’hat
The remaining useful lives of assets are reviewsatially and if incremental maintenance or otherkwor
has been carried out which changes the remainiefulutife of the investment, these are adjusted
accordingly.

Incremental and maintenance costs producing afisigni and tangible increase in the productive cdapa
or security of assets, or lengthening their renrmginiseful life, are capitalized and recognized s a
increase in the carrying amount of the asset. @rgimaintenance costs are taken directly to peofi
loss.

Leasehold improvements are recognized as PPE edat$is of the cost incurred. The depreciatiorogeri

corresponds to the lower of the remaining usefeldi the asset and the term of the contract.
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Impairment of assets

At least once a year, the Group reviews the reabigy of the intangible assets with an indefiniseful
life, and of investments and publication titlesgd ashenever there are potential indicators of arainmpent
loss on PPE and intangible assets with a finitéulisiée, in order to determine whether such assety
have suffered an impairment loss. When such inolisadre present, the carrying amount of the asset i
reduced to reflect recoverable amount. The recter@mount of an asset is the greater of its faine
less costs to sell, and its value in use. Theuvaine of a listed investment is determined acewydo its
market price at the reporting date, in case thekSkbarket price is considered to represent thectffe
value of the investment. In the absence of markétes, estimates and valuation methods are applied
based on data which is in any case evident on #rkeh To determine an asset’s value in use, tiogis
calculates the present value of future estimatstl @aws, inclusive of tax, by applying a pre-tagabunt
rate which reflects the current market valuatiorjuding the time value of money and the specifks
inherent to the asset.

Excluding goodwill, when the impairment loss on tladue of an asset no longer applies or is redubed,
carrying amount of the asset is increased up toé¢meestimated recoverable amount, and may noeexce

the amount which would have been determined hathpairment loss been recognized.

Current assets and liabilities

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of the pgecloa production cost, including all directly ditriable
expenses, net of discounts and allowances, catculasing the weighted average cost method, and
estimated realizable value. Estimated realizableeviakes into account any production and direlgssa
costs. Inventories are adjusted for obsolete ap@ shoving items through a specific write-down

provision.

Receivables

Trade and other current assets are recognize@iaestimated realizable value.

Financial assets

They are initially recognized at fair value, whibhsically corresponds to consideration paid andctir
expenses associated with their acquisition. Fimdra$sets acquired and sold are recognized at their
trading date, when the Group intends to acquildisete assets.

At the subsequent reporting dates, the financsgtaghat the Company has the intention and thi¢yetioi

hold to maturity (held-to-maturity investments) aeeognized at amortized cost, net of any impaitmen

losses, to reflect write-downs, if any.
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Investments other than those held to maturity Exesdied as held for trading or available for sahel are
measured at the end of each reporting period atfdievalue. When financial assets are held fading,
gains and losses arising from fair value changeseognized in profit and loss. In the case oflalvke-
for-sale financial assets, gains and losses arfsamg fair value changes are recognized in comprsite
income. When available-for-sale financial asseés sald, redeemed or transferred, cumulative gains o
losses previously recognized in comprehensive ircomst be reclassified from equity to profit/ (lofs

the year. This reserve is also used if alignmeraitovalue results in subsequent impairment ofabset
until the reserve is used up. Any additional losseeding the reserve, should it result in an inmpairt
loss, is taken to profit and loss.

Regarding measurement of available-for-sale asgetsdirectors have chosen as impairment indicators

the decline in fair value below cost of over 50%far a period exceeding 24 months.

Cash and cash equivalents

This item comprises cash, bank current accountsdapdsits on demand, and other short-term highly
liquid financial investments which are easily coride to cash and not subject to the risk of digant
value changes.

Cash and cash equivalents are recognized at thinal amount.

Borrowings, bank loans and overdrafts

Borrowings, interest-bearing bank loans and bardedrafts are recognized based on the amount cashed
net of transaction costs, and subsequently measatremmortized cost using the current interest rate
method.

Trade payables

These are recognized at their nominal amount.

Equity
Treasury shares
Treasury shares are measured at historical cosa@ntecognized as a reduction in equity. The resul

the subsequent sale of treasury shares is recapdimztly as a change in equity.

Dividends paid
Dividends payable are recognized as a change itydquhe year they are approved by the Sharemslde
Meeting or by the Board of Directors in the evehao interim dividend, pursuant to art. 2433 bigho#

[talian Civil Code.
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Provisions for risk and charges

Provisions for risk and charges are recognized wthenGroup has a legal or constructive obligation
resulting from a past event and for which a prolitgexists for the fulfillment of that obligationThe
provisions reflect the best estimate of costs baseshformation currently available in order tofilithe

obligation at the reporting date, and are discalatken the effect is significant.

Derivative financial instruments

Hedges, recognized as "Financial assets heldddmg", hedge foreign exchange risk relating teifgm
currency payables (forward currency purchases mhimgwith schedules of contractual payments).
Initial measurement of derivatives is made atV¥alue at the date of initial recognition. Fair v@kthanges

are recognized in profit or loss.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements anchtites thereto, in application of IFRS, requires the
Group carry out estimates and assumptions whiagttthe carrying amount of assets and liabilitied a
disclosure about assets and contingent liabildgiethe reporting date. Estimates and assumpticets aie
based on experience and on other factors considegadicant. Actual results could differ from tlees
estimates. Estimates mainly relate to provisiams risks relating to receivables, obsolete inventor
publishing returns, investment measurements, apadidn, depreciation, impairment of assets, taratio
provisions for risk and charges, and contingeiliizes.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed reguladyttam effects of each variation therein are reczaghi

in the profit and loss in the period in which thetimate was revised. The effects of such revisemes
reflected in the periods on which they have effeet,both in the current period, and in futureipes, if
relevant. In this context, the persisting uncettafactors in the short and medium economic tevhich
make it hard to predict a return to normal marlatditions, have led to the need to make assumptions
regarding future performance which are influencedsignificant uncertainty, and the possibility of
achieving results different from those estimatednoa be excluded for the next year, and which could
therefore require adjustments to the carrying amawen significant, although these are obviouslyher
currently quantifiable nor foreseeable.

The items most susceptible to these uncertainteetha allowance for impairment, inventory writeads,
non-current assets (intangible assets and investineleferred tax assets, post-employment beragfits
the provisions for risk and charges.

A summary follows of all critical measurement preses used and key assumptions made by management
regarding the future in the process of applyingpaating policies and that could have a significefifect

on the amounts recognized in the consolidated giahrstatements and for which there is a risk that
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significant adjustments to the carrying amount sdeds and liabilities could arise in the next firiah

period.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects manage’s estimate regarding the losses on the partfol
of receivables from end customers. The allowas@siimated based on the losses expected by thg Gro
according to past experience for similar receiv@bteirrent and past due dates, losses and reeegigitsy
from the careful monitoring of receivable managetmamd from projections on market and economic
conditions.

The persisting uncertainty factors in the short artlium economic term, along with the resultingditre
squeeze, could result in further deteriorationhsf financial conditions of Group debtors compared t

deterioration already considered in the quantificabf the recognized allowance for impairment.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extemthtoh it is considered probable that future tagabl
income will be generated to allow the utilizatidndeductible temporary differences. The realizataleie

of deferred tax assets is periodically reviewedoetiaog to the future taxable income foreseen in the

Group’s most recent plans.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets (inclugoapwill)

Non-current assets include property, plant and pegent, intangible assets (including goodwill),
investments and other financial assets. Managep®iddically reviews the carrying amount of thenno
current assets held and used, and those of assdt$on sale, as and when circumstances requirk suc
revision. This is performed by the comparison @& tarrying amount of the asset and the greateneof t
fair value, less costs to sell, and value in uSair value is determined according to market pricesthe
absence of market value, estimates and valuatiael®@re used based on data available on the market
Value in use is determined based on the estimagxpmdcted cash flows from the use or sale of tketas
and is discounted using appropriate discount r&t#gen the carrying amount of a non-current assgt ha
suffered an impairment loss, the Group recognizesngairment loss equal to the positive difference
between the greater of carrying amount of the amsétits recoverable amount from its use or sae, a
determined according to the Group’s most recemtla

For the preparation of the consolidated finandialesnents at 31 December 2014, and in particul#rén
performance of impairment tests on intangible assed property, plant and equipment, the different
segments of the Group have taken into accountxpected 2015 performance, whose assumptions and
results are in line with the information disclosadhe section onsignificant events after the reporting

period and business outldbln the Directors’ Report. In addition, for thelmequent years of the plan,
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necessary adjustments have been cautiously matikeoaccount of the deep market changes resulting
from the current economic and financial crisis. dignificant impairment was required based on such

figures in the plan.

Provisions for risks and charges
The provisions for risk and charges relating totiogent liabilities of a legal or fiscal nature anade on
the basis of estimates made by the Directors, er#sis of valuations made by the Company’s legdl a

fiscal advisors on the probable charge that camasonably expected to fulfill the obligation.

Risk management

The main fiscal, legal and financial risks to whtble Cairo Communication Group is exposed, as agell
the policies put in place by Management for theemagement, are explained in Note 35 and Note 37.

Reference is made to the Directors’ Report for afi@nal and business risks.

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios applied from 1° January 2014

The following accounting standards, amendments iatatpretations, revised also following IASB’s

yearly improvement process, were applied for thet fime starting from 1 January 2014:

 IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial StatementsThe standard, issued by the IASB in May 2011,
supersedes SIC 12 Consolidation: special purpose entities (vehicleapd parts of IAS 27 —
Consolidated and separate financial statemegnamedseparate financial statementssets out the
accounting requirements of equity investments ia #Heparate financial statements. IFRS 10
introduces a new control model that is appliedltertities, including vehicles, based on the power
exercised by the Group over these entities, exposur rights to variable returns from its
involvement with these entities, and the abilityuse its power to influence these variable returns.
The IASB requires retrospective application of skendard from 1 January 2013. The competent EU
bodies have completed the approval process oftthwlard, deferring the date of application to 1
January 2014, allowing however early adoption bagimfrom 1 January 2013.

The adoption of the new standard did not requieerédefinition of the scope of consolidation.

¢ IFRS 11-Joint arrangements- The standard, issued by the IASB in May 2011eggdes IAS 31
— Interests in Joint Ventureand SIC 13 Jointly controlled entities - Nonmonetary contrilouts by
venturersIFRS 11 provides criteria to identify joint arramgents based on the rights and obligations
arising from the agreements, rather than on thregall form. It uses only the equity method to
account for interests in joint ventures in the abidgated financial statements. Following issuehod t
standard, IAS 28 Hvestments in associatess amended to include within its framework, frima

effective date of the standard, interests in jearitures. The IASB requires retrospective apphcati
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of the standard from 1 January 2013. The compé&#Erbodies have completed the approval process
of the standard, deferring the date of applicatmh January 2014, allowing however early adoption
beginning from 1 January 2013. The adoption byGa&o Communication Group of this standard
had no impact on the data in the Annual Financegddrt.

IFRS 12 —Disclosure of interests in other entitiesThe standard, issued by the IASB in May 2011,
establishes the disclosure of additional informatio provide on all types of interests, including
those in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, assxiatpecial purpose entities and other
unconsolidated structured entities. The IASB resgpiietrospective application of the standard from
1 January 2013. The competent EU bodies have ctadptee approval process of the standard,
deferring the date of application to 1 January 2@lléwing however early adoption beginning from
1 January 2013. The effects of the adoption ofnilne standard are limited to disclosure relating to
interests in other entities, to provide in the sdtethe annual consolidated financial statements.

IAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements Following issue of IFRS 10 in May 2011, the IASB
narrowed the scope of application of IAS 27 onlyhe separate financial statements. The standard
specifically governs the accounting treatment @Egiments in the separate financial statements and
is applicable from 1 January 2014. The adoptiothkeyCairo Communication Group of this standard
had no impact on the data in the Parent's FinaiStetements.

IAS 28 (2011)- Investments in associates and joint ventureBollowing issue of IFRS 11 in May
2011, the IASB amended the existing standard ttudlecin its framework investments in joint
ventures, and to govern the reduction of the istenenich does not result in ceasing to apply the
equity method. The standard is applicable from fiudey 2014. The adoption by the Cairo
Communication Group of this standard had no impadhe data in the Annual Financial Report.
Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — The amendments issued by the
IASB in December 2011 clarify the application ofteria for the offsetting of financial assets and
liabilities appearing in IAS 32. The amendments thes applied retrospectively from 1 January
2014. The adoption by the Cairo Communication Groiughis standard had no impact on the data in
the Annual Financial Report.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS E2Transition guidance amendments On 28 June
2012, the IASB published the amendments to IFR$iGgipe, together with the relevant standards,
from financial periods beginning on or after 1 Jayu2013, unless applied earlier. The document
introduces amendments to IFRS 10, 11 and 12 tafyclaow an investor should adjust only the
previous comparative period retrospectively andide the information under IAS 8, paragraph 8,
letter f, exempting from the provisions of the otltetters of the same paragraph. IFRS 12 was

further amended, in derogation of the request giséed comparative information, by limiting the
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request of presenting comparative information fiscldsures regarding unconsolidated "structured
entities" in periods prior to the date of applioatof IFRS 12.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27Investment entities- The amendment, issued by
the IASB in October 2012, integrates IFRS 10 byifgliamg the definition of investment entities and
clarifies its consolidation methods. The amendntenERS 12 integrates the standard by clarifying
the disclosures to provide and the assessmentsoentd determine investment entities. The
amendment to IAS 27 integrates the standard byblesiang the disclosures that the investment
entity is required to provide if it is also a calling entity. The adoption by the Cairo
Communication Group of this standard had no impadhe data in the Annual Financial Report.
Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures on non-financial eiss- The standard,
issued by the IASB in May 2013, governs the disales to provide on the recoverable amount of
impaired assets, if the amount is based on thev&dure less costs of disposal. The amendments must
be applied retrospectively to financial periods ibeopg on or after 1 January 2014. Early
application is allowed for periods in which theignhas already applied IFRS 13.

Amendments to IAS 39Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedgeaunting — The
standard, issued by the IASB in June 2013, clarifleat the amendments allow continuation of
hedge accounting in the circumstance in which teevdtive, which has been designated as an
hedging instrument, is novated as a consequendewsf or regulations in order to replace the
original counterparty to ensure performance ofdabkgation if certain conditions are met. The same
amendment will also be included in IFRSFthancial instrumentsThese amendments must be
applied retrospectively to financial periods begignon or after 1° January 2014. The adoption by
the Cairo Communication Group of this standard tadmpact on the data in the Annual Financial
Report.

IFRIC 21 — Levies- The interpretation, issued by the IASB in May 20provides guidance on
when to recognize liabilities for a levy imposed aygovernment, with the exception of those
governed by other standards (i.e. IAS 1ideome tax IAS 37 establishes the recognition criteria of
liabilities, one of which is the existence of agaet obligation on an entity resulting from pasres
(obligating event). The interpretation clarifiegsthhe obligating event that gives rise to liabifior
payment of a levy is explained by the relevantdiegion that gives rise to its payment. IFRIC 21 is
applicable according to the IASB for financial yg&dreginning on or after 1 January 2014, while,
according to the EU Regulation, from 17 June 200i#e adoption by the Cairo Communication

Group of this standard had no impact on the datherAnnual Financial Report.
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Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios approved by the European Union, yet to

be enforced, and not adopted in advance by the Grpu

*« Amendments to IAS 19Employee contributions to defined-benefit planghe amendment, issued
by the IASB in November 2013, applies to employestiibutions or to defined benefit plans. The
purpose of the amendments is to simplify the actiogrof contributions that are independent of the
number of years of service. The amendments aretefefor financial periods beginning on or after

1 July 2014, early application is allowed.

e Improvements to IFRS: 2010-2012Xycle - On 12 December 2013, the IASB publisiéchnual
Improvements to IFRSs: 2010-2012 CY,ckehich acknowledges the amendments to the stasdzs
part of their annual improvement process. The ammemis are applied to financial periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014. Early applicati® allowed. The main amendments regard:

IFRS 2 Share-based paymentsAmendments have been made to the definitions oftiivg

condition” and "market condition”, while further fdetions have been added of "performance
condition" and "service condition" (previously inded in the definition of "vesting condition”).

IFRS 3 Business combinatioldie amendments clarify that a contingent consideratiassified as

an asset or liability should be measured at faluevaat each balance sheet date, regardless of
whether the contingent consideration is a finaniaistrument to which IFRS 9 or IAS 39 applies or
a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fatue (other than period measurement adjustments)
are presented in profit and loss.

IFRS 8 Operating segmentdhe amendments require an entity to disclose tfaders used by

management to identify the entity’'s reportable segt® when operating segments have been
aggregated, including a description of the aggestjaiperating segments and economic indicators
considered in determining whether these operatimgments have "similar economic
characteristics" The amendments also clarify that the reconcilat@tween total assets of the
operating segments and the total assets of théy astiprovided only if the total assets of the
operating segments are regularly provided to thef dperating decision-maker.

IFRS 13 Fair Value MeasurementAmendments have been made to Baesis for Conclusioni

order to clarify that short-term receivables angades are still able to be measured on an
undiscounted basis where the effect of discounsmgmaterial.

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment and IAS 3&nrgible assets —The amendments have

eliminated inconsistency in the measurement of mctated depreciation when a tangible or
intangible asset is being revalued. The new remérds clarify that the gross carrying amount is
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaloatiothe carrying amount of the asset, and that
accumulated depreciation is equal to the differemewveen gross carrying amount and carrying

amount, less subsequent depreciation.
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IAS 24 Related party disclosurekl elarifies the provisions that apply in the itiénation of related

party transactions and disclosure to provide wiendctivities of key management personnel are
provided by a management entity (not by naturatqes). In this case, the management entity is
considered a related party and separate disclssiondd be given on the provision of services of the
management entity; as part of the disclosure onpemsation to key management personnel, the
components of compensation paid to the managemétit reed not be disclosed.

e Improvements to IFRS: 2011-2013 CycléOn 12 December 2013, the IASB publishHéghnual
Improvements to IFRSs: 2011-2013 Cyjckehich acknowledges the amendments to the stasdes
part of their annual improvement process. The ammemis are applied to financial periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014. Early applicati® allowed. The main amendments regard:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International FinaatReporting Standards It clarifies that a first-

time adopter, as an alternative to the applicatiba principle currently in force on the date oé th
first IAS/ IFRS financial statements, may opt farlg application of a new standard intended to
replace the principle in force. The option is adedt when the new standard allows early
application. The entity is required to apply thensaversion of the standard in all periods presented
in the first IAS/IFRS financial statements.

IFRS 3 Business combinations'he amendments aim to clarify the exclusion frow application

scope of IFRS 3 of all types of joint arrangement.
IFRS 13 Fair Value MeasurementlFRS 13, paragraph 52drtfolio exceptioh in its current

version, restricts to financial assets and lidb#itincluded in the application scope of IAS 39 the
possibility of fair value measurement on a net$fabhe amendment clarifies that the possibility of
fair value measurement on a net basis also apliesntracts within the application scope of IAS
39 (or IFRS 9), but that do not meet the definitdfriinancial assets and liabilities in IAS 32, Buc
as contracts to buy and sell non-financial itenas dan be settled net in cash.

IAS 40 — Investment PropertyThe amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 and IAS 40rertemutually

exclusive and that, in order to determine whethergurchase of a property falls within the scope of
IFRS 3, it is necessary to refer to the specifiidations in IFRS 3; instead, to determine whether
the purchase of such property falls within the scoplAS 40, it is necessary to refer to the specif

indications in IAS 40.

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios not approved by the European Union, yet

to be enforced, and not adopted in advance by ther@up

* IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts IFRS 14, published by the IASB in January 201w
only first-time adopters of IFRSs to continue taagnize the amounts relating to rate regulation
according to previously adopted accounting statgddn order to improve comparability with the

entities that already apply the IFRSs and do noigrize these amounts, the standard requires that
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the effect of rate regulation should be presentgghimtely from the other items. The principle

applies from 1 January 2016; early applicatiorilmaged.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangementd he amendments, issued by the IASB in May 2014,
provide clarification on the accounting of purctasé interests in a joint operation whose activity
constitutes a business. The amendments are effeetirospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016; early application is addw

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, plant and equipmemd IAS 38 Intangible assets The
amendments, issued by the IASB in May 2014, aicidadfy that depreciation criteria determined in
accordance with revenue are not appropriate, aetlemue generated by an activity that includes the
use of an asset generally reflect factors other tha consumption of economic benefits of the asset
The IASB also clarified the presumption that reveminot appropriate to measure the consumption
of the economic benefits generated by an intangisiget. This presumption may, however, be
overcome in limited circumstances. These amendnaeetsffective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016; early application is addw

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customersThe standard, published by the IASB in May
2014, introduces a general model to determine whetheenwdnd to what extent will revenue be
recognized. The standard replaces the recognititeria set out in IAS 18 RevenuglAS 11 -Work

in progressand IFRIC 13 -Customer Loyalty Programmel-RS 15 applies to financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017; early apfbioas allowed.

IFRS 9 — Financial instrumentsThe standard, published by the IASB in July 201essedes IAS
39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and MeasuremeltRS 9 introduces new provisions for
the classification and measurement of financiatrimsents, including a new model for expected
losses in the calculation of impairment losses ioanfcial assets, and new general provisions for
hedge accounting. It also includes provisions fug tecognition and derecognition of financial
instruments in accordance with the current IAS J%e new standard will be applicable
retrospectively from 1 January 2018; early appiocais allowed.

Amendment to IAS 27 Separate financial statemerits August 2014, the IASB published Equity
Method in Separate Financial Statements; the amengmo IAS 27 will allow entities to use the
equity method to account for investments in subsiels, joint ventures and associates in the separat
financial statements The amendments are effectivefifiancial periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016; early application is allowed.

Amendment to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statemee and IAS 28 Investments in associates
and joint venturesThe amendment issued by the IASB in September Bigfidights the changes to
address an inconsistency in dealing with the satootribution of assets between an investor ad it

associate or joint venture. The main consequencthefchanges is that a full gain or loss is
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recognized when a transaction involves a busindss.amendments are applied to financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Improvements to IFRS: 2012-2014 Cyclén September 2014, the IASB published “Annual
Improvements to IFRSs: 2012-2014 Cycle”, which askdedges the amendments to the standards
as part of their annual improvement process. Thenaments are applied to financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early appboas allowed. The main amendments regard:

IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discoat operations Fhe amendment introduces

specific guidance to IFRS 5 in case an entity ssifies an asset (or disposal group) from held for
sale to held-for-distribution (or vice versa), ohem recognition of an asset held-for-distribution
ceases.

IAS 19 Employee benefitsThe amendment to IAS 19 clarifies that high dyatiorporate bonds

used to determine the discount rate of post-empdmynbenefits must be issued in the same
currency used in the payment of the benefits.

IAS 34 Interim financial reporting The document clarifies the requirements in thenetieat the

disclosures required are presented in the intem@ntial report but not in the interim financial
statements. The amendment requires that the disel®e incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever theyincluded within the interim financial report
and that the document be available to users ofitlamcial statements on the same terms as the
interim financial statements and at the same time.

IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosuréBie document introduces additional guidance tdfgla

whether a servicing contract constitutes a comigitinvolvement in a transferred asset for the
purposes of applying these disclosure requirenteritse transferred assets.

Amendment to IAS 1ln December 2014, the IASB published “Disclosurdidtive” The main

amendments regartateriality and aggregationAn entity must not reduce the understandabilfty o
its financial statements by obscuring useful infation with irrelevant information or by
aggregating relevant information that has differemaracteristics or functions. Additional subtotals
must be reconciled to the subtotal and totals redui

Information to be presented in the statement ainfimal position and of comprehensive income:

specific items of profit or loss, other comprehgasncome and the statement of financial position
can be disaggregated. Subtotals must: be made itgntd recognized and measured in accordance
with IFRS, be presented and labeled in order toarthle components of the subtotal clear and
understandable; be consistent from period to peStatement of other comprehensive income for
the year:the share of other comprehensive income of assscitd joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in agtgedorm but separately from other

comprehensive income, as a single item, based athehthe items will or will not subsequently
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be reclassified to profit or losfotes — Structurethe entity is free to decide the order of

presentation in the financial statements, but nsossider the effect on the understandability and
comparability of its financial statements, emphiagizhe most relevant operating segments for the
understanding of its financial performance andrfmal position.
The amendments are applied to financial periodsnbew on or after 1 January 2016. Early
application is allowed.

« Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investmentities: consolidation exceptionslna
December 2014, the IASB published "Investment EgtitApplying the Consolidation Exception”.

The main amendments regard:

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statementsThe amendments to the IFRS clarify that the
exemption from presenting consolidated financiakeshents applies to a parent entity that is a
subsidiary of an investment entity, when the inwestt entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fai
value.

IAS 28 Investments in AssociateBhe amendment to IAS 28 allows a non-investmatitye when

applying the equity method of accounting for itedstment in an associate or a joint venture that is
an investment entity, to retain the fair value nueasient that is applied by that associate or joint
venture to its subsidiaries.

IAS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entitiethe amendment clarifies that this principle does

apply to an investment entity that prepares thanfimal statements in which all of its associates ar
measured at fair value through profit and loss.
The amendments are applied retrospectively to €i@rperiods beginning on or after 1 January

2016. Early application is allowed.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Regarding the items of the consolidated incomestant, following is the analysis of the main iteofis
cost and revenue for the year ended 31 Decembdr. 201

Comparative figures refer to the annual financegart at 31 December 2013. To provide a better
understanding of the figures, it should be notext the 2013 income statement included the costs and
revenue of La7 S.r.l,, which was consolidated addy 2013, with regard only to the May-December

eight-month period.
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1. Revenue

The following table shows gross operating reveagency discounts and net operating revenue:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Gross operating revenue 266,014 276,704
Advertising agency discounts (25,748) (27,190)
Net operating revenue 240,266 249,514

Revenue is generated exclusively in Italy and ayais by geographical area is pointless. An aiglys
of revenue by business segment is provided in l6te

Gross revenue can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

TV advertising 155,215 163,213
Print media advertising 27,977 29,229
Stadium signage 2,537 2,536
Internet advertising 1,244 966
Revenue from concession of programming scheduleespa 982 1,295
Other TV revenue 2,180 2,070
Magazine over-the-counter sales 73,400 74,791
Subscriptions 2,883 2,992
Books and catalogues 981 910
VAT relating to publications (1,486) (1,398)
Other 100 100
Total gross operating revenue 266,014 276,704

The consolidation of La7 S.r.l. for the entire tweelmonths (as compared to the May-December eight-

month period of 2013 included in the same periad {eear) brought no significant change to revenue,

since over 90% of La7 S.r.l. revenue comes fromedibing sales generated by Cairo Communication

under the advertising concession contract in effefre the acquisition.

As explained more in detail in the Directors’ Repor 2014:

= it confirmed the excellent circulation results, witevenue at Euro 73.4 million versus Euro 74.8
million in 2013,

= Group gross print advertising revenue, which reddhgro 27.2 million, dropped by 3.9% versus 2013
(ACNielsen-6.5% the magazine advertising market in 2014),

= gross advertising sales on La7 and La7d channedsiatied to Euro 152.9 million (Euro 157.5 million
in 2013).
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*k*k

2. Other revenue and income

“Other revenue and income”, amounting to Euro 17 ®@usand (Euro 7,985 thousand in 2013), consist
of revenue from pulp and paper sales, prior-yeeorime and release of risk provisions also as atresul
settlement agreements defined during the yeargoitaof technical advertising costs and other itefs
revenue other than operating revenue. The increases 2013 is due mainly to the consolidationaf L
for the entire twelve months (versus the May-Decenaight-month period included in 2013).

*k*k

3. Changes in finished goods

The item amounts to a negative Euro 28 thousami@ative Euro 61 thousand in 2013), arising from
the use of the magazine sales during the ordinauyse of business relating to Cairo Editore S.pmd
Cairo Publishing S.r.l.

*k*k

4. Raw materials, consumables and supplies

Raw materials mainly relate to the activities ofr@&ditore, Cairo Publishing and La7 and include t

main items:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Paper 21,973 25,528
Set design materials 160 299
Equipment and sundry materials 1,678 1,211
Change in inventories of paper, equipment and sumdterials,

TV programmes and the like 778 1,249
Total raw materials, consumables and supplies 24,589 28,287

The change in inventories, amounting to Euro 708%and, refers to:

- Euro 88 thousand for the change in inventoriesndfiduse TV programmes of La7 S.r.l. or
programmes purchased externally and yet to be ,aiigioks on films, soaps and the like and
related ancillary costs within one year and ydidaired;

- Euro 690 thousand for the change in inventorigzapler and other consumables of Cairo Editore
S.p.A.

*kk

5.  Services

As shown in the following chart, this item mainlproprises publishers’ fees, agents’ commissions,

external processing, consultancies and collabarstigeneral and administrative costs, and can be

analyzed as follows:

111



Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Direct brokerage costs 13,874 51,824
Technical costs 857 410
Administrative costs 4,706 4,806
Consultancies and collaborations 14,309 18,370
External processing 17,098 17,618
Sub-contracted TV programmes 17,794 8,460
Professional and artistic services and other T\&attimg 10,510 5,023
Shooting, crew, editing, and outdoor TV activities 1,904 2,027
News and sport information services and TV newseage 1,994 1,561
TV broadcasting services 11,806 6,475
TV artwork 523 451
Outdoor TV links 612 697
Advertising and launch promotion costs - 965
Advertising and promotion 6,655 6,581
Organizational costs and overheads 11,185 8,853
Total services 113,827 134,121

The drop in costs for services was mainly due ®décrease versus 2013 in "direct brokerage costs",
which includes publishers’ fees and agents’ comimniss This decrease is related to the consolidatfon
La7 S.r.l. for the entire twelve months (versusey-December eight-month period included in 2013),
and the resulting reversal of intercompany publishiees, replaced by the direct costs incurred.dy.

The consolidation produced the concurrent incr@gasests for services related to TV activitiescosts

for leased assets and in personnel expense, asregbelow.

The increases versus 2013 in “sub-contracted T\graromes", “professional and artistic services and
other TV consulting”, “costs for shooting, crew,ited), and outdoor TV activities”, “news and sport
information services and TV news agency”, “TV broasting services”, “TV artwork”, and “outdoor TV
links”, are explained by the fact that the 2013ome statement included La7 S.r.l. costs for ongy th
May-December eight-month period.

In 2013, “advertising and launch costs” referredh® advertising and promotional costs incurredttier
new magazine “Settimanale Giallo”.

“Publishers’ fees” also include Euro 2,002 thousahd@orino Football Club S.p.A., a subsidiary ofTU.
Communications S.p.A., under the advertising cosioesagreement with Cairo Pubblicitd S.p.A. as

explained in Note 36 to related-party transactions.

*%k%k
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6. Use of third-party assets
The item amounts to Euro 22,811 thousand (Euro2B7tBousand at 31 December 2013) and mainly

includes costs for journalistic, sport and TV pBgme rights, lease payments for property, office

equipment and royalties for copyrights.

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Lease payments for property 3,660 3,291
Rental of TV studios 660 607
Rental fees for TV studio equipment 1,454 1,129
TV programme rights 8,464 7,293
Sport rights 209 340
Journalistic rights 2,553 1,529
Copyrights (SIAE, IMAIE, SCF, AFI) 3,933 2,390
Royalty expense and sundry rights 851 448
Other costs for use of third-party assets 1,027 801
Total costs for use of third-party assets 22,811 17,828

Increases versus 2013 in “rental of TV studiosgntal fees for TV studio equipment”, “TV programme
rights”, “journalistic rights” , “other copyrights{SIAE, IMAIE, SCF, AFI)” and “royalty expense and
sundry rights”, are attributable to the fact the 2014 income statement included La7 S.r.l. dosthe
entire 12 months (versus the May-December eighttmperiod included in 2013)

*k*k

7. Personnel expense

The item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Wages and salaries 43,613 35,534
Social security charges 15,068 11,086
Post-employment benefits 1,087 1,102
Other expense 866 1,067
Total 60,634 48,789

The increase in “personnel expense” is also maittljputable to the consolidation of La7 S.r.l. the

entire year (versus the May-December eight-montiogencluded in 2013). In 2014, total “personnel

113



expense” of La7 S.r.l. amounted to Euro 34,221 ¢bad (Euro 23,107 thousand in the May-December
eight-month period of 2013).

*%k*k

8. Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaiment losses

This item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amortization of intangible assets 3,155 1,065
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 452 635
Allowance for impairment 1,344 2,857
Provisions for risk and charges 270 1,121
Total amortization, depreciation, provisions and 5,221 5,606

impairment losses

The increase in “amortization of intangible assé&tgthainly due to the consolidation of La7 S.rk the
entire year (versus the May-December eight-montlogéncluded in 2013).

It should be noted that, as a result of impairmemtsie in the allocation of the purchase price ef th
investment in La7 S.r.l., explained in Note 10, éowevels of depreciation of "property, plant and
equipment” - Euro 2,794 thousand - and amortizatfoimtangible assets - Euro 15,442 thousand - were
recognized in 2014.

*%k*k

9. Other operating costs

The item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Deductible and non-deductible taxes during the yea 219 255
Prior-year expenses 1,053 699
Other 849 774

Total other operating costs 2,121 1,728

*%k%k

10. Non-recurring income from the acquisition of L& S.r.l.

At 31 December 2013, the item amounted to Euro@&/tAousand and referred to the excess of the "fair
value" of assets acquired and liabilities assuniddh@ S.r.l. at acquisition date (30 April 2013)epvhe
price paid. The acquisition of La7 S.r.l. was acted for under IFRS 3, applying the so-called
"acquisition method", taking into account the feturcome capacity of La7 S.r.l. at the acquisitiate.

This approach determined:
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« the full write-down of non-current assets at theedd acquisition of La7, consisting primarily of
TV broadcasting rights, and specific technical pmént, whose value was deemed
unrecoverable in view of the income prospects aof &a.l. at the acquisition date. This resulted
in the full write-down of these assets of Euro 24,1housand,;
< the recognition of “provisions for future risks addarges” of Euro 21,389 thousand, regarding
certain contracts whose non-discretionary costdutfill obligations exceeded the assumed
economic benefits, and specific risk situationates to existing and/or performed contracts and
pending litigation,
Owing to the income prospects of the subsidiary [Sai7l. at the acquisition date, and the related
uncertainties, no tax effect was considered irptirehase price allocation.
As shown in the cash flow statement, in 2013 trguesttion of La7 S.r.l. had generated an increase i
consolidated cash of Euro 109.2 million, the défere between net cash acquired (Euro 115 millind) a
the purchase price paid, which includes the prijasiment of Euro 4.8 million agreed between Cairo

Communication and Telecom lItalia Media (Euro 5.8iom). As explained further in Note 35, under the

contract to acquire the entire share capital of, fa7a period of 24 months following acquisitidbairo
Communication undertakes to use the financial nessuresulting from the contribution received from
Telecom lItalia Media in the exclusive interest ad7Land to restructure the company, and to not
distribute dividends or reserves of La7.

In 2013, the acquisition-related charges for thesgliary La7 S.r.l., amounting to Euro 1,917 thouka
were recognized under "non-recurring costs forisesV and were attributable to fees paid during the
year to advisors and to legal and financial coastdt in the due diligence, negotiation and dealing

stages.

11. Profit/ (loss) on investments

At 31 December 2013, this item, amounting to EW#6 thousand, referred to the gains from the sale of
n. 153,000 shares held in Dmail Group.

*%k%k

12. Net financial income

This item refers to financial income totaling El@@68 thousand (Euro 3,391 thousand at 31 December
2013), net of financial expense of Euro 639 thodg&uro 490 thousand at 31 December 2013), analyzed
as follows:
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Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Interest income on bank and postal accounts 2,452 3,344
Other 16 47
Total financial income 2,468 3,391
Bank interest expense (113) (2)
Other financial expense (526) (488)
Total financial expense (639) (490)
Net financial income 1,829 2,901

Financial income includes interest on fixed-ternpakdts in current accounts and on treasury bank

accounts used to employ liquidity.

13. Income tax

This item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

IRES for the year (2,010) 3,946
IRAP for the year 2,013 1,790
Deferred tax income and expenses 970 (116)
Total current and deferred income tax 973 5,620

In accordance with relevant IFRS, the deferredinagme of a number of Cairo Communication Group
companies relates mainly to the accrual of prowigiertaining to the year, but having deferred tax
deductibility (allowance for impairment and prowiss for risks and charges).

The tax charge for the period considers the beagfiing from the tax loss of La7 S.r.l.

The reconciliation of the effective and theoretiead charge can be analyzed as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Pre-tax profit 24,789 79,828
Theoretical income tax charge (27.5%) 6.817 21,952
Tax effect of non-recurring income in the consdidifinancial statements fr
the acquisition of La7 - (15,693)
Other tax effects from the consolidation and thecpase price allocation of La7 (6,169) (2,356)
Tax effects of other permanent differences (1,688) (72)
Irap 2,013 1,790
Current and deferred income tax for the year 973 5,620
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For a clearer understanding of the reconciliatibthe effective and theoretical tax charge, IRAB hat
been taken into account as this is not based otagrprofit, and this would generate a distortirfifpet
between one year and the other. However, thedkiealtax charge has been calculated using thrermur
IRES tax rate of 27.5%.

*k*k

14. Loss from discontinued operations

This includes the results of Diellesei S.p.A. guidation, which can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Other revenue and income - -

Cost of services (1) Q)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses - -
EBIT (1) (1)
Net financial income / (expense) - -
Pre-tax profit (1) Q)
Income tax - (5)
Loss from discontinued operations (1) (6)

With regard to the financial situation, cash abedrby the liquidation proceedings of Dielleselbil4
amounted to Euro 2 thousand (Euro 54 thousandiB)20

*k*k

15. Segment reporting

For a clearer understanding of the Group’s econgraiformance, the analysis is focused on the gesult
achieved during the year by each business segmbitf) has been identified, in compliance with IFRS
8 —Operating segmentdased on internal reporting which is regularlgreined by the directors.

The Group is organized in business units, eachrim $tructured around specific products and sesyice

and has five reportable business segments:

- magazine publishing the Group operates as a publisher of magazingésaoks through its
subsidiaries Cairo Editore - which incorporated t&itile Giorgio Mondadori in 2009 and
publishes weeklies “Settimanale DIPIU™, “DIPIU’ TY “Diva e Donna”, “TV Mia” and
supplements “Settimanale DIPIU’ e DIPIU'TV CucinaS¢ellare”, “Settimanale Nuovo”, “F”
“Settimanale Giallo” and monthlies “For Men MagaZin “Natural Style”, “Bell'ltalia”,
“Bell’Europa”, “In Viaggio”, “Airone”, “Gardenia”, “Arte” and “Antiquariato” - and Cairo
Publishing, publisher of books;

- advertising, the segment managed by Cairo Communication aimd @abblicita, which work
together in advertising sales in print media foir€&ditore and Editoriale Genesis (“Prima

Comunicazione”), on TV for La7 and La7d, and Turfmoadcasting (Cartoon Network,
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Boomerang, CNN), on the Internet and for the sdlestadium advertising spaces at the
“Olimpico” football pitch in Turin for Torino FC;

TV publishing (La7), as mentioned earlier, since 1 May 2013 followting acquisition of La7
S.r.l., the Group has operated as a TV publishéra@fand La7d broadcasters respectively on
channel 7 and channel 29 on the digital terregptaiform;

network operator (Cairo Network), as previously explained, in 2014 the subsidiaar@
Network S.r.l. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) took pam the tender procedure opened by the
Ministry of Economic Development for the assignmeftrights to use TV frequencies for
digital terrestrial broadcasting systems, subngtiis binding bid and winning the rights to use
a lot of frequencies ("Mux") for a period of 20 yeaWith the acquisition and realization of the
Mux, the Cairo Communication Group started openatias a network operator.

Il Trovatore, which manages its own search engimel provides technological services mainly

within the Group.

No combinations were made for the definition ofaegble business segments

Magazine Advertising TV publishing Trovato-  Network Intra- Total
Publishing La7 re operator group

(€ thousand: Current Non- Cairo and

operations regurring Network  unallocated

items
Gross operating revenue 96,708 181,332 110,913 34 8 - (123,773) 266,014
Advertising agency discounts (25,748) - - 25,748)
Net operating revenue 96,708 155,584 110,913 834 - (123,773) 240,266
Change in inventories (28) - - (28)
Other income 1,321 919 9,323 62 2 - 11,627
Total revenue 98,001 156,503 120,236 896 2 (123)77 251,865
Production cost (65,098)  (144,026) (77,016) (673) 8) 123,773
(163,048)

Personnel expense (19,120) (7,251) (34,221) (42) - - (60,634)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 13,783 5,226 8,999 181 6) - 28,183
Amortization, depreciation, (1,261) (1,181) (2,778) (5,221)
provisions and impairment losses Q) -
Operating profit (EBIT) 12,522 4,045 6,221 181 @ - 22,962
Income / (loss) on investments ) 2)
Net financial income 17 390 1,423 1) 1,829
Non-recurring income from -
acquisition of La7 S.r.l. - -
Pre-tax profit 12,539 4,433 7,644 180 @) - 24,789
Income tax (4,502) (1,795) 5,385 (61) - - (973)
Profit from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the
parent 8,037 2,638 13,029 119 (7) - 23,816
Profit / (loss) from discontinued - 1) 1)
operations
Profit 8,037 2,638 13,029 119 ) 1) 23,815
Nor-controlling interest - 24 - - 24
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2013 Magazine  Advertising TV publishing Trovato- Network Intra- Total
Publishing La7 (*) re operator group
(€ thousands) Current Non- Cairo and
operations _recurring Network unallocated
items
Gross operating revenue 99,063 191,681 77,019 5 48 (91,544) 276,704
Advertising agency discounts (27,190) - - (27,190)
Net operating revenue 99,063 164,491 77,019 485 (91,544) 249,514
Change in inventories (61) (61)
Other income 2,381 5,539 2,391 1 (2,327) 7,985
Total revenue 101,383 170,030 79,410 486 (9387 257,438
Production cost (69,867)  (152,936) (52,644) (1,917) (387) 93,871  (183,880)
Personnel expense (19,117) (6,531) (23,107) (34) (48,789)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 12,399 10,563 3,659 (1,917) 65 24,768
Amortization, depreciation, provisions  (1,323) (2,585) (1,698) (5,606)
and impairment losses
Operating profit (EBIT) 11,076 7,978 1,961 (1,917) 65 19,162
Income / (loss) on investments 699 699
Net financial income 40 1,165 1,697 1) - 2,901
Non-recurring income from acquisition
of La7 S.r.l. - 57,066 57,066
Pre-tax profit 11,116 9,842 3,658 55,149 64 328
Income tax (4,118) (3,610) 2,131 (23) (5,620
Non-controlling interests (8) (8)
Profit from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the
parent 6,998 6,232 5,789 55,149 41 74,208
Profit / (loss) from discontinued (6) (6)
operations
Profit 6,998 6,232 5,789 55,149 41 (6) 74,202
Non-controlling interests 8 9

(*) Figures shown for the “TV publishing” segment refer to the eight-month period from 1 May 2013 to 31 December 2013.

A client in the publishing segment (the publicaiatistributor) accounts for approximately 74% of ne

consolidated operating revenue.

Management monitors the operating results of bgsingnits separately in order to decide on the

allocation of resources and the evaluation of tesulTransfer prices between business sectors are

established based on market conditions applicatlti@nsactions with third parties.

Segment statement of financial position figuregcdrally, total assets for each reportable sedgnem

not represent amounts regularly provided to thefcbperating decision-maker. This detail, formerly

prescribed also without such condition, is not pifed in these explanatory notes in accordance tivéh

amendment of IFRS 8 ©perating segmenteffective as from 1 January 2010.

*k*k
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16. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated dividing thenttra results of the Group by the weighted averaige

outstanding shares, excluding the weighted aveshgeasury shares. Specifically:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

€ thousands

Profit from continuing operations 23,816 74,208
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (1) (6)

Profit for the year 23,815 74,202
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 438160 78,343,400
Weighted average number of treasury shares (779) (169,976)
Weighted average number of shares to calculate eadngs per

share 78,342,621 78,173,424
€ thousands

Earnings per share attributable to continuing ajmmra 0.304 0.949
Earnings / (loss) per share attributable to disooetd operations (0.000) (0.000)
Net earnings per share 0.304 0.949

Earnings per share in 2013, excluding non-recurimopme and charges from the acquisition of La7

S.r.l., had amounted to Euro 0.244.

Diluted earnings per share are not calculatedexe tire no shares with a potential dilutive effect.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asset and liabilities by category are analyzedmfollowing notes.

17. Property, plant and equipment

The movements in PPE can be analyzed as follows:

Description Prope Plant and Other Assets Total
rty equipment assets under
developme
nt
Carrying amount at 31/12/2013 1,324 195 1,310 - 2,829
Additions - 531 161 - 692
Depreciation (43) (98) (311) - (452)
Carrying amount at 31/12/2014 1,281 628 1,160 - 3,069

In 2014, due to the impairment of tangible assedderin 2013 in the allocation of the purchase poice

the investment in La7 S.r.l. described in Noteld®@er depreciation was recognized on "propertynpla

and equipment" in the amount of Euro 2,794 thoug&udo 2,208 thousand in 2013).
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*k*k

18. Intangible assets

The movements in intangible assets can be anabzédllows:

Description Television Concessions, Goodwill Publica Assets Total
rights licenses and tion under
trademarks tittes developm
ent
Net amount at 31/12/2013 992 1,087 7,198 1,277 2,432 12,986
Additions 9,752 716 - - 36,572 47,040
Amortization (2,215) (675) - (265) - (3,155)
Net amount at 31/12/2014 8,529 1,128 7,198 1,012 39,004 56,871

In 2014, due to the impairment of intangible assedsle in 2013 in the allocation of the purchaseepri
of the investment in La7 S.r.l. described in Nofe Ibwer depreciation was recognized on “intangible
assets" in the amount of Euro 15,442 thousand (E4y829 thousand in 2013).

Television rights

This item includes the investments made by Lai. $wrregistration rights (with a duration of ove2

months) for the broadcasting of films, series avaps.

Concessions, licenses and trademarks
At 31 December 2014, this item mainly regardedveare.

Goodwill

This item refers to the excess of the purchasee mier the percentage attributable to the Groujhef
fair value of assets, liabilities and identifialdentingent liabilities of a number of subsidiaristheir
date of acquisition, net of related accumulatedréimation at 30 September 2004, as the Group ctmse
adopt the exemption provided under IFRS 1 not tolyafFRS 3 retrospectively to transactions which
took place prior to the date of transition to IFRS.

The movements in this item for each of the casleggimg units (CGU), which the Group has identified

for the business segments in which it operatesjeseribed below:
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Cash Generating Unit 31/12/13 Additions Disposals mpairment 31/12/14

losses
Publishing 4,746 - - - 4,746
Advertising 2,289 - - - 2,289
Trovatore 163 - - - 163
Total 7,198 - - - 7,198

At 31 December 2014, goodwill underwent impairmiesting as required by IAS 36. This test, carried
out at least annually, was performed at the lef/éh® cash generating units (CGUs) to which goddwil
allocated. The realizable value of goodwill wasedmined by estimating value in use calculatechas t
present value of the prospective cash flows frorarafons derived from the most recent company
budgets and three-year plans.

The main assumptions made for the calculation bfeven use are summarized as follows:

Cash Generating Unit Growth rate of Discount rate Growth rate of Discount rate
terminal values: 2014 terminal values: 2013
2014 2013
Publishing 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%
Advertising 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%
Trovatore 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%

No evidence arose to indicate that the activitisied out by the CGUs subject to impairment tegstin
could have suffered an impairment loss. Furtheemtire Group has developed a sensitivity analyfsis o
the realizable values allocated to the three CGs&isguthe discount rate as the key parameter. No
significant evidence of potential impairment aréeen this analysis.

The estimates and the budget figures used for ¢ermination of the recoverable amount of goodwill
have been determined by Group management on tiedidsth past experience and on the expectations
of the development in the markets in which the @roperates, also taking account of the specifiegdn
economic environment. Management believes thatudee of these estimates will have no significant
impact in determining the carrying amount of godfwespecially in the publishing and advertising

sector, of which is already fully covered by th@ested cash flows of 2015.

Titles

Titles include the following:
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Description 31/12/13 Additions Amortization 31/12/14

Bell'ltalia 813 - (165) 648
Bell’Europa 453 - (89) 364
Other titles 11 - (12) 0
Total 1,277 - (265) 1,012

The time period deemed appropriate for the valnadiothe remaining useful life of these titles haen

set at 20 years for “Bell'ltalia” and “Bell’EuropaThe carrying amount of the other titles, primaril
“Arte” and “Antiquariato”, has also been amortizex a straight line basis over a 20 year perioche T
carrying amount of “Bell'ltalia” and “Bell’Europa’underwent impairment testing to evaluate any
impairment loss on realizable value, as definedtHsir value in use being cash flows based on the
expected results of the titles. No evidence of immpant was identified. The main assumptions usetién

calculation of value in use are the same as st in the previous paragraph.

Assets under development

The increase in assets under development in 20ddeigprimarily to the acquisition of the rightsuse
TV frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastgygtems (Euro 31.6 million plus accessory cos@i.
12 April 2014, the Group company Cairo Network IS(former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) in fact applied for
admission to bid in the auction opened by the Mipisf Economic Development for the awarding of
the so-called L3 Lot, put up for tender with a siey price of Euro 31.6 million. This lot includéise
granting of rights to use - for a period of 20 yeathe 2-SFN multiplex on channels 25 and 59 ("Mux
The L3 Lot frequencies have an estimated nominaéiame of 96.6% of the population. On 15 May
2014, the Ministry of Economic Development annowhttee admission of Cairo Network to the tender.
On 13 June 2014, the Company submitted its binbdidgand won the rights. The award was announced
on 26 June 2014. On 25 July 2014, Cairo Networkl pla¢ amount of Euro 31.6 million. On 31 July
2014, the Ministry of Economic Development issusel tights of use.
The amortization of the rights to use the frequeseiill start once the Mux will be ready for usdeT
Network Plan is expected to be completed in 12/d8tims’ time. As a result, at 31 December 2014, the
above rights underwent impairment testing as regqubry IAS 36, provided for intangible assets not
subject to amortization. No significant evidencgofential impairment arose from this analysis.
Assets under development includes television riglisse exploitation will begin in future years.

* *

19. 19.Investments and non-current assets

The movement in this item can be analyzed as faiow
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Description Carrying Change in scope  Write-ups Impairment  Carrying amount

(€ thousands) amountat  of consolidation losses at 31/12/2014
31/12/2013

Cairo Network (former Cairo

Sport S.r.l.) 10 (10) 2 )

Total subsidiaries 10 (20) 2 (2)

Auditel S.r.l. 46 - - - 46
Other 16 - - - 16
Total other 62 - - - 62
Grand total 72 (10) 2 (2) 62

In 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network S.r.l. (forn@airo Sport S.r.l.) was consolidated. Its finahci

statements had not been previously consolidatetheasompany was not significant because it was not

operational.

Other non-current financial assets amounted to Hutd3 thousand at 31 December 2014 (Euro 483
thousand at 31 December 2013), Euro 743 thousandihich refer to the fair value of financial
instruments to hedge exchange risks (forward cayreurchases coinciding with schedules of contadctu
payments due) used by La7 S.r.l. to purchase Thtgifrom film companies. The residual amount of

Euro 370 thousand (Euro 483 thousand at 31 Decer20&B8) refers mainly to loans to La7 S.r.l.

employees.

*k*k

20. Deferred tax assets
These refer to the recognition, in the financiatesnents at 31 December 2014, of deferred taxsaseet

the temporary differences between the carrying antsoof recognized assets and liabilities and ttaeir

amounts, as follows.
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31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amount of Tax effect Amountof Tax effect

temporary temporary

differences differences
Deferred tax assets
Taxed allowance for impairment 6,893 1,896 10,525 2,896
Tax losses carried forward - - 15 4
Taxed and returned provisions for risk and charges 996 310 980 305
Taxed provision for inventory write-down 518 163 545 171
Directors’ fees 633 174 825 227
Consolidation entries for write-off of intra-grouade relations 1,830 575 2,092 657
Different accounting treatment of post-employmesndfits 2,276 626 544 150
Other temporary differences 882 284 656 206
Total deferred tax assets 14,028 4,028 16,182 4,616
Deferred tax liabilities
Different accounting treatment of land depreciation (143) (45) (86) (27)
Total deferred tax liabilities (143) (45) (86) (27)
Net deferred tax assets 13,885 3,983 16,096 4,589

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extey #ine considered recoverable depending on the
presence of future taxable income in which tempormdifferences will be reversed. Management
periodically reviews the estimates underlying theoverability of these amounts.

-*-*-*
21. Inventories

Inventory movements arise entirely in the publigntompanies and can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change

Raw materials, consumables and supplies 2,873 3,564 (691)
Work-in-progress and bordereau 171 166 5
Finished products and books 252 374 (122)
Total 3,296 4,104 (808)

Inventories are stated net of the provision foemwry write-down of Euro 1,032 thousand (Euro 2,03
thousand at 31 December 2013).
« Raw materials

Raw materials relate mainly to paper and are reézedrat the lower of purchase or production cost

and their estimated realizable value, based onehaetformance at year end.
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«  Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress comprises purchase or productastscincurred for publications to be invoiced by
Cairo Editore S.p.A. This item also includes boeder for services yet to be used, available for
future publications, and work in progress on foothang editions.

¢ Finished products

The item includes:

- Euro 121 thousand (Euro 154 thousand at 31 Decefild3) related to inventories of books of
Cairo Publishing S.r.l., measured at the lowerodst @and estimated realizable value;

- Euro 131 thousand (Euro 219 thousand at 31 Decef@i8) related to the inventories of La7
S.r.l. of TV programmes produced and awaiting taived at 31 December 2014, and to rights
on films, soaps, cartoons and documentaries, ajfor a period of less than 12 months, whose
available right has not exhausted and for whicingitime during the next financial year is
available.

*k%

22. Trade receivables

Trade receivables can be analyzed as follows

Description 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change

Trade receivables 89,926 104,775 (14,849)
Allowance for impairment (9,969) (14,710) 4,741
Total trade receivables 79,957 90,065 (10,108)

Trade receivables are stated net of the allowamciEnipairment that has been determined taking agcou
of both specific collection risks and a generak i non-collectability based on the ordinary tresfd
company operations. This allowance also takesantmunt the allocation to the Group’s media clients
in particular third-party clients, of a percentagfelosses on receivables, equal to the percentdge o
revenue allocated, pursuant to advertising spdes santracts signed between the two parties.

The ageing of trade receivables by due date at &lember 2014 versus 31 December 2013 is as

follows:
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31 December 2014 Current Pastdue Pastdue Past due Past due Total
between 30 between 61 between 91 over 180

and 60 days and 90 days and 180 days days

Trade receivables 75,369 1,845 674 1,697 10,341 89,926
Allowance for impairment (2,300) (254) (219) (255) (6,942) (9,969)
Trade receivables 73,069 1,591 455 1,442 3,399 79,957
31 December 2013 Current Pastdue Pastdue Past due Past due Total

between 30 between 61 between 91 over 180

and 60 days and 90 days and 180 days days

Trade receivables 83,259 3,868 1,458 4,187 12,003 104,775
Allowance for impairment (3,216) (244) (279) (2,179) (8,792) (14,710)
Trade receivables 80,043 3,624 1,179 2,008 3,211 90,065

In terms of concentration, the top 10 customersesmt roughly 12% (15% in 2013) of total adventisi
sales, while the top 100 customers represent 58% (6 2013).

The publishing segment presents a limited exposucgedit risk as publishing revenue is substdsgtial
generated by one sole party — the Group - whilaistribution revenue, the distribution contrachieir
accounts for about 74% of net consolidated opegagmenue, provides for an advance payment equal to

a significant percentage of the estimated salescfi magazine.

In 2014, the allowance for impairment increasedwitcruals of Euro 2,757 thousand from provisions
for the year. Use over the period, amounting tooE(498 thousand, resulted in a net decrease raf Eu

4,741 thousand.

Trade receivables include due from Torino FootBalib S.p.A.: Euro 103 thousand to Cairo Pubblicita
for contractual relations as described in Note é@& Euro 304 thousand to Cairo Communication for
administrative services provided and for variowhegged expenses.

*k*k

23. Other receivables and other current assets

The item can be analyzed as follows:

127



Description 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change

IRAP credit 1,267 326 941
Tax receivables 1,496 1,029 467
VAT credit 1,528 2,177 (649)
Total tax assets 4,291 3,532 759
Prepayments and accrued income 1,364 1,434 (70)
Advances to suppliers 2,054 1,909 145
Other receivables 721 1,494 (773)
Total other receivablesand other current assets 8,430 8,369 61

k)%

24. Securities and other current financial assets

At 31 December 2014, the Group held no securitiedtter current financial assets.

*k*k

25. Cash and cash eguivalents
The item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 3112/14 31/12/13 Change

Bank accounts 149,042 172,833  (23,791)
Cash 19 82 (63)
Total cash and cash equivalents 149,061 172,915 (23,854)

The consolidated net financial position at 31 Delmen?014, versus the situation at 31 December 2013,

can be summarized as follows:

Description 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change

Cash and cash equivalents 149,061 172,915 (23,854)
Bank loans (25,000) - (25,000)
Total cash and cash equivalents 124,061 172,915 (48,854)

As shown in the consolidated cash flow statemdra,dhange in the net financial position versus 31
December 2013 is mainly due to the investment nigd€airo Network in the acquisition of the Mux
(Euro 31.6 million plus accessory costs), and te thistribution of dividends approved by the
Shareholders’ Meeting on 29 April 2014 (0.27 Eueo ghare, for a total of Euro 21.2 million).

The bank loan of Euro 25 million, granted by UnditeS.p.A. and used by Cairo Network to pay the

rights of use of the TV frequencies, is securea lgyiarantee issued by the parent Cairo Communigatio
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and calls for the payment of an interest rate etahe 3-month Euribor plus 225 basis points and
certain constraints (negative pledges) and commitsngcovenants) on the part of the company, which

are typical of these transactions, as explainddoite 28 below.

At 31 December 2014, the net financial positioLa? came to Euro 106.5 million (Euro 115.8 million
at 31 December 2013), a change attributable mamlthe dynamics of net working capital and to
investments in the purchase of TV rights.

Under the contract to acquire the entire sharaalagfiLa7, entered into in April 2013, for a petiof 24
months following acquisition, Cairo Communicationdertakes to use the financial resources resulting
from the contribution received from Telecom lItakéedia in the exclusive interest of La7 and to

restructure the company, and to not distributedéints or reserves of La7.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amthnd or short-term bank deposits, properly spngadi
the investments, essentially in banking productigh ihe prime objective of maintaining a ready
liquidity of the said investments. The investmerdducts are selected on the basis of their cratlitg,

their reliability and the quality of services reneie.

*k%k

26. Equity
At 31 December 2014, consolidated equity was E@&3A7 thousand, including profit for the year.

The statement of reconciliation of the Parent’sitycgand profit and Group equity and profit is set &

the Directors' Report.

At their Meeting on 29 April 2014, the shareholdapproved the distribution of a dividend of 0.27#du
per share, inclusive of tax. The dividend, amoawntio Euro 21.2 million, was distributed with
detachment date on 12 May 2014 (payable on 15 NayR

The share capital at 31 December 2014 was Eurod44tB@usand, subscribed and fully paid up,

comprising n. 78,343,400 ordinary shares to whizimominal amount is attributed.

In accordance with the bylaws, the shares are texgi indivisible and freely transferable. The
requirements of representation, legitimizationcuation of the company investment required for
securities traded on regulated markets continuppdy. Each share has the right to a proportiothef
profit which has been approved for distribution &m@ portion of equity on liquidation and also iiaes
right to vote, without limits other than those asfided by the Law. No securities carrying special

controlling rights have been issued. No finangiatruments have been issued attributing the ttight
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subscribe to newly-issued shares. No share ineerglans are envisaged involving share capital

increases, including bonus issues.

The reconciliation between the number of sharestantliing at 31 December 2014 and those at 31
December 2013 is as follows:

31/12/2013 Purchase of Sale of treasury 31/12/2014

treasury shares shares

Ordinary shares issued 78,343,400 - - 78,343,400
Less: treasury shares (779) - - (779)
Ordinary shares outstanding 78,342,621 - - 78,342,621

In 2014, as part of the share buy-back plans,eastry shares were sold or purchased. At 31 Daaremb
2014, Cairo Communication held a total of n. 7&asury shares, or 0.001% of the share capitalesubj
to art. 2357-ter of the Italian Civil Code.

*k*k

27. Post-employment benefits

This item reflects the accruals made for all empésyat the reporting date on the basis of the gemje

unit credit method, using actuarial valuations. e Thain assumptions used in this valuation are as

follows:

COMPANY Cairo Communication Cairo Pubblicita Cairo Editore La 7 Cairo Pubblicita
TYPE OF VALUATION Post-empl. benefits Post-empl. benefits Post-empl. be  nefits Post-empl. benefits Suppl. indemnity

DATE OF VALUATION 31/12/2014 31/12/2014 31/12/2014 31/12/2014 31/12/2014
Mortality table | Sim/f 1998 | Sim/f 1998 | Sim/f 1998 | RG48 | Sim/f 1998 |
Reduction of mortality table [ 20,00% [ 20,00% | 20,00% [ [ 20,00% |
Advance request rate EXECUTIVE 1,00% 0,50% 0,50% 3,00%

Advance request rate MANAGER 2,00% 0,50% 2,00% 3,00%

Advance request rate EMPLOYEE 2,00% 0,50% 2,00% 3,00%

Advance request rate JOURNALIST not present not present 2,00%

Salary increase rate EXECUTIVE 5,00% 2,50% 0,00% 1,69%

Salary increase rate MANAGER 4,00% 2,50% 0,00% 1,69%

Salary increase rate EMPLOYEE 4,00% 2,50% 0,00% 1,69%

Salary increase rate JOURNALIST not present not present 0,00%

Fee increase rate AGENT - - - 4%

[Future inflation rate [ 1,69% [ 1,69% | 1,69% [ 1,69% | 2,00% |
[Discount rate [ 1,69% [ 1,69% | 1,69% [ 1,69% | 4,00% |
Resignation rate EXECUTIVE 2,00% 0,50% 0,00% X<0 4%; 41<X<50 2.5%; over 0%

Resignation rate MANAGER 2,00% 0,50% 5,00% X<0 4%; 41<X<50 2.5%; over 0%

Resignation rate EMPLOYEE 7,00% 2,50% 6,50% X<0 4%; 41<X<50 2.5%; over 0%

Resignation rate JOURNALIST not present not present 5,00%

Resignation rate AGENT - - - 15%

The composition and movements of this item is bnadkewn as follows:
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31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Opening balance 11,832 4,086
Change in scope of consolidation 7,181
Provisions 1,203 1,102
Interest expense 354 457
Profit (loss) from actuarial valuations 991 370
Utilization/other movements (982) (1,364)
Closing balance 13,398 11,832
The average headcount over the two years can liyzadas follows:
Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013 Average
Senior managers 24 24 24
Managers 83 82 83
Employees 306 402 399
Journalists and freelance 234 229 231
Grand total 737 737 737

*k*k

28. Non-current financial liabilities

The item includes the non-current portion (Eurd0R0, thousand) of the bank loan of Euro 25 million,
granted by Unicredit S.p.A. in July 2014 to Cair@thNork for the purchase of rights to use TV
frequencies, as explained in the Directors' Report.

The loan:

» expires on 31 December 2019. Repayment is made quarterly instalments of Euro 1,250 thousand,
starting from 31 March 2015; early repayment isvaid;

e is secured by a guarantee issued by the parerd Cammunication;

« calls for the payment of an interest rate equah&o3-month Euribor plus 225 basis points and terta
constraints (negative pledges) and commitmentseftamnts), typical of these transactions.

Specifically:

* under the financial covenants, to be checked aflyjuat Group level (consolidated financial
statements), the debt cover (the net debt/EBITDYa&hould be less than or equal to 1.75 and the
leverage (the net debt/equity ratio) less thamoakto 1;

e the commitment covenants on Cairo Network mainlglude, until full repayment of the loan and
subject to the prior consent of the bank, the camemt, (i) not to distribute nor approve the
distribution of dividends and/or reserves, (ii) riottake on new financial debt (excluding loans

received by the shareholders and the new debecktat the sale of receivables for working capital
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needs or the issue of new insurance and bank ssiregi cover ordinary needs), (iii) not to grant
guarantees to third parties in the interest of @roompanies or loans to Group companies, (iv) mot t
dispose of company assets and/or investments, ¢t)tm implement extraordinary corporate
transactions, (vi) not to create or allow the aeaof liens, pledges or mortgages on own assets.
Breach of the commitment and/or financial covenanés result in termination of the loan agreement,
pursuant to Article 1456 of the Italian Civil Codgarly repayment is provided for in the event change
of control of Cairo Network.

*k%k

29. Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risk and charges include:

Description 31/12/2013 Increases Utilizations 31/2014

Pension and similar provision

1,197 180 (52) 1,325
Provision for publishing returns 421 391 (421) 391
Provision for liquidation 64 - - 64
Provisions for future risks and charges
under the purchase price allocation of
La7 S.r.l.
21,389 - (2,337) 19,052
Provision for other risks and charges 11,911 - (2,401) 9,510
Grand total 34,982 571 (5,211) 30,342

The provision for “pension and similar provisionasvaccrued by Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. for the agjent
termination benefits as prescribed by law and emts; subject to actuarial valuations based on the
assumptions illustrated in Note 27.
The “provision for publishing returns” relates teetoperations of the subsidiary Cairo Publishing.S.
the relating net provisions are deducted from raeenom book sales.
The provision for "liquidation charges" refers tmyisions made to cover the liquidation charges of
Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation, the relevant preiins are recognized in profit/ (loss) from disaomed
operations.
As mentioned earlier, under the purchase pricecation of La7 S.r.l., a negative fair value of Euro
21,389 thousand was given to:

a) a number of contracts whose unavoidable costs @ftinge contractual obligations exceed the

economic benefits expected to be received;

b) specific risk situations related to (i) existingw@cts and (i) pending litigation.

The item “Provision for other risks and chargeshpanting to Euro 9,510 thousand, includes provssion

for risks and charges for pending litigation witbcgl security institutions, leased staff and erjpks.
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The item also includes funds for future expensesasele to cover the risk arising from claims for

damages originated during the production and aiohgl'V programmes and contractual terms of
stability.

*k*k

30. Current loans and borrowings

The item includes the current portion (Euro 5,0@8usand) of the bank loan of Euro 25 million, geaint
by Unicredit S.p.A. in July 2014 to Cairo Netwods explained in Note 28 above.

*k*k

31. Trade payables

Trade payables amounted to Euro 87,884 thousardeatng by Euro 18.042 thousand versus 31
December 2013, and refer entirely to the curreat.ye

Trade payables include Euro 1,231 thousand dugetadsociate Torino Football Club S.p.A. for amsunt
accrued under the advertising concession contigiwed with Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.

*%k*k

32. Receivables from and payables to the Parent

Receivables from and payables to the parent of Bi&F89 thousand and Euro 156 thousand, respectively
refer mainly to the parent UT Communications S.pafid arise from the national tax consolidation
scheme, under art. 117/129 of the TUIR (Consoldiateome tax act), which Cairo Communication
S.p.A. and its subsidiaries Cairo Editore S.p.Aajr@€ Pubblicitd S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquittan,
Cairo Publishing S.r.l., La7 S.r.l. and Cairo Netw®.r.l. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) have agreed t
participate in.

*k*k

33. Tax liabilities

They include:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013 Change
Withholding taxes on employees 2,107 2,056 51
Withholding taxes on contract workers 654 691 (37)
VAT payables 1,111 996 115
IRAP payables 1,564 - 1564
Other 51 9 42
Total tax liabilities 5,487 3,752 1,735

*k%k
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34. Other current liabilities

The item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2014 31/12/2013 Change

Social security charges payables 4,826 5,659 (833)
Advances on subscriptions 1,777 1,843 (66)
Due to personnel (holidays, bonuses, etc.) 11,510 9,979 (1,531)
Accrued expenses and deferred income 768 624 144
Other liabilities 4,885 2,717 2,168
Total other current liabilities 23,766 20,822 2,944

Social security charges payables relate entirelthéocurrent year. The Group normally pays social
security charges and withholding taxes in accoréavith legally defined due dates.
Advances relate to the portion of subscription pagta received from customers to whom magazines

have not yet been issued, as well as prepaymenspéaially commissioned future editions.

*%k*k

35. Commitments and risks

The agreements reached in the purchase of the shtare capital of La7 S.r.l. also included a rrydar
agreement between La7 and Telecom ltalia Media ®asting S.r.l. (TIMB) for the supply of
transmission capacity that provides, among othiegth the issue by Cairo Communication of a parent
company guarantee to cover the payment obligatiodertaken by La7, for a maximum amount of Euro
3,995 thousand (including VAT) until 31 Decembefi20and Euro 6,558 thousand (including VAT) per

year effective as from 1 January 2014.

The contract, signed on 6 March 2013 with Telectatia Media for the acquisition of the entire share
capital of La7 S.r.l., also provides for:

- the buyer’'s commitment, for a period of 24 montlesK-up) from the date of finalization of the
acquisition, not to sell, assign, transfer, dispolsm any way, in whole or in part, the investment
in La7, or the business unit owning La7, withougjpdice to the buyer’s right, including during
lock-up, to:

0 undertake a transfer or assignment to entities iydoolned, whether directly or through
other companies wholly-owned by Cairo Communication

0 merge La7 and Cairo Due S.r.l., provided the latitrithe effective date of the merger,
does not have a negative net financial positicexicess of Euro 1,020 thousand;

0 constitute real rights of guarantee in favor ofltaling banks on the shares of LA7 ;
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0 undertake, under certain conditions, a proporticeaherger of the group.
The lock-up commitments are accompanied by a peokatise of the amount of Euro 20 million.

- Cairo Communication’s commitment, for a period df fhonths from the date of finalization of
the acquisition, to use the financial resourcesirggifrom the contribution received from Telecom
Italia Media in the exclusive interest and for thstructuring of La7, and the related prohibition t
engage in certain transactions specified in thdraot) including of an extraordinary kind, aimed
at depriving La7 of the resources from the contidyuto the benefit of third parties or related
parties, or to make new investments.

This commitment, as the above, is accompanied pgnalty clause, the amount of which varies

depending on the transaction.

In 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network (former CaBport S.r.l.) took part in the tender procedure

opened by the Ministry of Economic Developmenttf@ assignment of rights to use TV frequencies for

digital terrestrial broadcasting systems, subngtiis binding bid and winning the rights to useotidf

frequencies ("Mux") for a period of 20 years. bBndary 2015, Cairo Network and El Towers S.p.A.

(“EIT") therefore entered into the agreements floe trealization and subsequent long-term technical

management in full service mode (hospitality, ssviand maintenance, use of broadcasting

infrastructure, etc.) of the Mux. The agreementwiole, among other things, for:

a transitional phase, which will see the realizaamd start-up of the MUX and the initial operasipn
which will run from the date the agreements wegned to 31 December 2017, and an operational
phase of the Mux lasting 17 years (from 2018 to4203
the right to free withdrawal of Cairo Network stagt from 1 January 2025;
guaranteed coverage at full performance of at 1@4%i of the population, in line with national Muxs
with greater coverage;
consideration to EIT:

0 during the transitional phase (2015-2017), amogntina total of Euro 11.5 million for

the full three-year period;

o at full performance (starting from 2018), amountiodgzuro 16.3 million per year.
These amounts include compensation for the avhiiabf the transmitters;
an annual consideration from EIT to Cairo Netwaitiarting from 2018, ranging between Euro O up to
Euro 4 million, in the event that the available dhaidth on the Mux is not fully used by Cairo

Network.

With the acquisition and realization of the Muxg tGairo Communication Group will start operatioesaa

network operator.
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With regard to the Automatic Numbering Plan, thenbers currently in use (7 for La7 and 29 for La7d)
are those assigned by the Ministry of Economic Dmument in 2010, under AGCOM resolution
366/2010/CONS. The Resolution had been challethgedelenorba and other local broadcasters, with
partial annulment specifically regarding the assignt of numbers 7-8 and 9 by the Council of State
through Ruling 4660/12.

On 21 March 2013, the Communications Authority (A®@) unanimously approved the New Automatic
Numbering Plan for digital terrestrial televisiohQN) by Decision 237/13/CONS. The decision
confirmed, for national traditional broadcastehg aissignment of numbers 0-9 of the first block ©N
numbering (see p. 39-40 and 44 of AGCOM Decision233/13/CONS).

Deeming that the New Plan evaded the Council aeStauling (given that it confirmed assignmenthe
national traditional broadcasters of numbers O-thanfirst block of LCN numbering), Telenorba filad
appeal for compliance with ruling n. 4660/12. Tippeal was upheld by the Council of State (ruling no
6021 of 16 December 2013), which declared the Nawnbering Plan void (pursuant to Resolution
237/2013) for numbers from 8 to 9, and appointsdexial commissioner tasked with verifying the eotr
assignment of numbers from 8 to 9 within 90 dagsifthe beginning of the proceedings, which staoted
24 February 2014. However, since the partial anaotnof the previous Plan initially included num@@er
on initiation of the procedure, the special commissr - inappropriately in the opinion of La7 - @ls
referred to number 7, which instead, under therfgulis not subject to verification by the Commissn
AGCOM has in the meantime re-extended the previelas (based on current assignments), as also
suggested in the State Council’s ruling, in ordeavoid a regulatory void.

In execution of ruling no. 6021, the Special Conmiaiser launched a public consultation on an outline
provision named "Automatic numbering plan of dibitarrestrial free-to-air and pay TV channels,
procedures for allocating numbers to providersunfi@visual services authorized to broadcast ausili
content using digital terrestrial technology anthtieg conditions of use”. Telenorba, All Music and
AGCOM have challenged the acts adopted by the Cegianier, lodging enforcement reviews and claims
before the State Council (the court of complian@juing that the Commissioner had exceeded the
requirements of sentence no. 6021 of 2013.

Following orders n. 5041, 5127 and 5859 of 20l#jen which the Council of State has given the
Commissioner certain regulations to discharge tmk,tthe Commissioner adopted a new outline
provision (no. 7 of 2014), accompanied by an exatiary report.

The parties to the proceedings and the Commissiamege heard in personal hearings before the
President of the Panel and the Judge-Rapportetineoassessments made by the Commissioner in the
acts recently adopted.

The Commissioner has yet to complete his task (gxpi currently set on 20 May 2015), while the
Council of State has yet to rule on the enforcemewviews and claims lodged by Telenorba, All Music
and AGCOM.
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In the opinion of La7 and its legal advisers, ghti of the task discharged by the Commissionerthed
orders of the State Council, further assessmentthéyState Council on number 7 are unlikely to be

made, nor will the allocation of this number to Uz challenged.

As the result of a VAT audit performed on Cairo Goumication S.p.A., in its report, the Guardia di
Finanza (the Italian Tax Police) identified somedfihgs for 2002 and subsequent years (2003, 2004,
2005 and 2006) relating to the application if afiy@éT on dealing rights charged to media centres,
which were subsequently included in the final awdjiorts issued in January 2008 (for 2002), in June
2008 (for 2003, 2004 and 2005) and on 24 Novemlidrl 2(for 2006), which the company has
challenged. The relevant hearing was held on 23 2044 and, to date, its judgment has yet to leelfil
For all the periods in question (2002, 2003, 2064 2005), the Provincial Tax Commission of Milan
has ruled in favour of the Company’s appeals. Abenzia delle Entrate (Italian Tax Authorities) has
filed an appeal with the Regional Tax CommissioMilin against these decisions. In April 2010, the
Regional Tax Commission of Milan ruled in favour thie Agency’s appeal regarding 2002, and in
October 2011 also regarding the years 2003, 200d 2005, on questionable grounds. Cairo
Communication has already appealed to the Coutlaskation against the judgment regarding 2002, for
which the tax claim amounts to Euro 41 thousandddition to penalties of Euro 51 thousand, and the
judgment regarding the subsequent years 2003, 2004005, for which the tax claim totals Euro 247
thousand, in addition to penalties of Euro 272 ffamd and interest. The tax claim for 2006 amounts t
Euro 63 thousand, in addition to penalties of Ed@othousand and interest. The company has also
appealed against the above tax claim; the releh@ating was held on 23 May 2014 and, to date, its
judgment has yet to be filed. In June 2012, iatreh to 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006, the Company
received two tax assessments demanding paymehné @nhounts due arising as a result of the judgment
of the Regional Tax Commission, for a total claifnapproximately Euro 431 thousand, including
penalties and interest. In relation to the taxnalabntained in these reports, based also on thieeadf/

its tax consultants, the Directors believe theefandamental reasons and rights to oppose theardle

findings.

In its hearing on 18 October 2010, the Provinciak Tommission of Milan acknowledged the appeal
filed by Cairo Editore S.p.A. regarding the assesgmmotice for tax year 2004. The ltalian Tax

Authorities have filed an appeal with the Regiohak Commission of Milan against the ruling. In its

hearing on 27 May 2013, the Regional Tax Commissiollilan rejected the Agency’s Appeal. On 16

June 2014, the Agency filed an appeal with the &upr Court, and on 25 July 2014, the Company
notified its response to the counterparty.
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A previous shareholder of the subsidiary Il Trovat&.r.l., who did not sell its shares to the paren
company, had risen a claim against the current ntynehareholder, involving Cairo Communication
S.p.A. indirectly, questioning the validity of tkentract under which he had sold the quota inithi#dd
partnership Il Trovatore and the transformationthed company from a limited partnership to a lirdite
liability company (S.r.l.), and requesting the anment of the subsequent acquisition of the compgany
Cairo Communication. The requests of the countgrpeere rejected in the first instance, althoulgé t
counterparty has filed an appeal. The case has beeantly postponed to the hearing for closing
arguments on 7 April 2015. Based also on the addides legal counsels, the Directors believe that

grounds of these claims are such as not to requestcific accrual.

Immobiledit S.r.l., the subsidiary merged into ©akkditore in 2009, is party to a lawsuit regardang
property purchase. In 2004, the Court of Milanthe first instance, had rejected the adverse arty’
claims, ordering the adverse party to pay damagesettle in separate proceedings, and to repal leg
expenses. The Court of Appeal has partly reverseduling of first instance, ordering Immobiledit t
pay for the expenses of first and second instalegecting the adverse party’s claim for damageschwh
has appealed to the Court of Cassation againsejbetion. Following Ruling no. 25351/14, the Cour
of Cassation, rejecting all the other grounds efrtiain appeal of Italiana Assicurazioni, granteslfitst
ground of appeal concerning compensation for darsaffered by Italiana Assicurazioni for the fitting
out of the property covered by the preliminary cacat; the Court referred the case to the Court of
Appeal of Milan, in a different formation, which Wbe called to review the issue of compensatian fo
damage only on the point above; the request forpemsation by Italiana Assicurazioni regarding the
plea granted by the Court of Cassation amounts poroximately Euro 260 thousand. Italiana
Assicurazioni shall re-open the case before thertG@uAppeal of Milan by the deadline of 12 January
2016.

Guarantees given by third parties to the Cairo Camipation Group amounted to Euro 323 thousand

and are attributable to guarantees issued by banks.

It is also noted that:
- The consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece@®®4 do not include any receivables or
payables with a residual term exceeding five years.
- The consolidated financial statements at 31 Decer@db&4 reflect the capitalization of
financial charges of Euro 266 thousand, enteredemurabsets under development and

regarding the investments made by Cairo Network S.r

*k%k
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36. Related party transactions

Transactions between the parent and its consotidatesidiaries, which are its related parties, Heaen
eliminated from the consolidated financial statete@md are therefore not shown in this note.

The Group holds relations with the parent (UT Comioations S.p.A.) and with the latter’s subsidiarie
at conditions deemed normal in their respectivevasit markets, taking into account the nature of
services offered. Below is a summary of the statentd financial position and income statement
balances deriving from the transactions made iM20ith these related parties. The identification an
disclosure regarding related parties were madedardance with the IAS 24 Revised.

Based on this Standard, related parties were fikhtas the parents, subsidiaries, associates and
affiliates of the Group, as shown in the list attet to this Annual Report (“List of investmentstoé
Group at 31 December 2014"). The Ultimate Paréthe Group is U.T. Communications S.p.A.

The effects of these relations on the consolidateatement of financial position of the Cairo
Communication Group at 31 December 2014 are asvsl|

Revenue and costs Operating Operating Financial Financial
(€ thousands) revenue costs income charges
Parent

UT Communications S.p.A. - - - -
Associates

Torino FC S.p.A. 216 2,111 - -
Total 216 2,111 - -

In 2014, the relations and transactions with themaJ.T. Communications and with its subsidiades
be analyzed as follows:

Receivables and financial assets Trade Other Receivables tax Other current
(€ thousands) receivables  receivables and consolidation financial
current assets scheme assets
Parent
UT Communications S.p.A. - 6,539 -
Associates
Torino FC S.p.A. 471 - - -
MP Service S.r.l. - 47 - -
471 47 6,539 -
Payables and financial liabilities Trade payables Other payables Payablestax Other current
(€ thousands) and current consolidation financial
liabilities scheme liabilities
Parent
UT Communications S.p.A. - - 156 -
Associates -
Torino FC S.p.A. 1,428 - - -
Total 1,428 - 156 -

In 2014, transactions with related parties, inabgdivith Group companies, were not considered to be
atypical or unusual, and were part of the ordiratpvities of Group companies. These transactioaew

carried out on market terms, taking account ofgiheds and services provided.
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In 2014, the relations and transactions with thempaU.T. Communications and with its subsidiadas

be analyzed as follows:

- the concession contract between Cairo Pubblicitd &arino FC S.p.A. (a subsidiary of U.T.
Communications) for the sale of advertising spactha Olimpico football pitch and promotional
sponsorship packages. This contract resultederplyment in 2014 of Euro 2,002 thousand to the
concession holder against total revenue of Eur@72Bousand net of agency discounts. Cairo
Pubblicita earned further commissions of Euro @lutfand. As part of the advertising contract, Cairo
Pubblicita also purchased football tickets worthrd2d09 thousand and recharged Torino F.C.
pertaining costs of Euro 51 thousand,;

- the agreement between Cairo Communication S.p.Al &orino F.C. for the provision of
administrative services such as bookkeeping, wpiokiides for an annual consideration of Euro 100
thousand,

- the agreement relating to the purchase of aduegtispace at the Olimpico football pitch between
Cairo Editore and Torino F.C., for an annual coasation of Euro 100 thousand,;

- as already mentioned, Cairo Communication and uissigiaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatio@airo Publishing S.r.I., La7 S.r.l. and Cairo Netk
S.rl. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l) participate the national tax consolidation scheme of UT
Communications S.p.A. The consolidation schemegchvigoverns the financial aspects of amounts
paid or received in return for the advantages sadirantages resulting from the tax consolidation,
specifically provides that any greater charges arombenefits that may accrue to the Company
resulting from participation in the scheme, beahlit remunerated by the parent. In relation to, this
the consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece2@®4 include receivables from and payables to
the parent UT Communications S.p.A. of Euro 6,38%isand and Euro 153 thousand respectively.

In 2014, Studio Magnocavallo e Associati, of whiatvyer Antonio Magnocavallo is a partner, earned

fees for professional services provided to commandé the Cairo Communication Group for

approximately Euro 267 thousand.

Fees paid to directors in 2014 are analyzed in &€eBoard of Directors’ and Board of Statutory

Auditors’ fees

During the year, no transactions were carried o ymembers of the Board of Directors, general

managers and/or with key management personnel, srsnalb the Board of Statutory Auditors, and the

financial reporting manager, further than the feaisl and already shown in this Note.

The procedures adopted by the Group for relatedy paansactions, to ensure transparency and

substantial and procedural fairness, made by thep@ay either directly or through its subsidiariae

illustrated in the Directors’ Report in the sectmmthe ‘Report on Corporate governarice

*%k%k
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37. Risk management

Liquidity risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed taididy risk, in that on one hand, significant
financial resources are held with a net availaldsitive financial position of Euro 124.1 million vld,

on the other hand, the Group attempts to ensute@thappropriate ability to generate cash is maiath
even under the current market conditions.

An analysis of the company’s equity structure shbwth liquidity, or the ability to maintain finaradi
stability in the short term, and solidity, or theildy to maintain financial stability in the mednilong
term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in aamwhnd or very short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in bankimglycts, with the prime objective of maintaining a
ready liquidity of the said investments. The inwestit products are selected on the basis of thedlitcr
rating, their reliability and the quality of serei rendered.

Currency and interest rate risks

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed teredt rate and currency risk,

in that on one hand, there is no loan finance, st the other hand operations are carried out
exclusively in Italy, and revenue is generatedrelytin the country and main costs are incurreBuno.

The interest rate risk only affects the yield orailable cash. Specifically, with reference to tiet
financial position at 31 December 2014, a one peacge point reduction in the interest rate wouklile

in a reduction in annual financial income of appnmately Euro 1.2 million.

Movements in the cash flows and the liquidity ob@y companies are centrally monitored and managed
by Group Treasury in order to guarantee effectne efficient management of financial resources.
Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd BOREX risk, the Group limited use of financial

hedging instruments, to hedge currency risk oratiggiisition of TV rights from film studios.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, primarily @ation to its advertising sales activities. Thikris
however mitigated by the fact that exposure isrithisted across a large number of customers and that
credit monitoring and control procedures are irc@laln terms of concentration, the top 10 custemer
represent approximately 12% (15% in 2013) of tetdés, whilst the top 100 customers represent 54%
(58% in 2013). These ratios are basically in lindhprior years.

The persisting uncertainty factors in the short aradlium term, along with the resulting credit squege
may of course impact negatively the quality of dradd general payment terms.

The publishing segment, on the other hand, prediemted exposure to credit risk as publishing rave

is basically generated by one single party - theu@r- while for distribution revenue, the distrilout
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contract provides for an advance payment equaliiglay significant percentage of the estimateeésal

of each magazine.

The Group’s maximum theoretical exposure to creskts at 31 December 2014 is given by the carrying
amount of trade receivables and other recognizegmuassets totaling Euro 88.4 million (98.4 roifli

at 31 December 2013), and by the nominal amounguzrantees given on third-party debts or
commitments as indicated in Note 35.

The credit risks associated with cash and castvalgmits, with a maximum theoretical exposure ofoEur
149.1 million (Euro 172.9 million at 31 Decemberl3), are considered irrelevant as they are deposits

spread across various banks.

Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory Auditors’ fees

The following information refers to the 2014 feeaidpto Directors, Statutory Auditors, General
Managers and key management personnel, also ind&riess, analyzed in detail in the Remuneration

Report, prepared pursuant to art. 123 ter of thE:TU
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Name Position  Term of office Term expiry Fees Benefitsin  Bonusesand  Other fees**

date * kind other
incentives
Urbano R. Cairo Chairman of Jan-Dec 2014 31/12/2016 500 16 - 510
the Board

Uberto Fornara CEO Jan-Dec 2014 223 5 - 477
31/12/2016

MariaLaura Director May-Dec 2014 20 - - -
Cairo 31/12/2016

Stefania Director May-Dec 2014 32 - - -
Petruccioli 31/12/2016

Roberto Cairo Director Jan-Dec 2014 20 - - -
31/12/2016

Marco Janni Director Jan-Dec 2014 28 - - -
31/12/2016

Antonio Director Jan-Dec 2014 34 - - -
Magnocavallo 31/12/2016

Marco Director Jan-Dec 2014 350 5 - 300
Pompignoli 31/12/2016

Roberto Director Jan-Dec 2014 34 - - -
Rezzonico 31/12/2016

Mauro Director Jan-Dec 2014 32 - - -
Sdla 31/12/2016

K ey management N/A Jan-Dec 2014 N/A - 15 - 1,218

personnel

Marco Moroni Chairman Jan-Dec 2014  31/12/2016
Board of 30 - - 25
Statutory
Auditors
MariapiaMaspes  Standing  Jan-Dec 2014  31/12/2016
auditor 20 - - 17

Marco Giuliani Standing  Jan-Dec 2014  31/12/2016
auditor 20 - - -

* Other fees, in addition to fees for the role of director (Euro 20 thousand), refer to:
. Urbano Cairo: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 480 thousand);
. Uberto Fornara: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 203 thousand);
. Marco Janni: fees for attendance in meetings of the Related Party Committee (Euro 8 thousand);
*  Antonio Magnocavallo: fees for attendance in meetings of the Remuneration Committee and the Control and Risk Committee (Euro 14
thousand);
*  Stefania Petruccioli: fees for attendance in meetings of the Remuneration Committee and Related Party Committee (Euro 12 thousand);
. Marco Pompignoli: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 330 thousand);
. Roberto Rezzonico: fees for attendance in meetings of the Remuneration Committee and Control and Risk Committee (Euro 14 thousand);
. Mauro Sala: fees for attendance in meetings of the Risk and Control Committee and the Related Party Committee (Euro 12 thousand)

** Other fees refer to:

. Urbano Cairo: fees for his duties performed for Cairo Editore (Euro 500 thousand) and other companies of the Group (Euro 10 thousand).

. Uberto Fornara: gross fees as senior manager payable by Cairo Communication (Euro 300 thousand), remuneration from the non-compete
agreement (Euro 67 thousand), fees for his duties performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 100 thousand) and other companies of the Group
(Euro 10 thousand).

. Marco Pompignoli: gross fees as senior manager payable by Cairo Communication (Euro 200 thousand), and fees for his duties performed
for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 90 thousand) and other companies of the Group (Euro 10 thousand).

*  Key management personnel: gross fixed annual Group fees for a total of Euro 1,028 thousand (comprising gross remuneration as manager)
and variable incentive components amounting to Euro 190 thousand.
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Moreover, under Consob Communication n. DEM/110826824 February 2011, point 2.3, letters (a)
and (f), it should be noted that:

there are no agreements in place between the Rardrihe directors for any indemnity in the event
of resignation or unjust dismissal, or in the evégir employment relationship ceases following a
takeover bid,;

there are agreements in place between the PardnUberto Fornara, subject to non-competition
commitments for 18 months following termination teé management relationship with the Parent,
for payment during his relationship, starting frivlay 2014, of a gross annual fee of Euro 100,000.
In the event of termination of employment beforgrpant, as remuneration for the non-competition
agreement, as of May 2014, of the total sum of E450,000, to be considered a minimum
consideration of the agreement, the Company will ffe manager the difference between such
minimum amount and the amount paid until then asureration for the agreement.

Moreover, there are no succession plans regardieguéive directors.

At 31 December 2014, key management personneleoCdiro Communication Group was composed

of:

Giuseppe Ferrauto (Director, General Manager anthger of Cairo Editore);
Giuliano Cesari (Executive Director and General ktgar of Cairo Pubblicita) and manager of Cairo
Communication;

Marco Ghigliani (CEO, General Manager and managéa7 S.r.l.).

To date, Cairo Communication has no stock optiampin place.

39. Transactions deriving from atypical and/or unusual or non-recurring transactions
Pursuant to Consob Communication of 28 July 20aB&EM/6064296, it should be noted that in 2014 the

Cairo Communication Group did not engage in anpiat} and/or unusual transactions as defined by the

above Communication. Mention must be made thaR@13 the Cairo Communication Group finalized

the acquisition of the entire share capital of ISafZl.. The transaction, which is considered nanseng

by nature and relevant amount, generated non-iagumncome and charges, recognized in the 2013

consolidated financial statements, respectivelyeofo 57,066 thousand and Euro 1,917 thousand as

discussed in Note 10 above.

For the Board of Directors

Chairman Urbano R. Cairo
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APPENDIX 1

CAIRO COMMUNICATION GROUP COMPANIES

The following table lists all Cairo Communicationrd@p companies, showing the company name,

registered office, quota capital, and shares heltkther directly or indirectly, by the Parent Cairo

Communication S.p.A. and by each subsidiary, thesalidation method and the list of investments,

measured using the equity method.

Company Register Quota capital Reporting Business object Consolidation method
ed office  at 31/12/14: ownership date

Cairo Communication S.p.A. Milan 4,074 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Editore S.p.A. Milan 1,043 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation Milan 10 60 31/12 In liquidation Full re assets and
liabilities (*)

La7S.r.l Rome 1,020 100 31/12 TV publishing Full from 30 April
2013

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. Milan 2,818 100 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Publishing S.r.l. Milan 10 100 31/12 Publishing Full

Il Trovatore S.r.l. Milan 25 80 31/12 Internet Full

Cairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo

Sport S.r.l) Milan 5,500 100 31/12 Network operator  Full

Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l. Milan 10 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

(*) the income statement is consolidated on a sifige basis in profit/(loss) from discontinued @®ns
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APPENDIX

Information pursuant to Article 149-duodecies of Camsob Issuers’ regulations

The following summary, prepared pursuant to ar@-fidof Consob Regulations, shows the fees for the
current period for auditing services and for nodiaservices provided by the Audit Firm.

€ thousands Services provided by Fees for the year
Audit
Parent - Cairo Communication S.p.A.

KPMG S.p.A. 75
Subsidiaries
- Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 35
- Cairo Editore S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 60
-La7 S.r.l. KPMG S.p.A. 75
- Cairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) KPMG S.p.A. 17
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CERTIFICATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME NTS PURSUANT TO

ARTICLE 81 TER OF CONSOB REGULATION 11971 OF 14 MAY 1999 AND SUBSEQUENT

MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

1. The undersigned Urbano Roberto Cairo, as Chaiwhdme Board of Directors, and Marco Pompignoli,
as Financial Reporting Manager of Cairo Communicats.p.A., also in accordance with art. 154 bis,
paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legislative Decree n. 58diébruary 1998, certify:

« the adequacy of the characteristics of the Panedt

* the effective application of administrative anct@unting procedures for the preparation of the4201
consolidated financial statements

2. We also certify that

2.1 the consolidated financial statements at 3leBber 2014:

a) have been prepared in compliance with Internatidiiaancial Reporting Standards endorsed by
the European Union, pursuant to EEC Regulation 2802 of the European Parliament and
Council, of 19 July 2002,

b) are consistent with the accounting records and $obkhe Company,

C) give a true and fair view of the financial positiand results of operations of the Issuer and the
companies included in the scope of consolidation;

2.2 the Directors’ Report contains a reliable asiglypn performance and operating results, as wetina
the position of the Issuer and on the companiekidiec in the scope of consolidation, together veith

description of the principal risks and uncertaintie which they are exposed.

Milan, 13 March 2015

For the Board of Directors Financial Reportingrdger
Chairman
(Urbano Roberto Cairo) (Marco Pompignol
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Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors to the Stareholders’ Meeting of Cairo
Communication S.p.A., pursuant to art. 153 of Legigstive Decree 58/1998 and to
art. 2429 of the Italian Civil Code

Shareholders,

pursuant to art. 2429 of the Italian Civil Code aodrt. 153, paragraph 1, of Legislative
Decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998, we hereby infgoon that during the year ended 31
December 2014, we performed the oversight dutiesgoibed by law (art. 14& seq of
the above-mentioned Legislative Decree), taking afgo account the standards of
conduct recommended by the Italian Associationudflié Accountants and Accounting
Professionals, and the relevant instructions pexviby CONSOB communications

concerning corporate control and the activitiethefBoard of Statutory Auditors.

The above being stated, these are the resulteqiréscribed oversight duties performed
during the year:

« we attended the Shareholders’ Meetings and thogheoBoard of Directors held
during the year, receiving from the Directors, at@dance with their obligations to
report to the Board of Statutory Auditors, unddr 460, paragraph 1, of Legislative
Decree n. 58/1998, timely and appropriate infororaton the overall business
performance and outlook, and the most relevantsaeions, in terms of size and

nature, made by the Company and its subsidiaries;

* to the extent of our responsibilities, we gatharddrmation on compliance with the
law and bylaws, and oversaw compliance with thegipies of proper governance
and appropriateness of the Company’'s organizatiatalcture, through direct
observation, through information gathered from thanagers of the departments
involved, through regular exchange of informatioithvthe Audit Firm tasked with
the statutory audit of the separate and consolidéteancial statements, and by
attending the meetings of the Control and Risks @dtee, the Remuneration

Committee and the Supervisory Body;

* we oversaw the operation and effectiveness of iternial control systems and the
adequacy of the administrative-accounting systed) apecifically, its reliability to
properly illustrate operational events;



pursuant to art. 19 of Legislative Decree n. 39R@thich has assigned the Board of
Statutory Auditors the role of "Internal ControldaAudit Committee”, we conducted
oversight duties provided therein on: a) the disate of financial information; b)
effectiveness of the internal control, internal ia@hd risk management systems; c)
the statutory audit of the separate and consoliddieancial statements; d)
independence of the Audit Firm, through direct obaton, information gathered
from the managers of the departments involved, landnalyzing the results of the
work performed by the Audit Firm. In such contewxe took note of the quarterly
audits performed by the Audit Firm to ensure thataccounts were kept on a regular
basis; we received from the Audit Firm the Reperisscribed by art. 14 and by art.
19, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree n 39/2019€, well as the “Annual
confirmation of independence”, pursuant to art. datagraph 9, lett. a) of the above
Decree; we analyzed, again pursuant to art. 17agpaph 9, lett. a) of the above
Decree, the risks regarding independence of theitAtidn and the measures it
adopted to constrain such risks;

we controlled the proper operation of the auditayson Group companies and the
appropriateness of instructions given to them, ymms also to art. 114, paragraph 2,
of Legislative Decree n. 58/1998;

we took note of the preparation of the RemuneraReport, pursuant to art. 12&

of Legislative Decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998 amart. 84quater of CONSOB
Regulations 11971/1999I¢§5uers’ Regulations), with no particular issues to report;
we controlled the implementation processes of aateogovernance rules provided
by the Corporate Governance Code of Listed Compaisgued by Borsa lItaliana
S.p.A., as adopted by the Company;

we oversaw compliance of the internal proceduranaigg related-party transactions
with the principles contained in the Regulationgraped by CONSOB through
resolution n. 17221 of 12 March 2010 and subsegaer@ndments, and compliance
with the above Regulations, pursuant to art. 4agph 6;

we verified compliance with the laws and regulasiom the preparation and layout of
the separate and consolidated financial statemastaell as the documents attached
thereto. Specifically, the separate and consolidatmancial statements are
accompanied by the prescribed statements of coitfosigned by the Chairman of

the Board of Directors and by the Financial Repgrivianager, pursuant to art. 81-



ter of CONSOB Regulations n. 11971 of 14 May 1999 amdlsequent amendments
and supplements thereto;

- verified that the Directors' Report for 2014 coreplwith the laws and regulations,
consistent with the resolutions adopted by the 8adrDirectors and with the facts
illustrated in the separate and consolidated firsrstatements. The half-year report
and quarterly reports were published in accordanite the law and regulations

currently in force and required no comments fromBoard of Statutory Auditors.

The specific indications to provide with this Retpare listed below, in accordance with
the provisions of the above-mentioned CONSOB Comeation of 6 April 2001 and

subsequent amendments:

1. We gathered information on the transactions afjom equity and financial
relevance made during the period, also throughidiaioes, to verify that they were
made in compliance with the law and bylaws and thay were neither imprudent

or such as to jeopardize the integrity of corpoessets.

In this regard, more specifically, mention mustede that on 25 June 2014, Cairo
Communication completed the acquisition for Euro636 million, in the tender
procedure opened by the Ministry of Economic Depmient and through its
subsidiary Cairo Network S.r.l., of the rights ®eufor a period of 20 years) the lot
of frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastisgstems (2-SFN multiplex

indicated as L3 Lot), covering approximately 96.68the population.

We certify, therefore, that to the best of ourkiexlge, the above transactions were
based on principles of proper governance and taissues regarding potential or

possible conflicts of interest were carefully asses

2. The characteristics of intra-group and relatadyp transactions put in place in
2014, the parties involved and the relating finah@&ffects were appropriately
explained in section 12 “Related-Party Transactiaighe "Report on Corporate
Governance and Ownership Structure" in the Direstteeport for the separate and
consolidated financial statements for the year @drile December 2014, to which
reference is made. In this regard, the Board, & dburse of its work, did not
identify any atypical and/or unusual transactioredenduring the year with third
and/or related parties. Mention must be made thatll November 2010, the
Board of Directors of the Company, under CONSOBdR&®n n. 17221 of 12
March 2010 and subsequent amendments and suppkenmed adopted new



internal procedures governing the decision-makingcgss and the required

disclosures regarding related-party transactiohe (Procedures), which came

into effect as from 1 January 2011.

Pursuant to art. 4, paragraph 6 of the CONSOB Rsiguls approved by the above

resolution n. 17221/2010, we oversaw:

i) compliance of the procedures adopted by the Compudtty the principles
contained in the above regulations and their olzsee,

i) fairness and correspondence of intra-group andeckigarty transactions with

the interests of the Company.

In our view, the information provided by the &itors in their Report, pursuant to
art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code (Directors’ Ref), regarding atypical and/or
unusual transactions and ordinary transactionsemtite previous point, is to be

considered exhaustive and complete.

KPMG S.p.A., the Audit Firm tasked with perfongistatutory audit, with which

we held regular meetings during the year, todapd8l 2015) issued the Reports
under art. 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010tifyang that the separate and
consolidated financial statements for the year érgle December 2014 are drawn
up clearly and give a true and fair view of ass#dilities, financial position,

results of operations and other components of cehgmsive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company and the Graunl certifying that the

Directors’ Report and the disclosures under ar3-dig paragraph 4, of Legislative
Decree n. 58/1998 are consistent with the sepdnma#acial statements of the
Company and with the consolidated financial statgmeof the Group. These

reports do not contain any issues of note or exgdtag comments.

In 2014, the Board received no complaints, pamsto art. 2408 of the Italian Civil
Code.

In 2014, the Board received no complaints froirdtparties.

In 2014, the Company did not assign KPMG S.pdditional non-recurring tasks.

There are no reports of tasks assigned to sulfjeatsare part of the “network” of
the Audit Firm KPMG S.p.A..



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

In 2014, the Board issued its opinion as prescripethw on the determination of
compensation to managers holding strategic respilitiss, as established by the

Board of Directors on the proposal of the RemumamaCommittee.

In 2014, the Board of Directors met six times, @entrol and Risks Committee
four times and the Board of Statutory Auditors fdimes. The Remuneration
Committee met two times in 2014, while the RelaRadty Committee met only

once.

The Board of Statutory Auditors acquired knowledge oversaw compliance with
the law and bylaws and observance of the principlggoper governance, ensuring
that actions decided and taken by the Directorsptiech with the law and bylaws,

and were made in a perspective of profitabilityd aihat they were neither

imprudent nor reckless, or in potential conflictioferest or in contrast with the
resolutions adopted by the Shareholders’ Meetimgsuzh as to jeopardize the
integrity of corporate assets.

With regard to the adequacy of the organizatiotralcture of the Company and of
the Group, the oversight duties of the Board otustay Auditors were performed
by acquiring knowledge of the organizational stmuet through information

gathered from each area, through meetings with nlamagers of the various
departments and with the Audit Firm as part of gular exchange of data and

information.

The Board acquired knowledge and oversaw the adgcurad effectiveness of the
internal control system, pursuant also to art. 19 egislative Decree 39/2010,
through regular meetings with the Director in cleagf the internal control system
and with the internal audit manager, and throughptesence of the Chairman of
the Board of Statutory Auditors at the meetingthef Control and Risks Committee
and of all the members of the Board at the meetingls the Model 231/2001
Supervisory Body.

The Board also oversaw the adequacy and reliabditythe administrative-

accounting system to properly illustrate operatioments, through direct
observation, through information received by thenawgers of the departments
involved, by examining company documents and byyaimay the results of the

work performed by the Audit Firm.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The Board controlled the operation of the contggtem over subsidiaries and the
adequacy of the instructions given to the subsekaoy the Company, pursuant to
art. 114, paragraph 2, of Legislative Decree n988fin order for the Group
companies to provide the required information tonpty with statutory disclosure
obligations. No exceptions were reported in thigard.

During the regular meetings held by the Board at@ory Auditors with the Audit
Firm, pursuant to art. 150, paragraph 3, of LegistaDecree n. 58/1998, no

relevant issues emerged that need to be mentionisiReport.

The Board also controlled the implementation preessof corporate governance
rules prescribed by the Corporate Governance Cbdested Companies issued by
Borsa lItaliana S.p.A., as adopted by the Compaegprting no reprehensible

aspects;

With regard to the oversight duties performed asitioeed above, there were no
omissions, reprehensible facts or irregularitiepor@able to the competent

authorities and/or the supervisory boards, or woofhmention in this Report.

Finally, the Board of Statutory Auditors performéts own assessments on
compliance with the rules of law regarding the pregpion of the draft separate
financial statements and consolidated financidakstants of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014, of the relating explanabtatgs and the Directors’
Report attached thereto, either directly, assibiedepartment managers or through
information received from the Audit Firm.

Specifically, it is acknowledged that the separatel consolidated financial
statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. for tharyended 31 December 2014
were prepared in accordance with the “Internatiéiaéncial Reporting Standards”
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Stadd Board (IASB) and
approved by the European Union, and in accordanttethe provisions issued in

implementation of art. 9 of Legislative Decree &/2D05.

Based on the foregoing considerations, with redgardhe oversight duties performed

during the year, the Board of Statutory Auditors ha remarks to make, pursuant to art.

153 of Legislative Decree n. 158/1998, to the extérits responsibilities, on the separate

and consolidated financial statements, and on tt@aeatory notes and Directors’

Report, agreeing with the proposal of the BoardwoEctors to allocate profit for the

year, and with the proposal to distribute dividenmstained in the Directors’ Report to



the IAS/IFRS separate financial statements of G@mmmunication S.p.A.

Milan, 3 April 2015

Board of Statutory Auditors

Marco Moroni (Chairman)

Marco Giuliani

Maria Pia Maspes

The following pages provide a list of the positi@igdministration and supervision held by
the members of the Board of Statutory Auditorstimeo companies as at the issue date of

the Report (Annex pursuant to art. Igtdnquiedecies of the Issuers’ Regulations).



ANNEX TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF CAIR O COMMUNICATION SPA
DRAWN UP PURSUANT TO ART. 153 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/98

List of positions held in Companies as per Book V, Tle V, Chapters V, VI and VIl of the Italian Civil Code
as at the issue date of the Report
(art. 144-quinquiesdecies Consob Regulations 11999)

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Marco Moroni ( Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors)
1 Betfair ltalia Srl Standing Auditor 30/04/2015
2 Cairo Communication Spa Chairman of the Board of Statukuditors 31/12/2016
3 Cairo Editore Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutardifors 31/12/2016
4 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Chairman of the Board of Stayufarditors 31/12/2015
5 Caseificio del Cigno Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2014
6 Elettrodelta Spa In Liquidazione Standing Auditor 1/12/2014
7 La7 srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
8 Locauto Rent Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
9 Locauto Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
10 Publicitas International Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
11 Revicom Srl Chairman of the Board of Directors Until revocation
12 Sony Music Entertainment Italy Spa Standing Auditor 31/03/2016
13 Ut Communications Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutaditors 31/12/2016
14 SCF Consorzio Fonografici Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
15 Fratelli Giacomel Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
16 Giacomel Group Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
17 Asscom Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

17

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Maria Pia Maspes Standing Auditor)
1 Cairo Communication Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
2 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
3 Cairo Editore Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
4 UT Communications Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
5 Torino FC Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
6 LA7 Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
7 G.B.H Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
8 Alto Partnes SGR Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
9 Italholding Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
10 MAB Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2014
11 Eurofly services Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
12 Kelly service Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2014
13 Aliserio Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2014

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

13



N.

Company Name

Position

Until approval of the
financial statements

Marco Giuliani ( Standing Auditor)

OCoOoO~NOYUITD WN P

Cairo Communication Spa
Ali Spa

Banca Esperia Spa

Banca Mediolanum Spa
Mediolanum Fiduciaria Spa
Belmond Investimenti Spa
Belmond lItalia Spa

Hotel Splendido Srl
Mediolanum Gestione Fondi Spa
Rothschild Italia Spa

Yara ltalia Spa

Bg Italia Power Spa

Space Spa

Tioxide Europe Srl

Number of positions held in issuing companies

Total number of positions held

Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Chairman of the Board ofustay Auditors
Chairman of the Board of Statufargitors
Single Statutory Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor

31/12/2016
31/08/2015
31/12/2014
31/12/2014
31/12/2016
31/12/2014
31/12/2014

31/12/2016
31/12/2015
31/03/2016
31/12/2014
31/12/2014
31/12/2015
31/12/2015
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(Translation from the Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Report of the auditors in accordance with articles 14 and 16 of
Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010

To the shareholders of
Cairo Communication S.p.A.

| We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Cairo Communication
Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014, comprising the statement of
financial position, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows and notes thereto. The parent’s directors are
responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the
Italian regulations implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2 We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards recommended by
Consob, the Ttalian Commission for Listed Companies and the Stock Exchange. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and are,
as a whole, reliable. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by directors. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Reference should be made to the report dated 7 April 2014 for our opinion on the prior
year consolidated financial statements, which included the corresponding figures
presented for comparative purposes.

3 In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Cairo Communication Group
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014 comply with the International Financial
Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations
implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Therefore, they are clearly stated
and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Cairo Communication Group
as at 31 December 2014, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended.
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Cairo Communication Group
Report of the auditors
31 December 2014

4 The directors of Cairo Communication S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of a
directors’ report on the financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency of the
directors’ report and its specific section on corporate governance and ownership
structure, to the extent of the information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and
article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative decree no. 58/98 with the financial statements to which
they refer, as required by the law. For this purpose, we have performed the procedures
required by the Italian Standard on Auditing 001 issued by the Italian Accounting
Profession and recommended by Consob. In our opinion, the directors’ report and the
information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative
decree no. 58/98 disclosed in the specific section of such report are consistent with the
consolidated financial statements of the Cairo Communication Group as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Milan, 3 April 2015

KPMG S.p.A.
(signed on the original)

Francesco Spadaro
Director of Audit
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Separate financial statements at 31 December 2014
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Income statement for the year ended 31 December 201

31 December 2014

&

31 December 2013

Net revenue 1 116.595.20 121.047.45
Other revenue and incol 2 350.37 1.216.64
Services 3 (107.830.984) (111.617.002)
Use of third-party assets 3 (714.694) (677.301)
Personnel expen:s 4 (2.989.997 (2.844.10%
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaintnesses 5 (290.445 (271.773
Other operating cos 3 (90.540 (180.865
Operating profit 5.028.914 6.673.048
Net financial income 6 364.66: 1.016.15
Income (loss) on investments 7 7.083.773 13.173.806
Pre-tax profit 12.477.351 20.863.013
Tax 8 (1.890.82¢ (2.797.39C
Profit from continuing operations 10.586.52: 18.065.62
Loss from discontinued operations 9 (656) (4.787)
Profit for the year 10.585.866 18.060.836

Statement of comprehensive income for the year end&1
December 2014

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Profit for the year 10.585.866 18.060.836
Other non-reclassifiable items of the comprehensimeome statement

Actuarial gains (losses) from defined benefit plans (135.039 (96.834
Tax effect 37.136 26.629
Total comprehensive income 10.487.962 17.990.631
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Statement of financial position

€ thousands

Assets Notes 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Property, plant and equipment 10 457.417 547.958
Intangible assets 11 319.656 357.256
Investments 12 23.123.637 17.614.037
Other non-current financial assets 13 1.662.633 12.596
Deferred tax assets 14 424.421 493.402
Total non-current assets 25.987.764 19.025.249
Trade receivables 15 320.475 535.288
Receivables from parents 23 796.941 649.344
Receivables from subsidiaries 16 65.474.755 76.414.827
Other receivables and other current assets 17 1.148.087 1.055.941
Cash and cash equivalents 18 25.768.486 35.690.269
Total current assets 93.508.744 114.345.669
Total assets 119.496.508 133.370.918
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Share capital 19 4.073.857 4.073.857
Share premium reserve 19 41.062.091 44.153.763
Retained earnings 19 396.167 494.071
Other reserves 19 1.056.508 1.056.508
Treasury shares 19 (2.352) (2.352)
Profit for the year 19 10.585.866 18.060.836
Total equity 57.172.137 67.836.683
Post-employment benefits 20 1.220.793 1.008.145
Provisions for risks and charges 21 264.181 337.382
Total non-current liabilities 1.484.974 1.345.527
Trade payables 22 2.147.470 3.604.153
Payables to subsidiaries 24 55.516.346 58.253.282
Tax liabilities 25 1.291.289 227.066
Other current liabilities 26 1.884.292 2.104.206
Total current liabilities 60.839.397 64.188.707
Total liabilities 62.324.371 65.534.234
Total equity and liabilities 119.496.508 133.370.918
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Cash flow statement

€ thousands

2014 2013

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 35.690 45.426
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit 10.586 18.061
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses 290 272
Impairment losses on investments 201 357
Net financial income (7.649) (14.547)
Income tax 1.891 2.797
Change in post-employment benefits 213 150
Net change in provisions for risks and charges (73) 188
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 5.458 7.278
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 17.308 9.182
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (4.414) (14.697)
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18.352 1.763
Income tax paid (905) (2.649)
Financial expense paid (141) (121)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 17.306 (1.007)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Acquisition) net disposals of PPE and intangible assets (162) (499)
Interest and financial income received 506 1.512
Dividends received 1.039 3.402
Net increase in other non-current assets (7.361) (3.553)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (5.978) 862
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares 0 1.383
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect (98) (70)
Dividends paid (21.152) (10.905)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (21.250) (9.592)
NET CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A) + (B) + (C) (9.922) (9.737)
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE 25.768 35.690
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Statement of changes in equity

€ thousands

Balance at 31 December 2011

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Interim dividend 2012

Purchase of treasury shares

Profit for the year

Balance at 31 December 2012

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Actuarial gains (losses) from defined benefit plans

Disposal of treasury shares

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2013

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Actuarial gains (losses) from defined benefit plans

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2014

Share capital Share premium Retained Otherreserves Treasury shares Interim dividend Profitfor the year Equity
reserve earnings
4.074 48.288 494 1.057 (1.132) 19.258 60.343
19.258 (19.258) 0
(4.134) (19.258) (11.696)
(10.126)
(214) (214)
21.062 21.062
4.074 44.154 494 1.057 (1.346) 21.062 59.369
21.062 (21.062) 0
(21.031) (10.905)
(70) 70 0
39 1.344 1.383
17.991 17.991
4.074 44.154 494 1.057 (2) 18.061 67.837
18.061 (18.061) 0
(3.092) (18.060) (21.152)
(98) 98 0
10.488 10.488
4.074 41.062 397 1.057 (2) 10.586 57.173
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Income statement pursuant to Consob Resolution n5519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands

Net revenue

Other revenue and income

Services

Use of third-party assets

Personnel expense

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaintrie

Other operating costs

Operating income
Net financial income

Income (loss) on investments

Pre-tax profit

Tax

Profit from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations

Profit for the year

31 December 2014 Related parties % of total Tlecember 2013 Related parties % of total
* *
116.595.201 116.562.327 100,0% 121.047.452 121.003.937 100,0%
350.373 230.804 65,9% 1.216.642
(107.830.984)  (101.938.194) 94,5% (111.617.002) (1%5035) 93,9%
(714.694) (677.301)
(2.989.997) (2.844.105)
(290.445) (271.773)
(90.540) (180.865)
5.028.914 6.673.048
364.664 983 0,3% 1.016.159 1.192 0,1%
7.083.773 7.083.773 100,0% 13.173.806 13.173.806 100,0%
12.477.351 20.863.013
(1.890.829) (2.797.390)
10.586.522 18.065.623
(656) (4.787)
10.585.866 18.060.836

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in Ne8te
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Statement of financial position pursuant to ConsoliResolution no. 15519 of 27 July

2006

€ thousands
Assets 31 December 2014 Related parties % of total 31 December 2013 Related parties % of total
* ®
Property, plant and equipment 457.417 547.958
Intangible assets 319.656 357.256
Investments 23.123.637 23.123.637 100,0% 17.614.037 17.614.037 100,0%
Receivables from subsidiaries - 0
Non-current financial assets 1.662.633 12.596
Deferred tax assets 424.421 493.402
Total non-current assets 25.987.764 19.025.249
Trade receivables 320.475 303.750 94,8% 535.288 302.750 56,6%
Receivables from parents 796.941 796.941 100,0% 649.344 649.344 100,0%
Receivables from subsidiaries 65.474.755 65.474.755 100,0% 76.414.827 76.414.827 100,0%
Other receivables and other current assets 1.148.087 1.055.941
Cash and cash equivalents 25.768.486 35.690.269
Total current assets 93.508.744 114.345.669
Total assets 119.496.508 133.370.918
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Share capital 4.073.857 4.073.857
Share premium reserve 41.062.091 44.153.763
Retained earnings 396.167 494.071
Other reserves 1.056.508 1.056.508
Treasury shares (2.352) (2.352)
Interim dividend 0 0
Profit for the year 10.585.866 18.060.836
Total equity 57.172.137 67.836.683
Post-employment benefits 1.220.793 1.008.145
Provisions for risks and charges 264.181 128.602 48,7% 337.382 127.645 37,8%
Total non-current liabilities 1.484.974 1.345.527
Trade payables 2.147.470 16.554 0,8% 3.604.153 16.554 0,5%
Payables to subsidiaries 55.516.346 55.516.346 100,0% 58.253.282 58.253.282 100,0%
Taxes payable 1.291.289 227.066
Other current liabilities 1.884.292 2.104.206
Total current liabilities 60.839.397 64.188.707
Total liabilities 62.324.371 65.534.234
Total equity and liabilities 119.496.508 133.370.918

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in \e8te
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Statement of cash flows pursuant to Consob Resolaofi no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands

31 December 2014 related parties 31 December 2013 related parties
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 35.690 45.426
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit 10.586 21.940 18.061 29.403
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses 290 272
Impairment losses on investments 201 201 357 7
Net financial income (7.649) (7.284) (14.547) (13.156)
Income tax 1.891 2.797
Change in post-employment benefits 213 150
Net change in provisions for risks and charges (73) (1) 188 22
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 5.458 14.856 7.278 16.276
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 17.308 10.791 9.182 (3.827)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (4.414) (2.737) (14.697) 54.819
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18.352 22.910 1.763 67.268
Income tax paid (905) (2.649)
Financial expense paid (141) (121)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 17.306 22.910 (1.007) 67.268
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Acquisition) net disposals of PPE and intangible assets (162) (499)
Interest and financial income received 506 1.512
Dividends received 1.039 1.039 3.402 3.402
Net increase in other non-current assets (7.361) (3.553) 386
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (5.978) 1.039 862 3.788
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares 0 1.383
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect (98) (70)
Dividends paid (21.152) (10.905)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (21.250) 0 (9.592) 0
CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C) (9.922) 23.949 (9.737) 71.056
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE 25.768 35.690
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AN D FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Main activities

Cairo Communication S.p.A. is a joint-stock compésted in the Milan Company Register.

The Cairo Communication Group operates as a pulish magazines and books (Cairo Editore —
and its division Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori — a@diro Publishing), as television editor (La7)aas
multimedia advertising broker selling advertisinge and space on television, in print media and in
stadiums (Cairo Communication and Cairo Pubblicigg a publisher of electronic content (Il
Trovatore), and network operator (Cairo Networkl$.r

As explained in the Directors’ Report, in 2014 thebsidiary Cairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo
Sport S.r.l.) took part in the tender procedurenegeby the Ministry of Economic Development for
the assignment of rights to use TV frequenciesligital terrestrial broadcasting systems, subngttin
its binding bid and winning the rights to use adbfrequencies ("Mux") for a period of 20 yeans. |
January 2015, Cairo Network and El Towers S.p.Aerenl into the agreements for the realization
and subsequent long-term technical management linséuvice mode (hospitality, service and
maintenance, use of broadcasting infrastructuce), et the Mux. With the acquisition and realizatio
of the Mux, the Cairo Communication Group startpdrations as a network operator.

The registered offices are at 56 Via Tucidide, Klilhome also to the administrative offices, the
advertising brokerage services and Il Trovatore @aito Network. The publishing business is
managed at Cairo Editore, at 55 Corso Magenta,nMilde publishing business of La7 is managed
mainly in Rome at the registered offices and the sivdios of La7 S.r.l. at 229 Via della Pineta
Sacchetti and 32 Via Novaro, respectively.

The income statement and the statement of finarpmaition are presented in euro, while the
statement of cash flows, the statement of changesquity and the amounts in these notes are
presented in thousands of euro.

As the Parent, Cairo Communication S.p.A. has ptepared the consolidated financial statements

of the Cairo Communication Group at 31 Decembe#201

Basis of preparation

Structure, form and content of the financial stapta

The separate financial statements of Cairo Commatinit S.p.A. at 31 December 2014 have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS issued by theratmnal Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”)
and endorsed by the European Union, as well asthatlprovisions arising from art. 9 of Legislative
Decree no. 38/2005. The term IFRS is used to mdathe international accounting standards
(“IAS™), and all the interpretations of the Intetimaal Financial Reporting Interpretations Comndtte
(“IFRIC™), formerly the Standing Interpretations @mittee (“SIC”).
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For completeness of information, the following axe® are supplied as an integral part of these

Notes:

- Annex 1: List of investments in subsidiaries ansbagtes;

- Annex 2 and 3: Summary figures of the draft finahctatements of subsidiaries at 31
December 2014,

- Annex 4 and 5: Summary figures of the most receatiproved financial statements of

subsidiaries.

The main accounting policies adopted are unchafrged those used for the previous year, and are

shown below.

The separate financial statements are preparedgoing concern basis. The Company believes that
even in the presence of a difficult economic amdvricial situation, significant uncertainties do not
exist (as defined by paragraphs 25 and 26 of IA&slto the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, also given both the profitabilitytloak of the Company and the Group and of its

financial position.

Financial statements schedules

The income statementis presented by nature, highlighting interim opieatresults and pre-tax

results, and, in order to allow a better measur@rdinary operating management performance.

Furthermore, cost and revenue components derivioign fevents or transactions which, by their

nature or size, are considered non-recurring, laeseparately identified in the financial statetsen

and the notes. These transactions also fall under definition of non-recurring events and

transactions as per Consob Communication No. 6549298 July 2006.

The economic effects of discontinued operationssamvn in a single line of the income statement

entitled “Profit/loss from discontinued operationsider IFRS 5.

Thestatement of comprehensive incomalso reflects thechanges arising from transactions with

non-owner% separately showing the relevant tax effectst tfia

- profit and loss that could be directly recognizeaquity (for instance, actuarial losses from
the measurement of defined benefit plans);

- the effects of the measurement of derivativerimsents hedging future cash flows;

- the effects of the measurement of “availabledale financial asséts

- the effects arising from any change in accounsitagdards.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive inqomgents the items relating to the amounts of

the components of other comprehensive income ferpieriod by nature and grouped into those

which, in accordance with the provisions of otE8MIFRS:

- will not be subsequently reclassified to fir@bss) for the year;
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- will be subsequently reclassified to profiitss) for the year, when certain conditions are met

The statement of financial positionpresents separately assets and liabilities dividezlirrent and

non-current, indicating, on two separate lines,s&s intended for sale” and “Liabilities associated

with discontinued operations”, in accordance wi#R$E 5. Specifically, an asset or a liability is

classified as current when it satisfies one offtilewing criteria:

- it is expected to be realized or settled or iexpected to be sold or utilized in the normal
operating cycle of the company;

- it is held principally to be traded;

- it is expected to be realized or settled withi2donths of the reporting date.

Otherwise, the asset or liability is classifiechas-current.

The statement of cash flowshas been prepared applying the indirect methoathich operating

performance is adjusted to reflect transactions @on-monetary nature, for whatever deferral or

accrual of previous or future operating receiptgpayments and for revenue or cost components

connected to cash flows arising from investinginaricing activities. Income and expense relating to

medium or long-term financial operations and thosdating to hedging instruments and dividends

paid are included in financing activities.

Thestatement of changes in equitghows the variations in equity relating to:

- allocation of profit for the year;

- amounts relating to transactions with ownersd¢pase and sale of treasury shares);

and separately income and expense definedtentes arising from transactions with non-owhers

also shown in the statement of comprehensive income

For each significant item detailed in the above-iomed schedules, reference is made to the

following notes in which relevant information isopided, with details also on composition and

variations on the previous year.

Furthermore, in order to comply with Consob ResofutNo. 15519 of 27 July 2006 relating to

financial statements schedules, specific additistetement of comprehensive income and statement

of financial position have been prepared, showirggemial balances or related party transactions

separately for each item.

Revenue and cost recognition

Revenue and cost and income and expense are reedgm an accruals basis, specifically:

* Revenue is recognized on the probability with whibke company will enjoy the economic
benefits and in the extent to which the amount lmameliably determined. Revenue is stated net of
any adjustments.

» Advertising revenue is recognized at the momentatheertisement is broadcast or published or

provision of services offered.
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» Costis recognized using the same criteria formagaecognition and on an accruals basis.

* Interest income and expense are recognized oncanade basis.

» Dividends are recognized only as from when theedf@ders’ right to the dividend payment has
been established, and only when resulting fromaditpdistribution following the acquisition of the
investment; in the case, however, of a profit distion prior to the acquisition of their relevant
shares, such dividends are treated as a reduatibwe icost of the relevant investment.

» The recharges of costs incurred on behalf of thandies are recognized as a reduction in the cost
to which they relate.

» Financial income and expense are recognized imntteeme statement on a maturity basis, as a

function of time, using the effective interest nueth

Taxes

Taxes for the year correspond to the sum of cuaedtdeferred taxes.

Current taxes are based upon taxable income foyghe Taxable income differs from the results
shown in the income statement as it excludes bo#itipe and negative entries which would be
taxable or deductible in other tax years and exadutbmponents which are not taxable or deductible
at any time.

Cairo Communication and its subsidiaries Cairo &ditS.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei
S.r.l. in liquidation, La7 S.r.l., Cairo Networkr$. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) and Cairo Publisdi
participate in the national tax consolidation sceesh UT Communications S.p.A., in accordance
with art. 117/129 of the Consolidated Income Tax Ac

The consolidation scheme, which regulates econ@spects pertaining to the sums deposited or
calculated against the advantages or disadvantagssg from the national tax consolidation
scheme, also allows for any increased costs oredeed benefits incurred by the Companies, by
participating in this procedure, to be repaid by Barent U.T. Communications S.p.A.

UT Communications S.p.A. acts as the tax parentdatermines a single taxable base for the group
of companies that adheres to the national tax d¢olasion scheme, which thereby benefits from the
ability of offsetting taxable profits against tal@bosses in one tax return.

Each company that participates in the nationakttmsolidation scheme transfers its taxable profit o
loss to the tax parent. For any such taxable prefibrted by a subsidiary, UT Communications
S.p.A. recognizes receivables equal to the IRESalgay Conversely, for any such taxable loss,
reported by a subsidiary, UT Communications S.pe&ognize a payable equal to IRES due on the
loss that has been contractually transferred atiGlevel.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized dll taxable temporary differences, while defdrre
tax assets are recognized to the extent of theapility that there will be future taxable profitdieh

will allow for the utilization of the deductible ngporary differences. Deferred taxes are calculated
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or settlement of the liability, based on tax legfigin in force at the reporting date. Where relévan

on the basis of the tax rates that are foresedrb®in force at the moment of realization of tlsset
the effects of any changes in tax rate or tax latym after the reporting date are disclosed & th
notes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arerted at their net value when there is a legaltrigh

offset current tax liabilities and assets and wiientaxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Post-employment benefits

For ltalian companies with at least 50 employeast-pmployment benefits take the form of a
defined benefit plan, solely for the amounts acdrpior to 1 January 2007 (and not yet paid at the
reporting date), whereas subsequent to such diege are recognized as a defined contribution plan.
For Italian companies with less than 50 employgest-employment benefits are considered as a
defined benefit plan. All defined benefit plans digcounted.

The Company has less than 50 employees. The diSoguprocess, based on demographic and
financial assumptions, is performed by independetiaries.

In accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefitsthe recognition of expenses related to work
performed and net financial charges are recognizéite income statement, while actuarial gains and
losses arising from the re-measurement of liabgitand assets are recognized in the statement of

comprehensive income.

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Costs, including accessory costs incurred for trguiition of resources with no physical substance
are recognized among intangible assets when the isoquantifiable and the asset is clearly

identifiable and controlled by the Company, and rghne use of the asset will generate probable
future benefits.

These are valued at their acquisition or productiost, including related costs — to the extent to
which they are considered to have a finite lifend ghey are amortized to reflect their remaining

useful economic lives.

The amortization periods of intangible assets oioues types are as follows:

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similarsr gt 5 years

Software 3to 5 years

The remaining useful life and the amortizationesid applied are reviewed on a regular basis and
where change is deemed necessary, the amortizaditen is restated in accordance with the

“prospective” method.
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Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are recognidezh their cost can be reliably determined and

Property, plant and equipment

when related future economic benefits can be edjbyethe Company.
They are recognized at acquisition price or pradactost, including directly associated expenses

and costs, plus the share of indirect costs whachlbe reasonably attributed to the asset.

These assets are systematically depreciated aaighdgtline basis each year at rates consistertt wit

the economic and technical useful life of the asdaépreciation rates applied are as follows:

Property 3%

General equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Plant and machinery 10%
Office equipment and furniture 10%-12%
Electronic equipment 20%

The above PPE depreciation rates are reduced bydb®itg their first year of use, this percentage
representing the weighted average of the entrgéoafi new assets, on an annual basis. Depreciation
begins when the asset is ready for use.

The remaining useful life and the amortizationesid applied are reviewed on a regular basis and
where change is deemed necessary, the amortizadien is restated in accordance with the
“prospective” method.

The remaining useful lives of assets are reviewatually and if incremental maintenance or other
work has been carried out which changes the renminseful life of the investment, these are
adjusted accordingly.

Incremental maintenance and other costs producirgigaificant and tangible increase in the
productive capacity or security of assets, or leaging its remaining useful life, are capitalized a
recognized as an increase in the carrying amoutiteofissets. Ordinary maintenance costs are taken
directly to profit and loss.

Leasehold improvements are recognized as PPE,eohasis of the cost incurred. The depreciation

period corresponds to the lower of the remainirefuldife of the asset and the term of the contract

Impairment of assets
At least once a year, the company reviews the evedwity of the carrying amount of its intangible
assets with an indefinite useful life, and of itg@stments and whenever there are potential iralicat

of an impairment loss on PPE and intangible ass#étsa finite useful life, in order to determine
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whether such assets may have suffered an impairoent When such indications are present, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to reflembverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value less castsetl, and its value in use. The fair value ofstet
investment is determined according to its markétepr To determine an asset’s value in use, the
Company calculates the present value of futurenestid cash flows, inclusive of tax, by applying a
pre-tax discount rate which reflects the currentketvaluation of the time value of money and the
specific risks inherent to the asset.

Excluding goodwill, when the impairment loss of agsset no longer applies or is reduced, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased up to¢lmeestimated recoverable amount, which may not

exceed the amount which would have been deternfiaddo impairment loss been recognized.

Investments

Subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates aregmezaml at purchase or subscription cost and
adjusted for any impairment loss.

Any excess in value between the purchase prideedirne of acquisition and the company’s share of
equity at current values is therefore includechim ¢arrying amount of the investment.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates arecuigj impairment testing at least once a year, or
more frequently if deemed necessary. Whenever tierevidence that such investments have
incurred an impairment loss, the impairment losgeisognized in profit and loss. Should the
company’s share of losses in an investment exdeeddrrying amount of the investment, and the
company is obliged to reflect those losses, thaevaf the investment is written off and the shdre o
any such losses is shown as a provision in ligslitWhenever an impairment loss is reduced or
ceases to exist, the loss is reversed up to thaaticarrying amount through profit and loss.
Receivables from subsidiaries and associates

Non-interest bearing loans granted to subsidiamesassociates are classified as non-current

financial assets.

Current assets and liabilities

Receivables

Trade and other current assets are recognizeéiategtimated realizable value.

Financial assets
They are initially recognized at fair value, whiblsically corresponds to consideration paid and
direct expenses associated with their acquisii@mancial assets acquired and sold are recognized a

their trading date, when the Company intends taiaetpell these assets.
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At the subsequent reporting dates, the financisktasthat the Company has the intention and the
ability to hold to maturity (held-to-maturity inviesents) are recognized at amortized cost, net pf an
impairment losses, to reflect write-downs, if any.

Investments other than those held to maturity &ssified as held for trading or available for sale
and are measured at the end of each reportingdpatitheir fair value. When financial assets afd he
for trading, gains and losses arising from fairugathanges are recognized in profit and loss.dn th
case of available-for-sale financial assets, gaind losses arising from fair value changes are
recognized in comprehensive income. When availtdrlsale financial assets are sold, redeemed or
transferred, cumulative gains or losses previoushognized in comprehensive income must be
reclassified from equity to profit/ (loss) for tlyear. This reserve is also used if alignment to fai
value results in subsequent impairment of the agsiltthe reserve is used up. Any additional loss
exceeding the reserve, should it result in an impamt loss, is taken to profit and loss.

Regarding measurement of available-for-sale asdhes,directors have chosen as impairment

indicators the reduction in fair value below cadsbweer 50%, or for a period exceeding 24 months.

Cash and cash equivalents

This item comprises cash, bank current accountslapdsits on demand, and other short-term highly
liquid financial investments which are easily comide to cash and not subject to the risk of
significant value changes.

They are recognized at their nominal amount.

Borrowings, bank loans and overdrafts

Borrowings, interest-bearing bank loans and bardrdrafts are recognized based on the amount
cashed net of transaction costs, and subsequemthsured at amortized cost using the current
interest rate method.

Trade payables

They are recognized at their nominal amount.

Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are recognizednwthe company has a legal or constructive
obligation resulting from a past event and for vah& probability exists for the fulfillment of that
obligation. The provisions reflect the best estamnidased on information currently available to the
Directors of the costs required to fulfill the aation at the reporting date, and are discounteghwh

the effect is significant.
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Treasury shares
Treasury shares are recognized as a reductionuitye@he effects of any subsequent transactions

are also recognized directly in equity.

Dividends paid
Dividends payable are recorded as a movement iftyegqu the year they are approved by the

Shareholders’ Meeting or by the Board of Direciarthe event of interim dividend.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements ancttes thereto, in application of the IFRS, reaiire
that the Company carry out certain estimates asdnagtions which affect the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities and disclosures about ass®lscontingent liabilities at the reporting date.
Estimates and assumptions used are based on exq@edad on other factors considered significant.
Actual results could differ from these estimatestirBates mainly relate to provisions for risks
relating to receivables, investment measuremergredetion, amortization, impairment of assets,
taxation, provisions for risks and charges, andingant liabilities.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularty the effects of each variation therein are
recognized in profit and loss in the period in Wwhite estimate was revised. The effects of such
revisions are reflected in the periods on whicty thave effect, i.e. both in the current period, and
future periods, if relevant. In this context, thersisting uncertainty factors in the short and iomed
economic term, which make it hard to predict aneto normal market conditions, have led to the
need to make assumptions regarding future perfarenamhich are influenced by significant
uncertainty, and the possibility of achieving résulifferent from those estimated cannot be exdude
for the next year, which could therefore requirgusitnents to the carrying amount, even significant,
although these are obviously neither currently ¢jtiable nor foreseeable.

The items most susceptible to these uncertainteshe allowance for impairment, inventory write-
downs, non-current assets (intangible assets, gyogdant and equipment and investments), post-
employment benefits and deferred tax assets.

A summary follows of all critical measurement preses used and key assumptions made by
Management regarding the future in the procespplyang accounting policies and that could have a
significant effect on the amount recognized in toasolidated financial statements and for which
there is a risk that significant adjustments to¢heying amount of assets and liabilities couldear

in the next period.
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The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects Mamagat’s estimate regarding the losses on portfolio

Allowance for doubtful accounts

of receivables from end customers. The allowasaestimated based on the losses expected by the
Company, based upon past experience for similaivable, current and past due dates, losses and
receipts arising from the careful monitoring of e@ables management and from projections on
market and economic conditions. The persistingettamty factors in the short and medium
economic term, along with the resulting credit spge could result in further deterioration of the
financial conditions of Company debtors compareddaierioration already considered in the

guantification of the recognized allowance for ifnpeent.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recorded to the extenthtohwt is considered probable that future taxable
income will be generated to allow the utilizatiohdafferent deductible temporary differences. The
realizable value of deferred tax assets is peradgiceviewed according to the future taxable ineom

foreseen in the Company's most recent plans.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets

Non-current assets include investments, propelint@and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax
assets and other financial assets. Managemermtdjeily reviews the carrying amount of the non-
current assets held and used, and those of asddtgohn sale, as and when circumstances require
such revision. This is performed using the estichatesh flows expected from the use or sale of the
asset and suitable discount rates to calculatepresmlue.  When the carrying amount of a non-
current asset has suffered an impairment lossCtmpany recognizes an impairment loss equal to
the positive difference between the greater ofdéuweying amount of the asset and its recoverable
amount from its use or sale, as determined acogtdithe Company’s most recent plans.

For the preparation of the financial statements3ktDecember 2014, and in particular in the
performance of impairment tests on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, the
different sectors of the Cairo Communication Grdwgyve taken into account the expected 2015
performance, whose assumptions and results aneeimith the information disclosed in the section
on “significant events after the reporting period and businesscolt! In addition, for the
subsequent years of the plan, necessary adjustimavesbeen cautiously made to take account of the
deep market changes resulting from the current aoan and financial crisis. No significant

impairment was required based on such figuresdrptan.
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Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risks and charges relating totiogent liabilities of a legal or fiscal naturesar
made on the basis of estimates made by the Diseaborthe basis of valuations made by the
Company’s legal counsels and fiscal advisors orpthbable charge that can be reasonably expected

to fulfill the obligation.

Risk management

The main fiscal, legal and financial risks to whichiro Communication S.p.A. is exposed, as well
as the policies put in place by Management forrth@inagement, are explained in Note 28 and

Note 30. Reference is made to the Directors’ Rapggarding operational and business risks.

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios applied from 1 January 2014

The following accounting standards, amendments mberpretations, revised also following

IASB’s yearly improvement process, were appliedtifier first time starting from 1 January 2014:

* IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements The standard, issued by the IASB in May
2011, supersedes SIC 1Zensolidation:special purpose entities (vehiclem)d parts of IAS
27 —Consolidated and separate financial statemesbhamedSeparate financial statements
sets out the accounting requirements of equitystments in the separate financial statements.
IFRS 10 introduces a new control model that isiappio all entities, including vehicles, based
on the power exercised by the Group over theséiestexposure or rights to variable returns
from its involvement with these entities, and th®lity to use its power to influence these
variable returns. The IASB requires retrospectippligation of the standard from 1 January
2013. The competent EU bodies have completed theagl process of the standard, deferring
the date of application to 1 January 2014, allowiogvever early adoption beginning from 1
January 2013.

The adoption of the new standard did not requieer¢ldefinition of the scope of consolidation.

* IFRS 11 - Joint arrangements— The standard, issued by the IASB in May 2011gessgiles
IAS 31 —Interests in Joint Ventureand SIC 13 Jointly controlled entities - Nonmonetary
contributions by venturer$=RS 11 provides criteria to identify joint arramgents based on the
rights and obligations arising from the agreemenither than on their legal form. It uses only
the equity method to account for interests in jorentures in the consolidated financial
statements. Following issue of this standard, I8S-2nvestments in associatesas amended
to include within its framework, from the effectidate of the standard, interests in joint
ventures. The IASB requires retrospective appbeatf the standard from 1 January 2013. The

competent EU bodies have completed the approvakpsoof the standard, deferring the date of
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application to 1 January 2014, allowing howevenyeadoption beginning from 1 January
2013. The adoption by the Cairo Communication Grofithis standard had no impact on the
data in the Annual Financial Report.

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of interests in other entities The standard, issued by the IASB in May
2011, establishes the disclosure of additionalrmédion to provide on all types of interests,
including those in subsidiaries, joint arrangemeassociates, special purpose entities and other
unconsolidated structured entities. The IASB rezpinetrospective application of the standard
from 1 January 2013. The competent EU bodies hawapleted the approval process of the
standard, deferring the date of application toriuday 2014, allowing however early adoption
beginning from 1 January 2013. The effects of ttiepsion of the new standard are limited to
disclosure relating to interests in other entitiés, provide in the notes to the annual
consolidated financial statements.

IAS 27 (2011)- Separate financial statements Following issue of IFRS 10 in May 2011, the
IASB narrowed the scope of application of IAS 27yoto the separate financial statements.
The standard specifically governs the accountimgtinent of investments in the separate
financial statements and is applicable from 1 Jan®014. The adoption by the Cairo
Communication Group of this standard had no immacthe data in the Parent’s Financial
Statements.

IAS 28 (2011)- Investments in associates and joint ventureBollowing issue of IFRS 11 in
May 2011, the IASB amended the existing standanddiude in its framework investments in
joint ventures, and to govern the reduction of ititerest which does not result in ceasing to
apply the equity method. The standard is applickbie 1 January 2014. The adoption by the
Cairo Communication Group of this standard hadmmgeict on the data in the Annual Financial
Report.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation— The amendments issued by
the IASB in December 2011 clarify the applicatidncoteria for the offsetting of financial
assets and liabilities appearing in IAS 32. The rasn@ents must be applied retrospectively
from 1 January 2014. The adoption by the Cairo Camaation Group of this standard had no
impact on the data in the Annual Financial Report.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS XTransition guidance amendments On 28
June 2012, the IASB published the amendments t& I&pplicable, together with the relevant
standards, from financial periods beginning onfeteral January 2013, unless applied earlier.
The document introduces amendments to IFRS 10nd112 to clarify how an investor should
adjust only the previous comparative period reteatigely and provide the information under
IAS 8, paragraph 8, letter f, exempting from thevisions of the other letters of the same

paragraph. IFRS 12 was further amended, in demuyati the request of adjusted comparative
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information, by limiting the request of presentiogmparative information for disclosures
regarding unconsolidated "structured entities"eniqgds prior to the date of application of IFRS
12.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 24Anvestment entities- The amendment, issued
by the IASB in October 2012, integrates IFRS 10ckyifying the definition of investment
entities and clarifies its consolidation methodfie Tamendment to IFRS 12 integrates the
standard by clarifying the disclosures to providel dhe assessments on how to determine
investment entities. The amendment to IAS 27 iy the standard by establishing the
disclosures that the investment entity is requicedrovide if it is also a controlling entity. The
adoption by the Cairo Communication Group of thiémdard had no impact on the data in the
Annual Financial Report.

Amendments to IAS 36- Recoverable amount disclosures on non-financial elss— The
standard, issued by the IASB in May 2013, govetms disclosures to provide on the
recoverable amount of impaired assets, if the amisubased on the fair value less costs of
disposal. The amendments must be applied retragelycto financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014. Early application is alloviedperiods in which the entity has already
applied IFRS 13.

Amendments to IAS 39Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedgea@unting— The
standard, issued by the IASB in June 2013, clarifiet the amendments allow continuation of
hedge accounting in the circumstance in which #nevdtive, which has been designated as an
hedging instrument, is novated as a consequentavsfor regulations in order to replace the
original counterparty to ensure performance ofahkgation if certain conditions are met. The
same amendment will also be included in IFR&i®ancial instrumentsThese amendments
must be applied retrospectively to financial pesib@ginning on or after 1° January 2014. The
adoption by the Cairo Communication Group of thédard had no impact on the data in the
Annual Financial Report.

IFRIC 21 — Levies- The interpretation, issued by the IASB in May 20firovides guidance on
when to recognize liabilities for a levy imposed d&government, with the exception of those
governed by other standards (i.e. IAS 12neome ta)x IAS 37 establishes the recognition
criteria of liabilities, one of which is the existe of a present obligation on an entity resulting
from past events (obligating event). The intergretaclarifies that the obligating event that
gives rise to liability for payment of a levy is@ained by the relevant legislation that gives rise
to its payment. IFRIC 21 is applicable accordinghte IASB for financial years beginning on
or after 1 January 2014, while, according to the Béhulation, from 17 June 2014. The
adoption by the Cairo Communication Group of thédard had no impact on the data in the

Annual Financial Report.
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Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios approved by the European Union, yet

to be enforced, and not adopted in advance by ther@up

« Amendments to IAS 19 Employee contributions to defined-benefit plansThe amendment,
issued by the IASB in November 2013, applies to legge contributions or to defined benefit
plans. The purpose of the amendments is to simfiéyaccounting of contributions that are
independent of the number of years of service. dimendments are effective for financial

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014; earlgligation is allowed.

* Improvements to IFRS: 2010-2012Cycle - On 12 December 2013, the IASB published
“Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2010-2012 CYckehich acknowledges the amendments to
the standards as part of their annual improvememtgss. The amendments are applied to
financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 20E&rly application is allowed. The main
amendments regard:

IFRS 2 Share-based payments&\mendments have been made to the definitions ddtilvg

condition" and "market condition”, while furtherfidgtions have been added of "performance
condition" and "service condition" (previously inded in the definition of "vesting

condition”).

IFRS 3 Business combination$he amendments clarify that a contingent considserat
classified as an asset or liability should be messbat fair value at each balance sheet date,
regardless of whether the contingent considerasi@nfinancial instrument to which IFRS 9 or
IAS 39 applies or a non-financial asset or liapili€hanges in fair value (other than period
measurement adjustments) are presented in prafitoss.

IFRS 8 Operating segment3he amendments require an entity to disclose tfaxters used

by management to identify the entity’s reportaldgments when operating segments have
been aggregated, including a description of trgreagated operating segments and economic
indicators considered in determining whether thmsrating segments have "similar economic
characteristics'The amendments also clarify that the reconciliabietween total assets of the
operating segments and the total assets of thg énfprovided only if the total assets of the
operating segments are regularly provided to thef dperating decision-maker.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremendsmendments have been made toBasis for Conclusions

in order to clarify that short-term receivables gayables are still able to be measured on an
undiscounted basis where the effect of discounsimgnmaterial.

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment and IAS 38ngible assets -The amendments have

eliminated inconsistency in the measurement of motated depreciation when a tangible or

intangible asset is being revalued. The new remergs clarify that the gross carrying amount
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is adjusted in a manner consistent with the rev@mnaf the carrying amount of the asset, and
that accumulated depreciation is equal to the miffee between gross carrying amount and
carrying amount, less subsequent depreciation.

IAS 24 Related party disclosuredt clarifies the provisions that apply in the itiénation of

related party transactions and disclosure to peovithen the activities of key management
personnel are provided by a management entity lfgobatural persons). In this case, the

management entity is considered a related partysapdrate disclosure should be given on the
provision of services of the management entitypas of the disclosure on compensation to
key management personnel, the components of comi@mgpaid to the management entity

need not be disclosed.

* Improvements to IFRS: 2011-2013 CycleOn 12 December 2013, the IASB published
“Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2011-2013 C§jckehich acknowledges the amendments to
the standards as part of their annual improvememtgss. The amendments are applied to
financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 20E&rly application is allowed. The main
amendments regard:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International FinaatReporting Standards It clarifies that a

first-time adopter, as an alternative to the agpion of a principle currently in force on the
date of the first IAS/ IFRS financial statementsynopt for early application of a new standard
intended to replace the principle in force. Theapts admitted when the new standard allows
early application. The entity is required to apihlg same version of the standard in all periods
presented in the first IAS/IFRS financial statemsent

IFRS 3 Business combinations e amendments aim to clarify the exclusion frdm t

application scope of IFRS 3 of all types of jointamgement.
IFRS 13 Fair Value MeasurementFRS 13, paragraph 5pdrtfolio exceptioly in its current

version, restricts to financial assets and ligbsgitincluded in the application scope of IAS 39
the possibility of fair value measurement on a lo@sis. The amendment clarifies that the
possibility of fair value measurement on a net $adso applies to contracts within the
application scope of IAS 39 (or IFRS 9), but thatrabt meet the definition of financial assets
and liabilities in 1AS 32, such as contracts to tand sell non-financial items that can be
settled net in cash.

IAS 40 — Investment PropertyThe amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 and IAS 40 roe

mutually exclusive and that, in order to determivigether the purchase of a property falls
within the scope of IFRS 3, it is necessary to rréfethe specific indications in IFRS 3;
instead, to determine whether the purchase of pumberty falls within the scope of IAS 40, it

is necessary to refer to the specific indicationkAiS 40.
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Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatiom not approved by the European

Union, yet to be enforced, and not adopted in advae by the Group

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts IFRS 14, published by the IASB in January 2014,
allows only first-time adopters of IFRSs to congnto recognize the amounts relating to rate
regulation according to previously adopted acdogntstandards. In order to improve

comparability with the entities that already apphe IFRSs and do not recognize these
amounts, the standard requires that the effecatef negulation should be presented separately

from the other items. The principle applies frodahuary 2016; early application is allowed.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangementslhe amendments, issued by the IASB in May
2014, provide clarification on the accounting ofrghases of interests in a joint operation
whose activity constitutes a business. The amentinaae effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016; esgspfication is allowed.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, plant and equipmemd IAS 38 Intangible assets The
amendments, issued by the IASB in May 2014, aimclarify that depreciation criteria
determined in accordance with revenue are not @pjte, as the revenue generated by an
activity that includes the use of an asset generaflect factors other than the consumption of
economic benefits of the asset. The IASB also fedarithe presumption that revenue is not
appropriate to measure the consumption of the enmnbenefits generated by an intangible
asset. This presumption may, however, be overcomdiniited circumstances. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beggmn or after 1 January 2016; early
application is allowed.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customersThe standard, published by the IASB in
May 2014, introduces a general model to determine whethegnwdind to what extent will
revenue be recognized. The standard replaces ttmgmiéion criteria set out in 1AS 18 -
RevenugelAS 11 -Work in progressind IFRIC 13 -Customer Loyalty Programmel-RS 15
applies to financial periods beginning on or attdanuary 2017; early application is allowed.
IFRS 9 — Financial instruments.The standard, published by the IASB in July 2014,
supersedes IAS 39Financial Instruments: Recognition and MeasuremdfRS 9 introduces
new provisions for the classification and measurgroéfinancial instruments, including a new
model for expected losses in the calculation ofdimpent losses on financial assets, and new
general provisions for hedge accounting. It alsduibes provisions for the recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments in accordandth the current IAS 39. The new standard
will be applicable retrospectively from 1 Janua@l; early application is allowed.

Amendment to IAS 27 Separate financial statemerits August 2014, the IASB published

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statementsathendments to IAS 27 will allow entities
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to use the equity method to account for investmeéntsubsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in the separate financial statementsahtendments are effective for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016; esgspfication is allowed.

Amendment to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial stateme and IAS 28 Investments in
associates and joint venturesThe amendment issued by the IASB in September 2014
highlights the changes to address an inconsistandgaling with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate mr\jenture. The main consequence of the
changes is that a full gain or loss is recognizémwa transaction involves a business. The
amendments are applied to financial periods beggan or after 1 January 2016.
Improvements to IFRS: 2012-2014 Cyclen September 2014, the IASB published “Annual
Improvements to IFRSs: 2012-2014 Cycle”, which asidedges the amendments to the
standards as part of their annual improvement ggocehe amendments are applied to financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Eafbplication is allowed. The main
amendments regard:

IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discoatl operations —-The amendment

introduces specific guidance to IFRS 5 in casendityaeclassifies an asset (or disposal group)
from held for sale to held-for-distribution (or eiwersa), or when recognition of an asset held-
for-distribution ceases.

IAS 19 Employee benefitsThe amendment to IAS 19 clarifies that high dgyatiorporate

bonds used to determine the discount rate of popteyment benefits must be issued in the
same currency used in the payment of the benefits.

IAS 34 Interim financial reporting The document clarifies the requirements in thenetteat

the disclosures required are presented in theinmt@nancial report but not in the interim
financial statements. The amendment requires Heatdisclosures be incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statemants wherever they are included within the
interim financial report and that the document tailable to users of the financial statements
on the same terms as the interim financial statésrard at the same time.

IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosureBhe document introduces additional guidance to

clarify whether a servicing contract constitutesoatinuing involvement in a transferred asset
for the purposes of applying these disclosure reqments to the transferred assets.
Amendment to IAS 1ln December 2014, the IASB published “Disclosurigidtive” The main

amendments regardMateriality and aggregation An entity must not reduce the

understandability of its financial statements byalbring useful information with irrelevant
information or by aggregating relevant informatidinat has different characteristics or

functions. Additional subtotals must be reconctiethe subtotal and totals required.
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Information to be presented in the statement ofniimal position and of comprehensive

income: specific items of profit or loss, other compreligesncome and the statement of
financial position can be disaggregated. Subtatalst: be made up of items recognized and
measured in accordance with IFRS, be presentethbptkd in order to make the components
of the subtotal clear and understandable; be densifrom period to periodStatement of

other comprehensive income for the yedlte share of other comprehensive income of

associates and joint ventures accounted for ugiegeguity method must be presented in
aggregate form but separately from other compréhernscome, as a single item, based on
whether the items will or will not subsequently terlassified to profit or losfNotes —
Structure:the entity is free to decide the order of pregd@nian the financial statements, but
must consider the effect on the understandabihty @mparability of its financial statements,
emphasizing the most relevant operating segmentsh® understanding of its financial
performance and financial position.
The amendments are applied to financial periodsnbew on or after 1 January 2016. Early
application is allowed.

 Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investmi@ntities: consolidation exceptions
- In December 2014, the IASB published "Investmentities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception”. The main amendments regard:
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statemertdhe amendments to the IFRS clarify that the

exemption from presenting consolidated financiateshents applies to a parent entity that is a
subsidiary of an investment entity, when the investt entity measures all of its subsidiaries
at fair value.

IAS 28 Investments in AssociateBhe amendment to IAS 28 allows a non-investmetitye

when applying the equity method of accounting terinvestment in an associate or a joint
venture that is an investment entity, to retainftievalue measurement that is applied by that
associate or joint venture to its subsidiaries.

IAS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entitiesThe amendment clarifies that this principle

does not apply to an investment entity that prepére financial statements in which all of its
associates are measured at fair value throught pirediloss.
The amendments are applied retrospectively to filmhrperiods beginning on or after 1

January 2016. Early application is allowed.
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NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

1. Revenue
Net operating revenue amounted to Euro 116,595sdmadi (Euro 121,047 thousand in 2013). Its
composition, versus 2013, is shown below:

Revenue 31/12/14 31/12/13
(€ thousands)

Print media advertising space sales 32 43
Cairo Pubblicita TV sub-concession 111,592 116,228
Cairo Pubblicita print media sub-concession 716 877
Cairo Pubblicita Web sub-concession 653 297
Group services 3,502 3,502
Other revenue from associates 100 100
Total

116,595 121,047

Revenue is generated exclusively in Italy and alyais by geographical area is pointless.

In 2014, Cairo Communication continued to operatéh® TV advertising sales market (La7, La7d

and theme channels Cartoon Network, Boomerang, @GXN) and on the Internet through its

subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita, which operates on lar@ncession basis, invoicing advertising spaces

directly to its clients and returning to the subsgor Cairo Communication a share of revenue

generated by resources managed on a sub-concéssisn

In 2014, net operating revenue included the sulzession fees billed to the subsidiary Cairo

Pubblicita S.p.A. for:

- TV advertising sales, amounting to Euro 111,5921samd,

- Internet advertising sales, amounting to Euro é&8isand.

- print media advertising sales on “Prima Comunicagicand “Uomini e comunicazione” of
Editoriale Genesis S.r.l., amounting to Euro 7@ugand.

Apart from providing advertising services, Cairo n@lounication also provides services in

administration, auditing, financial analysis, det#nagement and collection and marketing, to other

Group companies. Such services are subject toamatwhich are revised annually. Sales to Group

companies deriving from these activities duringytbar were as follows:
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Group services 31/12/14 31/12/13
(€ thousands)

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 3,000 3,000
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 22 22
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 480 480
Total 3,502 3,502

Other revenue from associates (Euro 100 thousard)es to administrative services provided to
Torino FC S.p.A., arelated party in that it iSmktely controlled by U.T. Communications S.p.A.

2. Other revenue and income

Other revenue and income amounted to Euro 350 amoludEuro 1,217 thousand in 2013).

3. Services, use of third-party assets and other egating costs
Net operating revenue amounted to Euro 107,831stmudi (Euro 111,617 thousand in 2013). Its
composition, versus 2013, is shown below:

Cost of services 31/12/14 31/12/13

(€ thousands)

Publishers’ fees 770 915
TV publishing fees 103,300 107,139
Web publishing fees 581 254
Consultancies and collaborations 306 33
Cairo Communication Board of Directors’ fees 1,257 1,605
Cairo Communication Board of Statutory Auditors’ fees 71 75
Other administration and general expenses 1,546 1,596
Total 107,831 111,617

The decrease in “TV publishers’ fees” is ascribdblthe decrease in TV advertising revenue.

Use of third-party assets amounted to Euro 715sdod (Euro 677 thousand in 2013) and refers
mainly to lease payments for property and officeigiepent.

Other operating costs amounted to Euro 91 thou@ame 181 thousand in 2013) and refer to prior-
year expense of Euro 31 thousand and other co&srof60 thousand.
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4. Personnel expense

This item can be analyzed as follows:

Personnel expense 31/12/14 31/12/13

(€ thousands)

Wages and salaries 2,117 2,005
Social security charges 795 745
Other expense - 20
Post-employment benefits 78 74
Total 2,990 2,844
5. Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses
These can be analyzed as follows:

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses 31/12/14 31/12/13

(€ thousands)

Amortization of intangible assets 92 60

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 148 136
Additions to provisions for risks 50 76
Total 290 272

6. Net financial income

Net financial income amounted to Euro 365 thoug@hdo 1,016 thousand in 2013) and is broken

down as follows:

Net financial income 31/12/14 31/12/13
(€ thousands)

Interest income on bank accounts 505 1,137
Interest income from Cairo Publishing 1 1
Total financial income 506 1,138
Interest and other financial expense (141) (122)
Total financial expense (141) (122)
Net financial income 365 1,016
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7. Income/ (loss) on investments

This item includes:

- dividends received during the year from the subsies Cairo Pubblicitd and Cairo Editore,
amounting respectively to Euro 1,039 thousand amw 6,245 thousand (Euro 3.4 million and
Euro 9.7 million in 2013);

- adjustment of the investment held in Cairo Pubfigl$.r.l., amounting to Euro 200 thousand.

In 2013, the item included the dividends approvgdQairo Pubblicitd, amounting to Euro 3.4

million, and by Cairo Editore, amounting to Eurd@ @nillion, the gain from the sale of Dmail Group

shares, amounting to Euro 377 thousand, as weahesadjustment of the investment held in Cairo

Publishing S.r.I., amounting to a negative Eurorfiffion.

.*-*.
8. Income tax

Income tax for the year amounted to Euro 1,891 shnd (Euro 2,797 thousand in 2013). In
accordance with the relevant accounting standdh#gsdeferred tax assets, relating mainly to the

accrual of provisions whose fiscal deductibilitydisferred, were recognized.

Tax 31/12/14 31/12/13

(€ thousands)

Current tax

Ires 1,507 2,233
Irap 326 410
Deferred tax assets 107 20
Deferred tax liabilities (49) 134
Total 1,891 2,797
The reconciliation of the effective and theoretiigad charge can be analyzed as follows:

31/12/14 31/12/13

Pre-tax profit 12,477 20,863
Theoretical income tax charge (27.5%) 3,431 5,737
Tax effects of dividends received (1,903) (3,437)
Tax effects of other permanent differences 37 87
Irap 326 410
Current and deferred income tax for the year 1,891 2,797
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For a clearer understanding of the reconciliatibeftective and theoretical tax charge, IRAP has

not been taken into account as this is not basegrertax profit, and this would generate a

distorting effect between one year and the othéverefore, the theoretical income tax charge has
been calculated using the IRES rate in force dd&ember 2014, equal to 27.5%.

* k%

9 . Loss from discontinued operations

At 31 December 2014, this included the allocatiérEaro 1 thousand for the loss of the year
incurred by the subsidiary Diellesei S.r.l. in lidation. At 31 December 2013, the item amounted
to Euro 5 thousand.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

10. Property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2014, this item amounted to Euro #®risand, with a net decrease of Euro 91
thousand versus 31 December 2013. Movements chroken down as follows:

Description Historical cost Revaluatio Accumulated Carrying Net change Carrying
n depreciation amount amount

31/12/2013 31/12/2014
Motor vehicles 472 0 (394) 78 (31) 47
Furniture and fittings 391 0 (223) 168 (18) 150
Communication 77 0 (72) 5 2) 3
equipment
Electronic office 1,262 0 (2,017) 245 (30) 215
equipment
Plant (various) 124 0 (124)
Mobile phones 28 0 (22) 7 5 12
Leasehold 271 0 (226) 45 (15) 30
improvements
Total other assets 2,625 0 (2,077) 548 (92) 457

The net change in the year is broken down as fatiow
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Description Additions Change in Depreciation Net change
accumulated
depreciation
from disposals

Motor vehicles - - (31) (32)
Furniture and fittings - - (18) (18)
Communication equipment - - 2) (2)
Electronic office equipment 43 - (73) (30)
Plant (various) - - - -
Mobile phones 8 - 3) 5
Leasehold improvements 7 - (22) (15)
Grand total 58 - (148) (92)

Property, plant and equipment have not been sutgeet/aluation.

The item also includes leasehold improvements degiezl over the term of the lease.

* %

11. Intangible assets

&

Intangible assets amounted to Euro 320 thousarRil dbecember 2014, decreasing by Euro 37

thousand versus 31 December 2013. Their movemantgydhe year are as follows:

Description Historical Accumulated Carrying Net change Carrying

(€ thousands) cost depreciation amount amount

at 31/12/2013 at 31/12/2014
Software, licenses and 2,530 (2,398) 132 141 273
trademarks
Total concessions, licenses and 2,530 (2,398) 132 141 273
trademarks
Website design costs 169 (169) - - -
Assets under development 225 - 225 (178) 47
Total other 394 (169) 225 - -
Total intangible assets 2,924 (2,567) 357 (37) 320
The net change in the year is broken down as fatiow

Description Additions Reclassification ~ Amortization Net change
(€ thousands) S
Software 26 207 (92) 141
Total concessions, licenses and 141
26 207 (92)

trademarks
Assets under development 29 (207) - (178)
Total intangible assets 55 - (92) (37)
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Expenses incurred for procedures and software anagare amortized over 3 and 5 financial years.

* *

12. Investments

Investments in subsidiaries

At 31 December 2014, investments amounted to EB/d22 thousand, with a net change of Euro
5,510 thousand versus 31 December 2013.

Description Carrying Impairment Value Carrying
(€ thousands) amount at losses increases amount at
31/12/2013 (decreases)  31/12/2014

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation 0 - - 0
Cairo Network S.r.l. (former 10 (1) 5,511 5,520
Cairo Sport S.r.l.)

La7 S.r.l. 4,039 - - 4,039
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 357 - - 357
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 6,273 - - 6,273
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 1,595 (200) 200 1,595
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 5,340 - - 5,340

Total investments
17,614 (201) 5,711 23,124

During the year, Cairo Communication subscribethares capital increase of Euro 5,511 thousand
for the subsidiary Cairo Network S.r.lI. (former @aBport S.r.l.), which took part in 2014 in the
tender procedure opened by the Ministry of Econdb@gelopment for the assignment of rights to
use TV frequencies for digital terrestrial broadicas systems, submitting its binding bid and
winning the rights to use a lot of frequencies (3%)uor a period of 20 years.

Furthermore, Cairo Network was granted interest-foans for a total of Euro 1,650 thousand.
Moreover, in 2014:

- the liquidation of the subsidiary Diellesei contul) generating a loss of Euro 1 thousand.
The net deficit of the company is covered by thevimion for investment risks at 31
December 2014,

- Cairo Communication waived, in the reserve for égsaccrued or to be accrued, interest-

bearing loans of Euro 200 thousand provided tethsidiary Cairo Publishing S.r.l..

Annex 2 shows the information required by paragréipbf art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code.
Information at 31 December 2014 is drawn from thaftdfinancial statements approved by the
Board of Directors of each direct and/or indiradvsdiary.
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For more detailed information, a comparison betweamnying amount and the amount derived

from the application of the equity method is pr@ddor each investment in the following table.

Description Equity Ownership  Equity method (*)  Carrying amount Difference
(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 (*) % (€)
(b) (a-b)

Cairo Editore S.p.A. 9,534 99.95% 21,940 6,273 15,667
La7S.r.l 112,658 100% 76,776 4,039 72,737
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 183 80% 310 357 47)
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 3,110 100% 5,374 5,340 34
Diellesei S.r.l. in (128) 60% (128) (128) 0
liquidation
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 52 100% 51 1,595 (1,554)
Cairo Network S.r.l. 5,513 100% 5,514 5,520 (6)
(former Cairo Sport
S.r.l)

(*) Amounts determined under IAS/IFRS

The carrying amount of the investments in Il TrovatS.r.I. and Cairo Publishing S.r.l. is higher

than the amount obtained using the equity methexpactively by Euro 47 thousand and Euro 1,554

thousand.

The carrying amounts of investments have undergompairment tests to measure any potential

indication of impairment of their realizable valyes defined by value in use, that is, the present

value of their cash flow, estimated according ® éipected results of the investments based on the

most recent budgets and business plans. The tisesaf estimates is believed to support the carrying

amount of the investment.

The main assumptions for the calculation of vafuade are as follows:

. three-year budget period,

. a growth rate of 1% to extrapolate the cash floeygobd the current budget period,

. a weighted average cost of capitah¢qg of 10.5% considered consistent with the company's
industry.

The company prepares Group consolidated finanda&kemments which, taking account of the

investments held, are an essential document torersmplete understanding of the activities of

the Group, the Parent and its investments.
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13. Receivables from subsidiaries and other non-crent financial assets

Other non-current financial assets

At 31 December 2014, non-current financial assetsumted to Euro 1.663 thousand (Euro 13
thousand at 31 December 2013), relating to intdrest loans granted to the subsidiary Cairo
Network S.r.I. (Euro 1,650 thousand) and to segul@posits (Euro 13 thousand).

* % %

14. Deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2014, deferred tax assets amouotedrb 424 thousand (Euro 493 thousand at 31
December 2013). These assets can be analyzedassfol

31/12/14 31/12/13
Deferred tax assets Temporary  Tax effect Temporary Tax effect
(€ thousands) differences differences
Taxed allowance for impairment 719 199 761 209
Other temporary differences 564 157 917 258
Post-employment benefits IAS 247 68 96 26
Total deferred tax assets 1,530 424 1,774 493

Deferred tax assets relate to the recognition aD8tember 2014 of deferred tax assets on the
temporary differences between the carrying amofirkapgnized assets and liabilities and their tax
values.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extemtdhe considered recoverable depending on the
presence of future taxable income in which tempodifferences will be reversed. Management

periodically reviews the estimates underlying theoverability of these amounts.

15. Trade receivables

Trade receivables amounted to Euro 320 thousaratealsing by Euro 215 thousand versus 31
December 2013. These are broken down as follows:
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Trade receivables 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change
(€ thousands)

Trade receivables 990 1,247 (257)
Allowance for impairment (670) (712) 42
Total trade receivables 320 535 (215)

Since 2009, Cairo Communication has operated oadkertising sales market on a sub-concession
basis with the subsidiary Cairo Pubblicitd, whicldices directly to its customers and returns a
share of the revenue to its parent. Current rebkdgaarising from this activity accrue from the
subsidiary.

The ageing of trade receivables by due date islkms:

31 December 2014 Current Pastdue Pastdue Past due Pastdue  Total
(€ thousands) between 30 between 61 between 91 over 180

and 60 daysand 90 day: and 180 days  days

Trade receivables 145 - - 30 815 990
Allowance for impairment - - - - (670) (670)
Trade receivables 145 - - 30 145 320
31 December 2013 Current Past due Pastdue Past due Pastdue Total
(€ thousands) between 30 between 61 between 91 over 180

and 60 daysand 90 day: and 180 days  days

Trade receivables 266 - - 30 951 1,247
Allowance for impairment - - - - (712) (712)
Trade receivables 266 - - 30 239 535

Trade receivables are shown net of allowance fgrairment that has been determined taking
account specific collection risks and takes intcoant the allocation to the Company’s media
clients of a percentage of losses on receivabtpsgldo the percentage of sales revenue allocated,
pursuant to advertising space sales contracts didpedween the two parties.  Specifically,
receivables due more than 180 days are those varmbe when the Company used to operate
directly as an advertising agency. Since 2009, rtidirg sales have been managed under a sub-
concession agreement with the subsidiary Cairo IRitab
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16 . Receivables from subsidiaries
These amounted to Euro 65,475 thousand, decrelgikgro 10,940 thousand versus 31 December

2013. These are broken down as follows:

Receivables from subsidiaries 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change

(€ thousands)

La7 S.r.| (former Cairo Due S.r.l.) 1,718 - 1,718
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 6,689 10,224 (3,535)
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 390 364 26
Cairo Publishing S.r.1. 199 90 109
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 56,479 65,737 (9,258)
Total receivables from subsidiaries 65,475 76,415 (10,940)

Receivables from La7 S.r.l. - Euro 1,654 thousaark-mainly receivables from VAT transferred to
the parent as a result of the VAT grouping scheme.

Receivables from Cairo Editore include Euro 6,24fiisand for dividends to receive as resolved by
the Shareholders’ Meeting of the subsidiary in Deloer 2014.

Receivables from Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. - Eurd05®, thousand at 31 December 2014 - are mainly
receivables from the sub-concession contractsEamd 174 thousand from VAT transferred to the
parent as a result of the VAT grouping scheme.

Other trade receivables from Cairo Pubblicita S.pas those from Il Trovatore S.r.l., are mainly
referable to centralized services provided by C&@mmmunication S.p.A. to Group companies.
These services are provided through annual costecharket values renewable year by year.

* *x

17. Other receivables and other current assets
These amounted to Euro 1,148 thousand, increasingubo 93 thousand versus 31 December

2013, and can be analyzed as follows:
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Other receivables and other current assets 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change
(€ thousands)

VAT credit - 119 (119)
Prepaid IRAP 75 67 8
Receivables from others 508 522 (14)
Prepayments and accrued income 565 347 218
Total other receivables and other current 1,148 1,055 93

assets

Withholding and prepaid taxes are taken as a dedgudétom the payment of taxes to relevant
authorities.

18. Cash and cash equivalents

The item coincides with th@et financial position and amounted to Euro 25,768 thousand,
decreasing by Euro 9,922 thousand versus 2018nlbe analyzed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change

(€ thousands)

Bank and post office deposits 25,766 35,680 (9,914)
Cash and valuables on hand 2 10 (8)
Total 25,768 35,690 (9,922)

Cash and cash equivalents continued to be managddrly.

19. Equity

At 31 December 2014, equity amounted to Euro 57 théRisand, decreasing by Euro 10,664
thousand versus 31 December 2013, mainly as at reStie distribution of the 2013 dividend
resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 29 Ap@il2 (Euro 21,152 thousand), and of the overall
result of 2014 (Euro 10,488 thousand).

At their Meeting on 29 April 2014, the shareholdepproved the distribution of a dividend of 0.27
Euro per share, inclusive of tax, with coupon detaent date on 12 May 2014 (made payable on 15
May 2014), for a total of Euro 21.2 million.
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Share capital

The share capital at 31 December 2014 was Eurct4ldusand, subscribed and fully paid up,
comprising n. 78,343,400 ordinary shares to whimominal amount is attributed.

In accordance with the bylaws, the shares aretszgid indivisible and freely transferable. The
requirements of representation, legitimizationcuation of the company investment required for
securities traded on regulated markets continagpdy.

Each share has the right to a proportion of thétpaich has been approved for distribution and to
a portion of equity on liquidation and also has tight to vote, without limits other than those as
defined by the Law.

No securities carrying special controlling rights/b been issued.

No financial instruments have been issued attnilgutine right to subscribe to newly-issued shares.
No share incentive plans are envisaged involviregesbapital increases, including bonus issues.
The reconciliation between the number of sharestanding at 31 December 2014 and those at 31
December 2013 is as follows:

31/12/2013 Purchase of Disposal of 31/12/2014

treasury shares treasury shares

Ordinary shares issued 78,343,400 - - 78,343,400
Less: Treasury shares (779) - - (779)
Ordinary shares outstanding 78,342,621 - - 78,342,621

Share premium reserve
At 31 December 2014, the share premium reserve af@dwo Euro 41,062 thousand.

Retained earnings
At 31 December 2014, the balance showed a pogttive 397 thousand. The item includes the IAS
first-time adoption reserve, with a negative bataatEuro 1,313 thousand.

Retained earnings

(€ thousands) 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Retained earnings 1,710 1,807
Retained earnings — “first-time adoption” reserve ,31B) (1,313)
Total 397 494
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At 31 December 2014, the item amounted to Euro7Lf@busand, unchanged versus 2013. It can

Other reserves

be analyzed as follows:

Other reserves 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
(€ thousands)

Legal reserve 815 815
Negative goodwill 225 225
Other reserves 17 17
Total 1,057 1,057

Treasury shares reserve

In 2014, as part of the share buy-back plans, eastrry shares were sold or purchased. At 31
December 2014, Cairo Communication held a total. af79 treasury shares, or 0.001% of the share
capital, subject to art. 2357-ter of the ItalianiOCode.

At their meeting on 29 April 2014, after revokingianilar resolution adopted on 29 April 2013, the
Shareholders approved the proposal to acquire iapdse of treasury shares in accordance with art.
2357 and subsequent articles of the Italian Ciatl€ for the purpose of stabilizing the Company
share price and sustaining liquidity, and, if dedmecessary by the Board of Directors, through an
independent intermediary, of establishing a “shastsk” as provided in Consob regulation
16839/2009. The Board was authorized to acquirastng shares up to the maximum number
permitted by law, for a period of 18 months frone ttiate of authorization, by use of available
reserves, including the share premium reserveesdting from the last approved annual financial
statements. Specifically, the Board of Directoit e authorized to acquire treasury shares on one
or more occasions, acquiring shares directly omtheket and through authorized intermediary — in
accordance with the procedures provided by art. h¥4 paragraph 1, letter b of the Issuer
Regulation and relevant Instructions — and, in casgh operations are carried out, according to
accepted market practices, pursuant to the regoktintroduced by Consob Resolution No.
16839/2009. Minimum price and maximum acquisitioicg per share are set at an amount equal to
the average official purchase price of the shardorsa Italiana S.p.A. for the 15 working days
preceding the purchase, respectively reduced oeased by 20%. In case such operations are
carried out according to accepted market practioeger Consob Resolution 16839/2009, the
purchase of treasury shares shall be subject tloefulimits, including price limits, provided théme

The Board was authorized to sell, on one or mopasions, any acquired treasury shares, setting
the minimum sale price per share no lower thamthemum price calculated following the criteria
adopted for their purchase. Should the treasuryeshbhe sold according to accepted market
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practices under Consob Resolution 16839/2009, #he of treasury shares shall be subject to
further limits, including price limits, providedehein.

-*-*-
The following table shows equity items and indisaifethey can be used and distributed, and tax
restrictions if any:

(€ thousands) Use over the previous three
years
Amount/Description Amount Eligibility Available To cover losses Other

for use: portion (dividends)
Share capital 4,074
Treasury shares (2)
Share premium reserve 41,062 ABC 41,062(1) (5,628)
Legal reserve 815 B
Other reserves 17 ABC 17
Negative goodwill 225 ABC 225
Retained earnings 396 ABC 396 (58,188)
Total 46,587 41,700 (63,816)

Legend:

A - for increases in share capital

B - to cover losses

C - dividend

(1) In accordance with art. 2431 of the Italian Ci2ode, the entire amount of this reserve mayibgibuted provided the legal reserve
has reached the limit as defined by art. 2430 ef@ode

Profit for the year
Profit for the year amounted to Euro 10,586 thodséBuro 18,061 thousand at 31 December
2013).

20. Post-employment benefits

This item amounted to Euro 1,221 thousand, witlinarease by Euro 213 thousand versus 2013.
The movement is analyzed below:

Balance at Paid during Financial Accrued Actuarial Balance at
31/12/2013 the year expense during the adjustment 31/12/2014
year
Post- 1,008 - 35 78 100 1,221
employment
benefits
Total 1,008 - 35 78 100 1,221

The change in the composition of personnel duttregyear is summarized as follows:
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Headcount at the Changes Headcount at year-  Average headcount
beginning of the end
year
Senior managers 7 - 7
Managers 3 - 3 3
Employees 18 - 18 18
Total 28 - 28 28

21. Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges amounted to E@ibtRousand, decreasing by Euro 73 thousand
versus 2013.

Provisions for risks and Balance at Utilizations Released  Accrued Balance at
charges 31/12/2013 31/12/2014
(€ thousands)

Risks on investments 128 - - - 128
Other risks 75 (75) - 50 50
Deferred tax provision 134 (134) - 86 86
Grand total 337 (209) - 136 264

As mentioned earlier, the “provision for risks avestments” refers entirely to Diellesei S.r.l. in
liquidation, accrued during 2005/2006 as a reduthe subsidiary’s net deficit.

.*.*.
22. Trade payables
Trade payables amounted to Euro 2,147 thousandeai#ng by Euro 1,457 thousand versus 31
December 2013.

23. Receivables from and payables to parent

Receivables from parents amounted to Euro 796 #maljsncreasing by Euro 148 thousand versus
31 December 2013. Euro 735 thousand refers tovaaless from U.T. Communications arising from
the national tax consolidation scheme. The rebdédgastem from the tax advance payments netted
against tax liabilities for the year.

As mentioned earlier, Cairo Communication and itds&diaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatioba 7 S.r.l., Cairo Network S.r.I. (former Cairodp
S.r.l.) and Cairo Publishing S.r.l. participate the national tax consolidation scheme of U.T.
Communications S.p.A.

The consolidation scheme, which governs the firsragpects of amounts paid or received in return
for the advantages or disadvantages resulting th@rax consolidation, specifically provides that
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any greater charges or minor benefits that mayuacr the company resulting from participation in
the procedure, be suitably remunerated by the Paren
24. Payables to subsidiaries

Payables to subsidiaries amounted to Euro 55,546st#nd, decreasing by Euro 2,737 thousand
versus 31 December 2013. The following table shitndreakdown of payables to subsidiaries that
relate to services received in the ordinary coofdausiness:

Payables to subsidiaries 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change

(€ thousands)

La7 S.r.l. 52,590 55,570 (2,980)
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 2.854 2,556 298
Cairo Publishing S.r.1. 6 6 i,
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 66 121 (55)
Total payables to subsidiaries 55,516 58,253 (2,737)

25. Tax liabilities
Payables to subsidiaries amounted to Euro 1,29is#mal, increasing by Euro 1,064 thousand versus

31 December 2013. They are broken down as follows

Tax liabilities 31/12/14 31/12/13 Change
(€ thousands)

Withholding taxes on employees 177 207 (30)
Withholding taxes on contract workers 77 20 57
VAT payable 1,037 - 1,037
Total tax liabilities 1,291 227 1,064

As mentioned earlier, the taxable income of Caimm@wunication S.p.A., for IRES purposes, has
been recognized as a payable to the parent UT Caioations S.p.A., in accordance with the
national tax consolidation scheme.
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26. Other current liabilities

&

Other current liabilities amounted to Euro 1,88dusand, decreasing by Euro 220 thousand versus

31 December 2013. They are broken down as follows

Other current liabilities 31/12/2014 31/12/2013 Change
(€ thousands)

Social security charges payable 215 203 12
Other liabilities 1,669 1,841 (172)
Deferred income - 60 (60)
Total other current liabilities 1,884 2,104 (220)

Accrued expenses and deferred income are deterndinegh accruals basis and mainly relate to

income deriving from recharging of the share ohppmedia bad debts, the losses of which have not

been fully ascertained and have not been recogmzeafit and loss

*k%

27. Commitments, risks and other information

Guarantees and commitments

Main guarantees given and/or received are as fellow

Cairo Communication issued Unicredit S.p.A. a gntea to secure the bank loan of
Euro 25 million granted in July 2014 to the submigiCairo Network for the purchase
of the rights to use television frequencies, adampd in the Directors' report; the loan
agreement contains certain financial covenantbeteerified annually at Group level
(consolidated financial statements): the debt c@Ver net debt/EBITDA ratio) must be
less than or equal to 1.75 and the leverage (thdel®/equity ratio) less than or equal
to 1; breach of the commitment and/or financialawnts may result in termination of
the loan agreement, pursuant to Article 1456 ofltdlean Civil Code. Early repayment

is provided for in the event of a change of condfaCairo Network S.r.l.;

bank guarantee issued by Unicredit of Euro 17.8ionil expiring on 15 June 2015,
securing payment of minimum guaranteed fees, uth@econtract for the exclusive sale

of television advertising space on La7;

other guarantees issued by bank and insuranctutestto customers, public bodies and

lessors of property totaling Euro 2.397 thousand.
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The agreements reached in the purchase of thee egftare capital of La7 S.r.l. also included a
multi-year agreement between La7 and Telecom Itdiglia Broadcasting S.r.l. (TIMB) for the
supply of transmission capacity that provides, agnasther things, the issue by Cairo
Communication of a parent company guarantee torctive payment obligations undertaken by
La7, for a maximum amount of Euro 6,558 thousandiding VAT) per year.

*k*k

The contract, signed on 6 March 2013 with Telectatia Media for the acquisition of the entire
share capital of La7 S.r.l., also provides for:

- the buyer's commitment, for a period of 24 montbsk-up) from the date of finalization of
the acquisition (30 April 2013), not to sell, assitransfer, dispose of in any way, in whole
or in part, the investment in La7, or the busin@si$ owning La7, without prejudice to the
buyer’s right, including during lock-up, to:

0 undertake a transfer or assignment to entities lyoevned, whether directly or
through other companies wholly-owned by Cairo Comiceation;

0 merge La7 and Cairo Due S.r.l., provided the latttrthe effective date of the
merger, does not have a negative net financialtipnsin excess of Euro 1,020
thousand;

0 constitute real rights of guarantee in favor oflgring banks on the shares of LA7;

o0 undertake, under certain conditions, a proportioleaherger of the group.

The lock-up commitments are accompanied by a pewtduse of the amount of Euro 20
million.

- Cairo Communication’s commitment, for a period dfrionths from the date of finalization
of the acquisition, to use the financial resouraesing from the contribution received from
Telecom Italia Media in the exclusive interest &the restructuring of La7, and the related
prohibition to engage in certain transactions dpgtiin the contract, including of an
extraordinary kind, aimed at depriving La7 of tlesources from the contribution to the
benefit of third parties or related parties, ontake new investments.

This commitment, as the above, is accompanied pgralty clause, the amount of which
varies depending on the transaction.

In 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network S.r.l. (form@airo Sport S.r.l.) took part in the tender
procedure opened by the Ministry of Economic Depmalent for the assignment of rights to use TV
frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastingteyns, submitting its binding bid and winning the
rights to use a lot of frequencies ("Mux") for aipd of 20 years. In January 2015, Cairo Network
and ElI Towers S.p.A. (“EIT") therefore entered inioe agreements for the realization and

subsequent long-term technical management in falivisee mode (hospitality, service and
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maintenance, use of broadcasting infrastructure) ef the Mux. The agreements provide, among

other things, for:

- a transitional phase, which will see the realizatand start-up of the MUX and the initial
operations, which will run from the date the agreata were signed to 31 December 2017, and
an operational phase of the Mux lasting 17 yeaos(f2018 to 2034);

- the right to free withdrawal of Cairo Network stag from 1 January 2025;

- guaranteed coverage at full performance of at 184% of the population, in line with national
Muxs with greater coverage;

- consideration to EIT:

0 during the transitional phase (2015-2017), amogntina total of Euro 11.5 million
for the full three-year period,;
o at full performance (starting from 2018), amountiadeuro 16.3 million per year.
These amounts include compensation for the avéiiabf the transmitters;

- an annual consideration from EIT to Cairo Netwatarting from 2018, ranging between Euro 0
up to Euro 4 million, in the event that the ava#abandwidth on the Mux is not fully used by
Cairo Network.

With the acquisition and realization of the MuxetlCairo Communication Group will start

operations as a network operator.

With regard to the Automatic Numbering Plan, thenbers currently in use (7 for La7 and 29 for
La7d) are those assigned by the Ministry of Ecomobevelopment in 2010, under AGCOM
resolution 366/2010/CONS. The Resolution had besallenged by Telenorba and other local
broadcasters, with partial annulment specificalgarding the assignment of numbers 7-8 and 9 by
the Council of State through Ruling 4660/12.

On 21 March 2013, the Communications Authority (A®) unanimously approved the New
Automatic Numbering Plan for digital terrestrialedd@sion (LCN) by Decision 237/13/CONS. The
decision confirmed, for national traditional broasdiers, the assignment of humbers 0-9 of the first
block of LCN numbering (see p. 39-40 and 44 of AGLDecision no. 237/13/CONS).

Deeming that the New Plan evaded the Council aeStauling (seeing that it confirmed assignment
to the national traditional broadcasters of numb@& in the first block of LCN numbering),
Telenorba filed an appeal for compliance with rglin. 4660/12. The appeal was upheld by the
Council of State (ruling no. 6021 of 16 Decembet 30 which declared the New Numbering Plan
void (pursuant to Resolution 237/2013) for numbéem 8 to 9, and appointed a special
commissioner tasked with verifying the correct gssient of numbers from 8 to 9 within 90 days
from the beginning of the proceedings, which sthae 24 February 2014. However, since the partial

annulment of the previous Plan initially includedwber 7, on initiation of the procedure, the specia
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commissioner - inappropriately in the opinion of7Laalso referred to humber 7, which instead,
under the Ruling, is not subject to verification thg Commissioner. AGCOM has in the meantime
re-extended the previous Plan (based on currengrasents), as also suggested in the State
Council’s ruling, in order to avoid a regulatoryigdo

In execution of ruling no. 6021, the Special Conwsitiser launched a public consultation on an
outline provision named "Automatic humbering plandagital terrestrial free-to-air and pay TV
channels, procedures for allocating numbers twigeos of audiovisual services authorized to
broadcast audiovisual content using digital téri@stechnology and relating conditions of use."
Telenorba, All Music and AGCOM have challenged dlogs adopted by the Commissioner, lodging
enforcement reviews and claims before the Staten@b(the court of compliance), arguing that the
Commissioner had exceeded the requirements ofrsente. 6021 of 2013.

Following orders n. 5041, 5127 and 5859 of 20h#tlem which the Council of State has given the
Commissioner certain regulations to discharge #s&,tthe Commissioner adopted a new outline
provision (no. 7 of 2014), accompanied by an exgiary report.

The parties to the proceedings and the Commissiveee heard in personal hearings before the
President of the Panel and the Judge-Rapportetiteoassessments made by the Commissioner in
the acts recently adopted.

The Commissioner has yet to complete his task fgxpicurrently set on 20 May 2015), while the
Council of State has yet to rule on the enforcemeviews and claims lodged by Telenorba, All
Music and AGCOM.

In the opinion of La7 and its legal counsels, ghtiof the task discharged by the Commissioner and
the orders of the State Council, further assessrignthe State Council on number 7 are unlikely

to be made, nor will the allocation of this numteta7 be challenged.

As the result of a VAT audit performed on Cairo Goumication S.p.A., in its report, the Guardia
di Finanza (the Italian Tax Police) identified sofimlings for 2002 and subsequent years (2003,
2004, 2005 and 2006) relating to the applicatioani§j of VAT on dealing rights charged to media
centres, which were subsequently included in thal faudit reports issued in January 2008 (for
2002), in June 2008 (for 2003, 2004 and 2005) an@4 November 2011 (for 2006), which the
company has challenged. The relevant hearing efasdm 23 May 2014 and, to date, its judgment
has yet to be filed. For all the periods in ques{ip002, 2003, 2004 and 2005), the Provincial Tax
Commission of Milan has ruled in favour of the C@mp's appeals. The Agenzia delle Entrate
(Italian Tax Authorities) has filed an appeal witle Regional Tax Commission of Milan against
these decisions. In April 2010, the Regional Taxn@ussion of Milan ruled in favour of the
Agency’s appeal regarding 2002, and in October 28l$t regarding the years 2003, 2004 and

2005, on questionable grounds. Cairo Communicaties already appealed to the Court of
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thousand in addition to penalties of Euro 51 thadsand the judgment regarding the subsequent
years 2003, 2004 and 2005, for which the tax clttals Euro 247 thousand, in addition to

penalties of Euro 272 thousand and interest. Theltam for 2006 amounts to Euro 63 thousand,

Cassation against the judgment regarding 2002 witch the tax claim amounts to Euro 41

in addition to penalties of Euro 79 thousand anerast. The company has also appealed against the
above tax claim; the relevant hearing was held®»May 2014 and, to date, its judgment has yet to
be filed. In June 2012, in relation to 2003, 202d05 and 2006, the Company received two tax
assessments demanding payment of the amounts idireg aais a result of the judgment of the
Regional Tax Commission, for a total claim of apgmmately Euro 431 thousand, including
penalties and interest. In relation to the taxnclaiontained in these reports, based also on the
advice of its tax consultants, the Directors baigkere are fundamental reasons and rights to

oppose the relevant findings.

In its hearing on 18 October 2010, the Provinciak Tommission of Milan acknowledged the
appeal filed by Cairo Editore S.p.A. regarding #ssessment notice for tax year 2004. The Italian
Tax Authorities have filed an appeal with the RegloTax Commission of Milan against the
ruling. In its hearing on 27 May 2013, the Reglomax Commission of Milan rejected the
Agency’s Appeal. On 16 June 2014, the Agency filacappeal with the Supreme Court, and on 25
July 2014, the Company notified its response tacthenterparty.

A previous shareholder of the subsidiary Il Trovat8.r.l., who did not sell its shares to the paren
company, had risen a claim against the current mtynoshareholder, involving Cairo
Communication S.p.A. indirectly, questioning thdidiéy of the contract under which he had sold
the quota in the limited partnership Il Trovatomdahe transformation of this company from a
limited partnership to a limited liability compar($.r.l.), and requesting the annulment of the
subsequent acquisition of the company by Cairo Conication. The requests of the counterparty
were rejected in the first instance, although thenterparty has filed an appeal. The case has been
currently postponed to the hearing for closing argnts on 7 April 2015. Based also on the advice
of its legal counsels, the Directors believe thatgrounds of these claims are such as not to seque

a specific accrual.

Immobiledit S.r.l., the subsidiary merged into ©diditore in 2009, is party to a lawsuit regarding
a property purchase. In 2004, the Court of Milanthie first instance, had rejected the adverse
party’s claims, ordering the adverse party to payages, to settle in separate proceedings, and to
repay legal expenses. The Court of Appeal hasypatersed the ruling of first instance, ordering

Immobiledit to pay for the expenses of first andosel instance, rejecting the adverse party’s claim
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no. 25351/14, the Court of Cassation, rejectindhadl other grounds of the main appeal of Italiana

for damages, which has appealed to the Court ofafias against the rejection. Following Ruling

Assicurazioni, granted the first ground of appeaiaerning compensation for damage suffered by
Italiana Assicurazioni for the fitting-out of thegperty covered by the preliminary contract; the
Court referred the case to the Court of Appeal @ah in a different formation, which will be
called to review the issue of compensation for dgmanly on the point above; the request for
compensation by Italiana Assicurazioni regarding filea granted by the Court of Cassation
amounts to approximately Euro 260 thousand. Italidssicurazioni shall re-open the case before
the Court of Appeal of Milan by the deadline of Jghuary 2016.

ok
28. Related party transactions
Transactions carried out by Cairo Communicatiomwaiated parties and the effect on the financial

statements can be shown as follows:

Receivables and financial assets Trade Other receivables  Intra-group Other current

(€ thousands) receivables and current assets financial assets financial assets

Parent UT Communications 61 736 - -

Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication Graij

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 56,30! 174 - -

Cairo Editore S.p.A. 44z - - 6,246

Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 4¢ - - 150

Il Trovatore S.r.l. 39C - - -

La7S.r.l 64 1,654 - -

Associates of UT Communications Group

Torino FC S.p.A. 304 - - -

Total 57,61¢ 2,564 6,396

Payables and financial liabilities Trade payables Other payables anc Intra-group  Other financial

(€ thousands) current liabilities financial liabilities
payables

Parent UT Communications - - - N
Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication

Group

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 2,854 - - -
Cairo Editore S.p.A. - - - B
La7S.r.l 52,590 - - -
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 6 - - _
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 66 - - -
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Associates of UT Communications Group

Torino FC S.p.A. 17 - -
Total 55,533 - - -
Income and expense Operating Operating Financial Financial (Expense)/
(€ thousands) revenue costs income expense Income from
investments
Parent UT Communications - - - - -
Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication
Group
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 116,038 - - - 1,039
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 480 - - - 6,246
La7S.r.l 153 (101,831) - - -
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. - 1 - (200)
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 22 (108) - - -
Associates of UT Communications Group
Torino FC S.p.A. 100 - - - -
Total 116,792 (101,939) 1 7,085
Income and expense Cairo Cairo Cairo La7 Il Trovatore  Torino FC
(€ thousands) Editore  Pubblicita Publishing
INCOME
Sub-concession payment 112,961 - - - -
Administrative services and use of 480 3,000 - - 22 100
serviced space
Recharged costs - 77 - 153 - -
Sale of advertising space - - - - - -
Interest income - - 1 - - -
Dividends 6,246 1,039 - - - -
Total 6,726 117,077 1 153 22 100
Cairo Cairo Cairo La7 Il Trovatore Torino FC
Editore  Pubblicita Publishing
EXPENSE
Internet services - - - - (108) -
Publishers’ fees (101,831)
Impairment losses on equity (200)
investments
Total - - (200) (101,831) (108) -

Cairo Communication supplies a range of servicesmtoe of its subsidiaries and associates, mainly

relating to management accounting software, useepficed spaces, administration, finance,

treasury, management control, credit managementrarleting activities, to allow the individual

companies to benefit from economies of scale ane mfficient management.

In 2014, Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. worked for Cairof@munication:

- as sub-lessee of Cairo Communication for TV adsiagi sales (La7 and theme channels
under concession Cartoon Network, Boomerang, and)@NXd Internet advertising sales,

- as sub-lessee for print media advertising salesfonithe magazines of Editoriale Genesis.

Under these agreements, Cairo Pubblicita directipices customers and returns a percentage of

proceeds to the sub-lessor.
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the latter, except for the contract with Torino F@ the provision of administrative services such

In 2014, there were no transactions with the paflent. Communications) or with subsidiaries of

as bookkeeping; the agreement sets an annual feerofl00 thousand.

As mentioned earlier, Cairo Communication and ibsidiaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatioha7 S.r.l., Cairo Publishing S.r.l., and Cairo
Network S.r.l. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) partiatp in the national tax consolidation scheme of
U.T. Communications S.p.A.

Fees paid to the directors in 2014 are analyzebldte 30 “Board of Directors’ and Board of
Statutory Auditors’ fees” and in the RemuneratiogpBrt, prepared pursuant to art. 123 ter of the
TUF.

In 2014, Studio Magnocavallo e Associati, of whiaelwyer Antonio Magnocavallo is a partner,
earned fees for professional services providebopanies of the Cairo Communication Group for
approximately Euro 267 thousand.

During the year, no transactions were concludetl wiembers of the Board of Directors, general
managers and/or with key management personnel, ersrolbthe Board of Statutory Auditors, and
the financial reporting manager, further than feaisl and as already shown in this Note.

The procedures adopted by the Group for relatety geansactions, to ensure transparency and
substantial and procedural fairness, made by ttmep@ay either directly or through its subsidiaries,

are illustrated in the Directors’ Report in thetg@mt on the “Report on Corporate Governance”.

29. Risk management

Liquidity risk

Cairo Communication is not exposed to liquiditykyign that on one hand, significant financial
resources are held with a net available positivarfcial position of Euro 25.8 million, while on the
other, it attempts to ensure that an appropriatéyaln generate cash is maintained, even under th
current market conditions.

An analysis of the company’s equity structure shdwsh liquidity, or the ability to maintain
financial stability in the short term, and solidityr the ability to maintain financial stability the
medium/long term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amthnd or very short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in bankneglycts, with the prime objective of maintaining
a ready liquidity of the said investments. Courdetips are selected on the basis of their credit

rating, their reliability and the quality of thergiee rendered.
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Cairo Communication is not exposed to these rigkghat on one hand, there is no loan finance,

Currency and interest rate risks

whilst on the other hand operations are carriedexatusively in Italy, and revenue is generated
entirely in the country and main costs are incuimeluro.

Interest rate risk only affects the yield on avalgacash. Specifically, with reference to the net
financial position at 31 December 2014, a one pgacge point reduction in the interest rate would
result in a reduction in annual financial incomeapproximately Euro 0.3 million.

Movements in the cash flow and the liquidity of thempany are centrally monitored and managed
by Group Treasury in order to guarantee effecti efficient management of financial resources.
Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd &OREX risk, the Company does not use

financial derivative and/or hedging instruments.

Credit risk

Cairo Communication is exposed to credit risk, ity in relation to its advertising sales
activities. This risk is however mitigated by tleetf that exposure is divided across a large number
of customers and that credit monitoring and corgrotedures are in place.

It is of course possible that the financial crasml the uncertainty factors in the short and medium
term could deteriorate, along with the resultingditr squeeze, and negatively impact on the quality
of credit and on general payment terms.

30. Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory Audtors’ fees

The following information refers to the 2014 feesidoto Directors, Statutory Auditors, General
Managers and key management personnel, also inidiares, analyzed in detail in the

Remuneration Report, prepared pursuant to artter2¥ the TUF:
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Name Position Termof  Term expiry Fees Benefitsin  Bonusesand Other fees**
office date * kind other
incentives
Urbano R. Chairman of Jan-Dec 2014 31/12/2016 500 16 - 510
Cairo the Board
Uberto Fornara CEO Jan-Dec 2014 223 5 - 477
31/12/2016
MariaLaura Director May-Dec 20 - - -
Cairo 2014 31/12/2016
Stefania Director May-Dec 32 - - -
Petruccioli 2014 31/12/2016
Roberto Cairo Director  Jan-Dec 2014 20 - - -
31/12/2016
Marco Janni Director  Jan-Dec 2014 28 - - -
31/12/2016
Antonio Director  Jan-Dec 2014 34 - - -
Magnocavallo 31/12/2016
Marco Director  Jan-Dec 2014 350 5 - 300
Pompignoli 31/12/2016
Roberto Director  Jan-Dec 2014 34 - - -
Rezzonico 31/12/2016
Mauro Director  Jan-Dec 2014 32 - - -
Sala 31/12/2016
Key N/A Jan-Dec 2014 N/A - 15 - 1,218
management
personnel

Marco Moroni  Chairman Jan-Dec 2014 31/12/2016
Board of 30 - - 25
Statutory
Auditors

Mariapia Standing  Jan-Dec 2014 31/12/2016
Maspes auditor 20 - - 17

Marco Giuliani  Standing  Jan-Dec 2014 31/12/2016
auditor 20 - - -

*

.

Other fees, in addition to fees for the role okdior (Euro 20 thousand), refer to:
Urbano Cairo: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paradned Italian Civil Code (Euro 480 thousand);
Uberto Fornara: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paigh 3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 203 thousand);
Marco Janni: fees for attendance in meetings efRielated Party Committee (Euro 8 thousand);
Antonio Magnocavallo: fees for attendance in megtiof the Remuneration Committee and the ContrdIRisk Committee (Euro
14 thousand);
Stefania Petruccioli: fees for attendance in megtinf the Remuneration Committee and Related Raotymittee (Euro 12
thousand);
Marco Pompignoli: fees pursuant to art. 2389, ammaph 3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 330 thousand);
Roberto Rezzonico: fees for attendance in meetihdse Remuneration Committee and Control and Riskimittee (Euro 14
thousand);
Mauro Sala: fees for attendance in meetings of Riek and Control Committee and the Related Payn@ittee (Euro 12
thousand)

** Other fees refer to:

Urbano Cairo: fees for his duties performed foritGaEditore (Euro 500 thousand) and other comparoéshe Group (Euro 10
thousand);

Uberto Fornara: gross fees as senior manager pbyaly Cairo Communication (Euro 300 thousand), reeration from the non-
compete agreement (Euro 67 thousand), fees faihies performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 100 tisand) and other companies
of the Group (Euro 10 thousand);.

Marco Pompignoli: gross fees as senior managerapbey by Cairo Communication (Euro 200 thousand) &es for his duties
performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 90 thousandideother companies of the Group (Euro 10 thousand);

Key management personnel: gross fixed annual Gfeep for a total of Euro 1,028 thousand (comprigyngss remuneration as
manager) and variable incentive components amogritrEuro 190 thousand.
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Moreover, under Consob Communication n. DEM/110828824 February 2011, point 2.3, letters

(a) and (f), it should be noted that:

» there are no agreements in place between the Pardrthe directors for any indemnity in the
event of resignation or unjust dismissal, or in #went their employment relationship ceases

following a takeover bid;

= there are agreements in place between the Par@hdlzarto Fornara, subject to non-competition
commitments for 18 months following termination lm§ management relationship with the
Parent, for payment during his relationship, stgrtirom May 2014, of a gross annual fee of
Euro 100,000. In the event of termination of ergpilent before payment, as remuneration for
the non-competition agreement, as of May 2014, hef total sum of Euro 450,000, to be
considered a minimum consideration of the agreembatCompany will pay the manager the
difference between such minimum amount and the ammpaid until then as remuneration for
the agreement.

Moreover, there are no succession plans regardiecuéve directors.

At 31 December 2014, key management personnekdfiro Communication Group was

composed of:

» Giuseppe Ferrauto (Director, General Manager amibger of Cairo Editore);

» Giuliano Cesari (executive director and General &gen of Cairo Pubblicita) and manager of
Cairo Communication;

» Marco Ghigliani (CEO, General Manager and manafena S.r.l.).

To date, Cairo Communication has no stock optiangin place.

31.Transactions deriving from atypical and/or unusualor non-recurring transactions

Pursuant to Consob Communication of 28 July 200BHEIM/6064296, it should be noted that in
2014 the Cairo Communication Group did not engageny atypical and/or unusual transactions as

defined by the above Communication.
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Mention must be made that in 2013 the Cairo Comuoaiitin Group had finalized the acquisition of
the entire share capital of La7 S.r.l.. The tratisacwhich is considered non-recurring by nature
and relevant amount, had generated non-recurric@nie and charges respectively of Euro 57,066

thousand and Euro 1,917 thousand as discussedénli@do the consolidated financial statements.

For the Board of Directors
Chairman Urbano R. Cairo
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ANNEX 1 - LIST OF INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

SUBSIDIARIES:

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2013:

Profit at 31/12/2013:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q242
Profit as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2/

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2013:

Loss at 31/12/2013:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q242
Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/124201

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2013:

Profit at 31/12/2013:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2/2
Profit as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2/

Ownership:

216

ASSOCIATES

Cairo Editore S.p.A.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
1,043,256
8,313,387
6,248,910
9,533,578
7,469,101
99.95%

La7S.r.l.

Rome - Via della Pineta
Sacchetti 229

1,020,000
121,560,581
(54,619,188)
112,658,455
(9,652,127)
100%

Il Trovatore S.r.l.
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
25,000
63,309
38,303
182,844
119,535
80%
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Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/13:

Profit at 31/12/13:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2/2
Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/124201

Ownership:

Company name:
Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity deficit at 31/12/2013:
Loss at 31/12/2013:

Equity deficit as per draft financial statement8&t12/2014:

Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/124201

Ownership

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2013:

Loss at 31/12/2013:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q242
Loss as per draft financial statements 31/12/2014:

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2013:

Loss at 31/12/2013:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q242
Loss as per draft financial statements 31/12/2014:

Ownership:
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Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.

Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
2,818,400
5,034,711
1,039,118
3,109,675
(885,918)

100%

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
10,000
(127,465)
(6,156)
(128,121)

(656)
60%

Cairo Publishing S.r.1.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
10,000
60,645
(370,052)
52,491
(208,154)
100%

Cairo Network S.r.l. (former
Cairo Sport S.r.l.)

Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
5,500,000
9,270
(1,130)
5,515,210
(4,790)
100%



INDIRECT SUBSIDIARIES

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2013:

Loss at 31/12/2013:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/0242

Loss as per draft financial statements 31/12/2014:

Ownership:
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Edizioni Anabasi S.r.I.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
10,200
8,765
(2,503)
9,209
(1,556)
100%



ANNEX 2

Summary figures of draft financial statements of sbsidiaries in the advertising
segment, il Trovatore and discontinued operationste81 December 2014

Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be received
B) Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible financial assets
Total non-current assets
C) Inventories
Receivables
Current financial assets
Liquid funds
Total current assets
D) Prepayments and accrued income
Total assets

Liabilities

A) Share capital
Income-related and other reserves
Shareholders' contributions to cover losses
Retained earnings/(losses carried forward)
Net profit/ (loss) for the year

Total equity

B) Provisions for risks and charges

C) Post-employment benefits

D) Payables

E) Accrued expenses and deferred income

Total liahilities

Income statement
A) Production revenue
B) Production costs

Difference between operating revenue and djpgraxpenses

C) Net financial income / (expense)
D) Adjustments to financial assets
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses)
Pre-tax profit

Income tax

Net profit/ (loss) for the year

Cairo Pubblicita Il Trovatore
Financial statements atFinancial statements

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation

31.12.14 31.12.14 Financial statements at 31.12.14
0 0 0
189 0 0
45.566 122 0
1.827 3.873 0
47.582 3.995 0
0 0 0
81.031.391 747.895 96.062
0 0 0
8.884.899 115.079 128.353
89.916.290 862.974 224.415
67.156 468 249
90.031.028 867.437 224.664
2.818.400 25.000 10.000
1.167.468 2.674 0
9.394 0 61.000
331 35.635 (198.465)
(885.918) 119.535 (656)
3.109.675 182.844 (128.121)
1.376.600 0 63.494
1.005.889 12.020 0
84.350.941 672.574 289.291
187.923 0 0
90.031.028 867.437 224.664
156.216.323 896.290 0
(157.261.590) (715.247) (848)
(1.045.267) 181.043 (848)
56.104 (775) (35)
0 0 0
0 0 0
(989.163) 180.268 (883)
103.245 (60.733) 227
(885.918) 119.535 (656)
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ANNEX 3

Summary figures of draft financial statements of shsidiaries in the publishing and
network operator segments at 31 December 2014

Cairo Editore Cairo Publishing LA7 Cairo Network
Financial statements at
31.12.14
Financial statements at Financial statements Financial statements atFinancial statements at
31.12.14 at31.12.14 31.12.14
Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 11.607.289 9.338 0 26.364.514 32.927.835
Tangible fixed assets 1.948.350 244 0 6.349.095 0
Tangible financial assets 64.264 0 0 356.860 0
Total non-current assets 13.619.903 9.582 0 33.070.469 32.927.835
C) Inventories 3.043.591 121.281 0 131.433 0
Receivables 26.135.944 1.891.006 7.907 61.329.958 33.271
Current financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
Liquid funds 6.951.318 632.634 11.756 106.518.096 50.363
Total current assets 36.130.853 2.644.921 19.664 167.979.487 83.634
D) Prepayments and accrued income 283.574 1.615 0 7475.2 22
Total assets 50.034.330 2.656.118 19.664 201.525.232 33.011.490
Liabilities
A) Share capital 1.043.256 10.000 10.200 1.020.000 5.500.000
Income-related and other reserves 1.021.221 0005. 129 175.892.924 20.000
Shareholders’ contributions 0 0 436 0 0
Retained earnings/(losses carried forward) 0 5.625 0 (54.602.342) 0
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 7.469.101 (2438) (1.556) (9.652.127) (4.790)
Total equity 9.533.578 52.491 9.209 112.658.455 5.515.210
B) Provisions for risks and charges 515.329 390.749 0 .135%78 0
Post-employment benefits 2.239.166 175.134 0 8.098.971 0
D) Payables 37.518.168 2.037.744 10.454 71.279.878 27.496.280
E) Accrued expenses and deferred income 228.089 0 0 .35862 0
Total liahilities 50.034.330 2.656.118 19.664 201.525.232 33.011.490
Income statement
A) Production revenue 97.086.783 1.283.909 0 116.435.175 1.833
B) Production costs (85.215.860) (1.550.614) (1.634) (133.088.041) (8.058)
Difference between operating revenue and 11.870.923 (266.705) (1.634) (16.652.866) (6.225)
C) Net financial income / (expense) 82.574 1.860 78 6461594 (285)
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses) 0 0 0 0
Pre-tax profit 11.953.497 (264.845) (1.556) (15.006.272) (6.510)
Income tax (4.484.396) 56.692 0 5.354.145 1720
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 7.469.101 (208.154) as6) (9.652.127) (4.790)

220



ANNEX 4

Summary figures of the most recently approved finadial statements of the
subsidiaries in the advertising segment, il Trovatie and discontinued operations (31
December 2013)

Cairo Pubblicita
Financial statements afFinancial statements afFinancial statements

Il Trovatore

Cairo Sport

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation

311213 31.12.13 at 31.12.13 Financial statements at 31.12.13
Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be 0 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 221 0 0 0
Tangible fixed assets 31111 213 0 0
Tangible financial assets 1.827 3.873 0 0
Total non-current assets 33.159 4.086 0 0
C) Inventories 0 0 0 0
Receivables 85.781.209 542.543 2.459 152.061
Current financial assets 0 0 0 0
Liquid funds 8.747.614 21.905 7.528 7.616
Total current assets 94.528.823 564.447 9.987 159.677
D) Prepayments and accrued in 85.600 468 42 503
Total assets 94.647.581 569.001 10.029 160.180
Liabilities
A) Share capital 2.818.400 25.000 10.400 10.000
Income-related and other re: 1.167.468 6 0 0
Shareholders' contributions 9.394 0 0 61.000
Retained earings/(losses ¢ 331 0 0 (192.309)
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 1.039.118 38.30 (1.130) (6.156)
Total equity 5.034.711 63.308 9.270 (127.465)
B) Provisions for risks and char 1.196.612 0 0 64.133
Post-employment benefits 869.756 9.918 0 0
D) Payables 87.167.415 495.775 758 223512
E) Accrued expenses and defer 379.087 0 0 0
Total liabilities 94.647.581 569.001 10.029 160.180
Income statement
A) Production revenue 166.252.600 486.117 260 128
B) Production costs (164.591.609) (422.146) (860) (944)
Difference between operating 1.660.992 63.971 (600) (816)
C) Net financial income / (expent 182.816 (1.195) (530) (331)
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses) 0 0 0
Pre-tax profit 1.843.808 62.776 (1.130) (1.147)
Income tax (804.689) (24.473) 0 (5.009)
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 1.039.118 38.303 (1.03 (6.156)
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ANNEX 5

Summary figures of the most recently approved finadial statements of the
subsidiaries in the publishing segment (31 Decemb@013).

Cairo Editore Cairo Publishing Edizioni LA7
Anabasi
Financial statements at Financial statements atFinancial statements Financial statements at
31.12.13 31.12.13 31.12.13 31.12.13
Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 12.826.700 10.076 0 31.884.4
Tangible fixed assets 2.070.143 1.148 0 8.603.809
Tangible financial assets 63.257 0 0 458.330
Total non-current assets 14.960.100 11.223 0 41.046.603
C) Inventories 3.729.675 154.496 0 219.431
Receivables 21.693.431 2.117.044 7.875 66.026.906
Current financial assets 0 0 0 0
Liquid funds 12.518.192 119.936 11.260 115.798.676
Total current assets 37.941.298 2.391.476 19.136 185.043
D) Prepayments and accrued income 305.048 1.530 0 0692.9
Total assets 53.206.446 2.404.230 19.136 223.784.517
Liahilities
A) Share capital 1.043.256 10.000 10.200 1.020.000
Income-related and other reserves 1.021.221 0005. 129 175.142.924
Shareholders’ contributions 0 0 939 0
Retained earnings/(losses carried fon 0 415.696 0 16.845
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 6.248.910 (8B2) (2.503) (54.619.188)
Total equity 8.313.387 60.645 8.765 121.560.581
B) Provisions for risks and charges 1.857.152 420.851 0 11.283.513
Post-employment benefits 2.351.179 152.547 0 8.137.943
D) Payables 40.584.840 1.770.187 10.370 82.657.738
E) Accrued expenses and deferred income 99.888 0 0 7424,
Total liabilities 53.206.446 2.404.230 19.136 223.784.517
Income statement
A) Production revenue 100.500.853 1.112.293 500 110683
B) Production costs (90.360.802) (1.597.144) (3.384) 75.406.665)
Difference between operating revenue 10.140.051 (484.851) (2.884) (58.222.725)
C) Net financial income / (expense) 98.461 6.958 381 .3331383
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses) 0 0 0 139.629
Pre-tax profit 10.238.512 (477.893) (2.503) (56.749.713)
Income tax (3.989.602) 107.842 0 2.130.525
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 6.248.910 (370.052) £03) (54.619.188)
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APPENDIX
Information pursuant to Article 149-duodecies of Cmsob Issuers’
regulations

The following summary, prepared pursuant to ar@-gidl of Consob Regulations, shows the fees
for the current period for auditing services andrfon-audit services provided by the Audit Firm.

€ thousands Services provided by Fees for the year
Audit
Parent - Cairo Communication S.p.A.

KPMG S.p.A. 75
Subsidiaries
- Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 35
- Cairo Editore S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 60
-La7 S.r.l. KPMG S.p.A. 75
- Cairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo Sport S.r.l.) KPMG S.p.A. 17
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CERTIFICATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PURSUANT

TO ARTICLE 81 (TER) OF CONSOB REGULATION 11971 OF 14 MAY 1999 AND

SUBSEQUENT MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

1. The undersigned Urbano Roberto Cairo, as Chairafathe Board of Directors, and Marco
Pompignoli, as Financial Reporting Manager of C&ammunication S.p.A., also in accordance
with art. 154 bis, paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legistabecree n. 58 of 24 February 1998, certify:

« the adequacy of the characteristics of the compad

* the effective application of administrative anzt@unting procedures for the preparation of the
2014 financial statements

2. We also certify that

2,1 the separate financial statements at 31 DeaePdid:

a) have been prepared in compliance with Internatidfialancial Reporting Standards
endorsed by the European Union, pursuant to EECulRegn 1606/2002 of the European
Parliament and Council, of 19 July 2002,

b) are consistent with the accounting records and $obkhe Company,

) give a true and fair view of the financial positiand results of operations of the Issuer;

2.2 the Directors’ Report contains a reliable asialyn performance and operating results, as well
as on the position of the Issuer, together wittescdption of the principal risks and uncertainties

to which it is exposed.

Milan, 13 March 2015

For the Board of Directors Financial Reporting Manager
Chairman
(Urbano Roberto Cairo) (Marco Pompignoli)
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Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors to the Stareholders’ Meeting of Cairo
Communication S.p.A., pursuant to art. 153 of Legigstive Decree 58/1998 and to
art. 2429 of the Italian Civil Code

Shareholders,

pursuant to art. 2429 of the Italian Civil Code aodrt. 153, paragraph 1, of Legislative
Decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998, we hereby infgoon that during the year ended 31
December 2014, we performed the oversight dutiesgoibed by law (art. 14& seq of
the above-mentioned Legislative Decree), taking afgo account the standards of
conduct recommended by the Italian Associationudflié Accountants and Accounting
Professionals, and the relevant instructions pexviby CONSOB communications

concerning corporate control and the activitiethefBoard of Statutory Auditors.

The above being stated, these are the resulteqiréscribed oversight duties performed
during the year:

« we attended the Shareholders’ Meetings and thogheoBoard of Directors held
during the year, receiving from the Directors, at@dance with their obligations to
report to the Board of Statutory Auditors, unddr 460, paragraph 1, of Legislative
Decree n. 58/1998, timely and appropriate infororaton the overall business
performance and outlook, and the most relevantsaeions, in terms of size and

nature, made by the Company and its subsidiaries;

* to the extent of our responsibilities, we gatharddrmation on compliance with the
law and bylaws, and oversaw compliance with thegipies of proper governance
and appropriateness of the Company’'s organizatiatalcture, through direct
observation, through information gathered from thanagers of the departments
involved, through regular exchange of informatioithvthe Audit Firm tasked with
the statutory audit of the separate and consolidéteancial statements, and by
attending the meetings of the Control and Risks @dtee, the Remuneration

Committee and the Supervisory Body;

* we oversaw the operation and effectiveness of iternial control systems and the
adequacy of the administrative-accounting systed) apecifically, its reliability to
properly illustrate operational events;



pursuant to art. 19 of Legislative Decree n. 39R@thich has assigned the Board of
Statutory Auditors the role of "Internal ControldaAudit Committee”, we conducted
oversight duties provided therein on: a) the disate of financial information; b)
effectiveness of the internal control, internal ia@hd risk management systems; c)
the statutory audit of the separate and consoliddieancial statements; d)
independence of the Audit Firm, through direct obaton, information gathered
from the managers of the departments involved, landnalyzing the results of the
work performed by the Audit Firm. In such contewxe took note of the quarterly
audits performed by the Audit Firm to ensure thataccounts were kept on a regular
basis; we received from the Audit Firm the Reperisscribed by art. 14 and by art.
19, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree n 39/2019€, well as the “Annual
confirmation of independence”, pursuant to art. datagraph 9, lett. a) of the above
Decree; we analyzed, again pursuant to art. 17agpaph 9, lett. a) of the above
Decree, the risks regarding independence of theitAtidn and the measures it
adopted to constrain such risks;

we controlled the proper operation of the auditayson Group companies and the
appropriateness of instructions given to them, ymms also to art. 114, paragraph 2,
of Legislative Decree n. 58/1998;

we took note of the preparation of the RemuneraReport, pursuant to art. 12&

of Legislative Decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998 amart. 84quater of CONSOB
Regulations 11971/1999I¢§5uers’ Regulations), with no particular issues to report;
we controlled the implementation processes of aateogovernance rules provided
by the Corporate Governance Code of Listed Compaisgued by Borsa lItaliana
S.p.A., as adopted by the Company;

we oversaw compliance of the internal proceduranaigg related-party transactions
with the principles contained in the Regulationgraped by CONSOB through
resolution n. 17221 of 12 March 2010 and subsegaer@ndments, and compliance
with the above Regulations, pursuant to art. 4agph 6;

we verified compliance with the laws and regulasiom the preparation and layout of
the separate and consolidated financial statemastaell as the documents attached
thereto. Specifically, the separate and consolidatmancial statements are
accompanied by the prescribed statements of coitfosigned by the Chairman of

the Board of Directors and by the Financial Repgrivianager, pursuant to art. 81-



ter of CONSOB Regulations n. 11971 of 14 May 1999 amdlsequent amendments
and supplements thereto;

- verified that the Directors' Report for 2014 coreplwith the laws and regulations,
consistent with the resolutions adopted by the 8adrDirectors and with the facts
illustrated in the separate and consolidated firsrstatements. The half-year report
and quarterly reports were published in accordanite the law and regulations

currently in force and required no comments fromBoard of Statutory Auditors.

The specific indications to provide with this Retpare listed below, in accordance with
the provisions of the above-mentioned CONSOB Comeation of 6 April 2001 and

subsequent amendments:

1. We gathered information on the transactions afjom equity and financial
relevance made during the period, also throughidiaioes, to verify that they were
made in compliance with the law and bylaws and thay were neither imprudent

or such as to jeopardize the integrity of corpoessets.

In this regard, more specifically, mention mustede that on 25 June 2014, Cairo
Communication completed the acquisition for Euro636 million, in the tender
procedure opened by the Ministry of Economic Depmient and through its
subsidiary Cairo Network S.r.l., of the rights ®eufor a period of 20 years) the lot
of frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastisgstems (2-SFN multiplex

indicated as L3 Lot), covering approximately 96.68the population.

We certify, therefore, that to the best of ourkiexlge, the above transactions were
based on principles of proper governance and taissues regarding potential or

possible conflicts of interest were carefully asses

2. The characteristics of intra-group and relatadyp transactions put in place in
2014, the parties involved and the relating finah@&ffects were appropriately
explained in section 12 “Related-Party Transactiaighe "Report on Corporate
Governance and Ownership Structure" in the Direstteeport for the separate and
consolidated financial statements for the year @drile December 2014, to which
reference is made. In this regard, the Board, & dburse of its work, did not
identify any atypical and/or unusual transactioredenduring the year with third
and/or related parties. Mention must be made thatll November 2010, the
Board of Directors of the Company, under CONSOBdR&®n n. 17221 of 12
March 2010 and subsequent amendments and suppkenmed adopted new



internal procedures governing the decision-makingcgss and the required

disclosures regarding related-party transactiohe (Procedures), which came

into effect as from 1 January 2011.

Pursuant to art. 4, paragraph 6 of the CONSOB Rsiguls approved by the above

resolution n. 17221/2010, we oversaw:

i) compliance of the procedures adopted by the Compudtty the principles
contained in the above regulations and their olzsee,

i) fairness and correspondence of intra-group andeckigarty transactions with

the interests of the Company.

In our view, the information provided by the &itors in their Report, pursuant to
art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code (Directors’ Ref), regarding atypical and/or
unusual transactions and ordinary transactionsemtite previous point, is to be

considered exhaustive and complete.

KPMG S.p.A., the Audit Firm tasked with perfongistatutory audit, with which

we held regular meetings during the year, todapd8l 2015) issued the Reports
under art. 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010tifyang that the separate and
consolidated financial statements for the year érgle December 2014 are drawn
up clearly and give a true and fair view of ass#dilities, financial position,

results of operations and other components of cehgmsive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company and the Graunl certifying that the

Directors’ Report and the disclosures under ar3-dig paragraph 4, of Legislative
Decree n. 58/1998 are consistent with the sepdnma#acial statements of the
Company and with the consolidated financial statgmeof the Group. These

reports do not contain any issues of note or exgdtag comments.

In 2014, the Board received no complaints, pamsto art. 2408 of the Italian Civil
Code.

In 2014, the Board received no complaints froirdtparties.

In 2014, the Company did not assign KPMG S.pdditional non-recurring tasks.

There are no reports of tasks assigned to sulfjeatsare part of the “network” of
the Audit Firm KPMG S.p.A..



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

In 2014, the Board issued its opinion as prescripethw on the determination of
compensation to managers holding strategic respilitiss, as established by the

Board of Directors on the proposal of the RemumamaCommittee.

In 2014, the Board of Directors met six times, @entrol and Risks Committee
four times and the Board of Statutory Auditors fdimes. The Remuneration
Committee met two times in 2014, while the RelaRadty Committee met only

once.

The Board of Statutory Auditors acquired knowledge oversaw compliance with
the law and bylaws and observance of the principlggoper governance, ensuring
that actions decided and taken by the Directorsptiech with the law and bylaws,

and were made in a perspective of profitabilityd aihat they were neither

imprudent nor reckless, or in potential conflictioferest or in contrast with the
resolutions adopted by the Shareholders’ Meetimgsuzh as to jeopardize the
integrity of corporate assets.

With regard to the adequacy of the organizatiotralcture of the Company and of
the Group, the oversight duties of the Board otustay Auditors were performed
by acquiring knowledge of the organizational stmuet through information

gathered from each area, through meetings with nlamagers of the various
departments and with the Audit Firm as part of gular exchange of data and

information.

The Board acquired knowledge and oversaw the adgcurad effectiveness of the
internal control system, pursuant also to art. 19 egislative Decree 39/2010,
through regular meetings with the Director in cleagf the internal control system
and with the internal audit manager, and throughptesence of the Chairman of
the Board of Statutory Auditors at the meetingthef Control and Risks Committee
and of all the members of the Board at the meetingls the Model 231/2001
Supervisory Body.

The Board also oversaw the adequacy and reliabditythe administrative-

accounting system to properly illustrate operatioments, through direct
observation, through information received by thenawgers of the departments
involved, by examining company documents and byyaimay the results of the

work performed by the Audit Firm.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The Board controlled the operation of the contggtem over subsidiaries and the
adequacy of the instructions given to the subsekaoy the Company, pursuant to
art. 114, paragraph 2, of Legislative Decree n988fin order for the Group
companies to provide the required information tonpty with statutory disclosure
obligations. No exceptions were reported in thigard.

During the regular meetings held by the Board at@ory Auditors with the Audit
Firm, pursuant to art. 150, paragraph 3, of LegistaDecree n. 58/1998, no

relevant issues emerged that need to be mentionisiReport.

The Board also controlled the implementation preessof corporate governance
rules prescribed by the Corporate Governance Cbdested Companies issued by
Borsa lItaliana S.p.A., as adopted by the Compaegprting no reprehensible

aspects;

With regard to the oversight duties performed asitioeed above, there were no
omissions, reprehensible facts or irregularitiepor@able to the competent

authorities and/or the supervisory boards, or woofhmention in this Report.

Finally, the Board of Statutory Auditors performéts own assessments on
compliance with the rules of law regarding the pregpion of the draft separate
financial statements and consolidated financidakstants of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014, of the relating explanabtatgs and the Directors’
Report attached thereto, either directly, assibiedepartment managers or through
information received from the Audit Firm.

Specifically, it is acknowledged that the separatel consolidated financial
statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. for tharyended 31 December 2014
were prepared in accordance with the “Internatiéiaéncial Reporting Standards”
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Stadd Board (IASB) and
approved by the European Union, and in accordanttethe provisions issued in

implementation of art. 9 of Legislative Decree &/2D05.

Based on the foregoing considerations, with redgardhe oversight duties performed

during the year, the Board of Statutory Auditors ha remarks to make, pursuant to art.

153 of Legislative Decree n. 158/1998, to the extérits responsibilities, on the separate

and consolidated financial statements, and on tt@aeatory notes and Directors’

Report, agreeing with the proposal of the BoardwoEctors to allocate profit for the

year, and with the proposal to distribute dividenmstained in the Directors’ Report to



the IAS/IFRS separate financial statements of G@mmmunication S.p.A.

Milan, 3 April 2015

Board of Statutory Auditors

Marco Moroni (Chairman)

Marco Giuliani

Maria Pia Maspes

The following pages provide a list of the positi@igdministration and supervision held by
the members of the Board of Statutory Auditorstimeo companies as at the issue date of

the Report (Annex pursuant to art. Igtdnquiedecies of the Issuers’ Regulations).



ANNEX TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF CAIR O COMMUNICATION SPA
DRAWN UP PURSUANT TO ART. 153 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/98

List of positions held in Companies as per Book V, Tle V, Chapters V, VI and VIl of the Italian Civil Code
as at the issue date of the Report
(art. 144-quinquiesdecies Consob Regulations 11999)

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Marco Moroni ( Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors)
1 Betfair ltalia Srl Standing Auditor 30/04/2015
2 Cairo Communication Spa Chairman of the Board of Statukuditors 31/12/2016
3 Cairo Editore Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutardifors 31/12/2016
4 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Chairman of the Board of Stayufarditors 31/12/2015
5 Caseificio del Cigno Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2014
6 Elettrodelta Spa In Liquidazione Standing Auditor 1/12/2014
7 La7 srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
8 Locauto Rent Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
9 Locauto Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
10 Publicitas International Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
11 Revicom Srl Chairman of the Board of Directors Until revocation
12 Sony Music Entertainment Italy Spa Standing Auditor 31/03/2016
13 Ut Communications Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutaditors 31/12/2016
14 SCF Consorzio Fonografici Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
15 Fratelli Giacomel Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
16 Giacomel Group Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
17 Asscom Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

17

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Maria Pia Maspes Standing Auditor)
1 Cairo Communication Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
2 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
3 Cairo Editore Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
4 UT Communications Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
5 Torino FC Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
6 LA7 Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
7 G.B.H Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
8 Alto Partnes SGR Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
9 Italholding Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
10 MAB Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2014
11 Eurofly services Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
12 Kelly service Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2014
13 Aliserio Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2014

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

13



N.

Company Name

Position

Until approval of the
financial statements

Marco Giuliani ( Standing Auditor)

OCoOoO~NOYUITD WN P

Cairo Communication Spa
Ali Spa

Banca Esperia Spa

Banca Mediolanum Spa
Mediolanum Fiduciaria Spa
Belmond Investimenti Spa
Belmond lItalia Spa

Hotel Splendido Srl
Mediolanum Gestione Fondi Spa
Rothschild Italia Spa

Yara ltalia Spa

Bg Italia Power Spa

Space Spa

Tioxide Europe Srl

Number of positions held in issuing companies

Total number of positions held

Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Chairman of the Board ofustay Auditors
Chairman of the Board of Statufargitors
Single Statutory Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor

31/12/2016
31/08/2015
31/12/2014
31/12/2014
31/12/2016
31/12/2014
31/12/2014

31/12/2016
31/12/2015
31/03/2016
31/12/2014
31/12/2014
31/12/2015
31/12/2015
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(Translation from the Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Report of the auditors in accordance with articles 14 and 16 of
Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010

To the shareholders of
Cairo Communication S.p.A.

1 We have audited the separate financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2014, comprising the statement of financial position,
income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity,
statement of cash flows and notes thereto. The company’s directors are responsible for
the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the Italian
regulations implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2 We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards recommended by
Consob, the Italian Commission for Listed Companies and the Stock Exchange. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the separate financial statements are free of material misstatement and are, as a
whole, reliable. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by directors. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Reference should be made to the report dated 7 April 2014 for our opinion on the prior
year separate financial statements, which included the corresponding figures presented
for comparative purposes.

3 In our opinion, the separate financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2014 comply with the International Financial
Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations
implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Therefore, they are clearly stated
and give a true and fair view of the financial position of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as
at 31 December 2014, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended.
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A

Cairo Communication S.p.A.
Report of the auditors
31 December 2014

4 The directors of Cairo Communication S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of a
directors’ report on the financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency of the
directors’ report and its specific section on corporate governance and ownership
structure, to the extent of the information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and
article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative decree no. 58/98 with the financial statements to which
they refer, as required by the law. For this purpose, we have performed the procedures
required by the Italian Standard on Auditing 001 issued by the Italian Accounting
Profession and recommended by Consob. In our opinion, the directors’ report and the
information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative
decree no. 58/98 disclosed in the specific section of such report are consistent with the
separate financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as at and for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Milan, 3 April 2015

KPMG S.p.A.
(signed on the original)

Francesco Spadaro
Director of Audit



